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INFORMATION IN THIS REPORT

Unless otherwise stated or the context otherwise requires, this
report was prepared based on the information available to the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2022 or as at the date
on which this report has been approved by the Board of the
Company being 3 April 2023.

Subsequent to 3 April 2023 and before the latest practicable date
prior to the printing of this report, Ms. Li Hai Xia resigned as the
executive director of the Company with effect from 20 April 2023.

For further details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company published on 20 April 2023.
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Xiwang Special Steel Company Limited, the Company, is a leading
high-end special steel manufacturer with its primary operations
located in Shandong Province of the PRC.

Founded in 2003, the Group was listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange on 23 February 2012. The Group’s production
base is located in Xiwang Industrial Area, Zouping, Shandong
Province of China. The Group operates an integrated production
process from iron smelting and steel smelting to secondary
metallurgy, die casting, continuous casting and steel rolling. The
Group’s products consist of ordinary steel that is primarily used in
buildings and infrastructures, as well as special steel that is used in
high-speed rail, automobile, vessels, wind power, bearing and
petrochemical, machinery and equipment sectors.

The Group possesses two production models, which are (1) steel
scraps as raw materials for steel production through electric arc
furnaces; (2) sintering furnace turning iron ores into sinter for blast
furnaces to produce molten iron which was then converted into
steel by converters. This provides the Group with more flexibility in
production model, as the Group could control its cost and product
mix through the utilisation of different raw materials.

The Group produced and sold ordinary steel and special steel and
mainly traded raw materials, such as iron ore dust and pellet, during
the Year. Ordinary steel mainly includes rebar and wire rod. Special
steel includes quality carbon structural steel, alloy structural steel,
bearing steel and ingots. Details are as follows:

1. ORDINARY STEEL
Rebar

Rebars are mainly used in building construction and
infrastructure projects. The Group’s rebar products have cross
sectional diameters ranging from 12 millimetres to 40
millimetres.

Wire rod

The Group produces ribbed and plain wire rods, both of which
have cross sectional diameters ranging from 5.5 millimetres to
14 millimetres. The Group’s wire rod products are used in the
construction and infrastructure sectors.
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Company Profile (Continued)
AT (4F)

SPECIAL STEEL

Quality carbon structural steel

The Group’s quality carbon structural steel products include
steel bars and steel wires with cross sectional diameters
ranging from 5.5 millimetres to 350 millimetres. Quality carbon
structural steel contains less than 0.8% carbon and has less
sulfur, phosphorus and non-metallic contents than that of
ordinary carbon structural steel. Because of its higher purity,
quality carbon structural steel has better mechanical
properties, such as yield strength and tensile strength, than
that of ordinary carbon structural steel. This product is mainly
used for buildings and infrastructures.

Alloy structural steel

Alloy structural steel is mostly used in machineries. In order to
get the desired steel properties, manganese, silicon, nickel,
chromium and molybdenum are added to adjust the chemical
composition. The Group’s alloy structural steel products
include steel bars with cross sectional diameters ranging from
5.5 millimetres to 350 millimetres.

Bearing steel

The Group produces bearing steel bars and wires with cross
sectional diameters ranging from 5.5 millimetres to 150
millimetres. They are used in manufacturing rollers or ball
bearings for automobile industry. The Group’s bearing steel
products are of relatively high level of purity and thus are
harder in structure than ordinary steel.

Ingots

Ingots manufactured by the Company can be applied to the
transportation, power and energy, petrochemical, oceanic
engineering, space and aeronautics as well as weaponry
industries. The Group’s products include wide and thick slabs,
round ingots, square ingots, rhombus ingots and hollow ingots
weighting from 3 tonnes to 80 tonnes.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors
Mr. ZHANG Jian (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed as Chairman with effect from 14 February 2023)
Mr. SUN Xinhu
Ms. LI Hai Xia Mete)
Mr. WANG Chaoqun (appointed with effect from 14 February 2023)

Non-executive Director
Mr. WANG Di (Chairman) (resigned with effect from
14 February 2023)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. LEUNG Shu Sun Sunny

Mr. YU Kou

Mr. LI Bangguang

COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

Mr. LEUNG Shu Sun Sunny (Chairman)
Mr. YU Kou

Mr. LI Bangguang

Remuneration Committee
Mr. LI Bangguang (Chairman)
Mr. WANG Di (resigned with effect from 14 February 2023)
Mr. YU Kou
Mr. LEUNG Shu Sun Sunny (appointed with effect from
14 February 2023)

Nomination Committee
Mr. LI Bangguang (Chairman)
Mr. WANG Di (resigned with effect from 14 February 2023)
Mr. YU Kou
Mr. LEUNG Shu Sun Sunny (appointed with effect from
14 February 2023)

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. FUNG Nga Fong (appointed with effect from 6 May 2022)
Mr. YU Chi Kit (resigned with effect from 1 April 2022)

Note: Subsequent to 3 April 2023 and before the latest practicable date prior to the
printing of this report, certain changes to the executive Director of the Company
have taken place. Please refer to page 1 of this report.
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Corporate Information (Continued)

LEEH ()

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. WANG Di (resigned with effect from 14 February 2023)
Mr. ZHANG Jian (appointed with effect from 1 April 2022

and resigned with effect from 6 May 2022)
Mr. SUN Xinhu (appointed with effect from 14 February 2023)
Mr. YU Chi Kit (resigned with effect from 1 April 2022)
Ms. FUNG Nga Fong (appointed with effect from 6 May 2022)

REGISTERED OFFICE

Unit 2110, 21/F
Harbour Centre

25 Harbour Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong

HEADQUARTERS

Xiwang Industrial Area
Zouping

Shandong Province
People’s Republic of China

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
IN HONG KONG

Unit 2110, 21/F
Harbour Centre

25 Harbour Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of China
Agricultural Bank of China
Bank of Communications
China Zheshang Bank
Bank of Rizhao
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Corporate Information (Continued)

AUDITORS

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
31/F, Gloucester Tower

The Landmark

11 Pedder Street

Central

Hong Kong

HONG KONG LEGAL ADVISER

Eversheds Sutherland

37/F, One Taikoo Place
Taikoo Place, 979 King’s Road
Quarry Bay

Hong Kong

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited
Room 2103B, 21/F, 148 Electric Road
North Point

Hong Kong

INVESTOR RELATIONS CONTACT
Ms. LI Tian Li

Tel: (852) 3107 3511
Email: tianli@xiwang.com.cn

WEBSITE

www.xiwangsteel.com
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
CUEE S

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A31BLEE

2022 2021
2022 F 20214
Sales volume of Steel (tonnes) AT E 2 (H8) 2,459,638 2,964,119
Revenue (RMB’000) Mgtrm (A REETIT)
Ordinary Steel — Rebar L@ — By 4,166,964 6,258,588
Ordinary Steel — Wire Rod TiE — g/ 1,778,968 3,156,303
Special Steel S 3,483,072 3,664,146
Trading of commodities and BmE S RBERHEE
sales of by-products 5,031,267 6,037,084
Total (RMB’000) @it (ARETT) 14,460,271 19,116,121
Gross (loss)/profit (RMB’000) E(8)/MARETFT) (749,999) 783,956
Gross (loss)/profit per tonne SWEE (18), /7
— Productions and sales of steel (RMB) —EEREEHM (ARE) (294) 239
(LBITDA)/EBITDA" (RMB'000) (FIS - %iE - wEREHEAER),/
FE A - MEREHEAAFO
(ARETT) (809,345) 946,358
(Loss)/profit attributable to owners (RMB’000)  #H& AJE(L (E18),/EF(ARETT) (1,328,792) 65,031

Basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share (RMB) SR E A K #5E (F518), /BRI (ARE)  (56.09) cents 2 2.74 cents

The Board did not recommend the payment of a final dividend for ZEEE&WMEZREEZ2022412 A31 A1k

the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil). FEIRERARE (2021 F  #]&) ©

Note: B EE

m (LBITDA)/EBITDA refers to (loss)/profit before tax plus finance cost, depreciation (FIE - B8 - rEREBHAEE) FIE - BE -
of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets and amortisation of WERBHEABNIERTEAT(EER), SFnsE
other intangible assets. A W% BREMEHEARGEAEEETER

Hih | EE#IH -
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Looking back on 2022, the entire steel industry of the PRC was in a
complicated and severe international environment, under the all-
round impact of the COVID-19 pandemic and downward pressure
on economic operation beyond our expectation. The industry’s
performance was at a relatively low level in recent years. The decline
in downstream demand led to a decline in both production and
sales. The drop in steel prices and the longstanding high cost of
raw materials and fuels had led to a significant decrease in profits.

We resolutely adhere to the plan of “prioritising stability and seeking
progress in stability” deployed by the senior management, and
actively respond to difficulties and challenges by fully discovering
potentials based on standards, striving for a balance between
production and sales, and vigorously promoting quality
improvement, cost reduction and efficiency increase. Through
analysis of standards, the Group has optimised its technical system
and innovated the production process. Quality is improved and
production costs are further reduced. We focus on the development
of technical marketing, improving the supply capacity to the high-
end market, actively developing new mid-to-high-end customers,
buffering the impact of the decline in demand for ordinary steel, and
facilitating transformation and upgrade.

The recent Central Economic Work Conference of the PRC specified
the direction for China’s economic development in 2023,
emphasising the organic combination of implementing the strategy
of expanding domestic demand and deepening the structural
reforms on supply. The effect of the economic stabilisation policy in
2023 will support steel consumption. The Group will closely follow
national policies and economic and industry development trends,
combine our own advantages, vigorously carry out transformation,
explore a new and more competitive and sustainable development
model, and achieve new breakthrough in terms of lean operation,
management, technological breakthroughs and green development
in order to create greater value for shareholders and stakeholders.

ZHANG Jian
Chairman

3 April 2023
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BREmR T

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group’s principal source of revenue was steel production
and sales during the Year. The Group produces and sells
ordinary steel products, including rebars and wire rods, which
are mainly used in construction and infrastructure projects.

In 2022, due to the impact of multiple factors such as the
conflict between Russia and Ukraine and the recurring
COVID-19 pandemic, the domestic economic operation faced
unexpected downward pressure. Particularly, the continuous
recurrence of the COVID-19 pandemic, large-scale control
measures and lockdowns led to sluggish demand in the steel
market. The performance of the industry was at a lower level
in recent years. The decline in steel prices and the long-term
high cost of raw materials and fuels resulted in an overall
decline in the profits of steel plants. Due to the COVID-19
pandemic, the place where the Group locates experienced
three times lockdown in 2022 under which the production and
operations had been greatly affected. Under the influence of
the pandemic and market demand, the Group suspended its
production intermittently in 2022, and the annual sales volume
was lower than that in the Previous Year.

During the Year, the Group primarily derived revenue from the
sales of ordinary steel products. The ordinary steel products
included rebars and wire rods, which are primarily used in
construction and infrastructure. Customers normally do not
need further processing. Due to the weak performance in real
estate market in the PRC, the Group recorded a gross loss of
approximately RMB248 million (Previous Year: gross profit of
approximately RMB637 million) in sales of ordinary steel
products during the Year. As the PRC government may
continue to tighten the future development of property
development market, the demand for the Group’s ordinary
steel products may continue to weaken.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

The special steel products that the Group offers include quality
carbon structural steel, alloy structural steel, bearing steel and
steel welding wire which are primarily used in machinery,
equipment and automobile industries. Customers may require
further processing for it to suit their intended usage in the
machinery, equipment and automobile industry. The average
selling price of the special steel products showed a downward
trend during the Year. The sales volume for special steel
products increased slightly by approximately 4.9% when
compared to that in the Previous Year. However, the average
selling price of special steel products decreased by
approximately 9.4% which eroded the effect of the slight
increase in sales volume. As such, the Group recorded a
gross loss of approximately RMB475 million (Previous Year:
gross profit of approximately RMB72 million) in sales of special
steel products during the Year. The management of the Group
has reasonable confidence on the future development of
special steel products and aim at producing more high quality
and high value-added special steel products in the long run
through the cooperation with the IMR.

The trading of commodities segment mainly includes the
trading of commodities such as iron ore powder and steel
billets. The Group recorded a gross loss of approximately
RMB7 million (Previous Year: gross profit of approximately
RMB47 million) in trading of commodities during the Year. Due
to the lockdowns in Zouping City in response to the COVID-19
pandemic, the business of this segment was also affected as
compared to the Previous Year. The Group had to pay higher
transportation cost during the pandemic in order to get the
orders fulfilled. The increase in the transportation cost of the
commodities eroded its profit margin.

The by-products segment includes the sales of by-products
such as steel slag, steam and electricity. The Group also
recorded a gross loss of approximately RMB20 million
(Previous Year: gross profit of approximately RMB28 million) in
sales of by-products during the Year. As the customers from
this segment are all local manufacturers in Zouping City and
its surrounding area, due to the lockdowns of Zouping City in
response to the COVID-19 pandemic, their production plans
were disrupted and the demand for the by-products
decreased. Certain cost of sales such as depreciation and
labour cost were fixed for the by-products segment which
could not be flexibly adjusted with the decrease in demand.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EEEwR D ()

ll. FINANCIAL REVIEW

1. Revenue

. BF#5[ElEE

Revenue mainly represents production and sales of
steel, trading of commodities and sales of by-products

EEBIBRAENMHEME
EERmIHERER  FHL0

and details are as follows: T
Breakdown of revenue: EEEERAM -
2022 2021
2022 2021
Average Average
Revenue  selling price Revenue selling price
EEH TIEE EE THER
RMB’000  (RMB/tonne) RMB’000 (RMB/tonne)
ARETR (AR¥7T/H) AREFT (ARET/ME)
Ordinary Steel ZEM
Rebar ) 4,166,964 3,666 6,258,588 4,291
Wire rod ) 1,778,968 3,807 3,156,303 4,578
Subtotal/Average Nt/ FHE 5,945,932 3,707 9,414,891 4,383
Special Steel L3 3,483,072 4,070 3,664,146 4,490
Production and sales of steel S EEREE 9,429,004 3,833 13,079,037 4,412
Trading of commodities' BEREZO 4,525,714 5,372,183
Sales of by-products? BERHEED 505,553 664,901
Total i 14,460,271 19,116,121
Notes: BFE -
1) Trading of commodities mainly includes the trading of iron ore (1) NmE S EERFHEEN - RERE
dust, pellet, coke, etc. REXRESE -
2) By-products refer to steel slag, steam and electricity, etc derived (@) BERSEEEEMMBIEPE

from the production of steel.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EEEwR D ()

Breakdown of sales volume of steel: A8 E =R ¢
Sales volume
HER
2022 2021
2022 % 20214
Tonnes Percentage Tonnes Percentage

g Bok Iita Bt
Ordinary steel EEE
Rebar =3 1,136,657 46.2% 1,458,657 49.2%
Wire rod &/ 467,278 19.0% 689,395 23.3%
Subtotal T 1,603,935 65.2% 2,148,052 72.5%
Special steel L3 855,703 34.8% 816,067 27.5%
Total &t 2,459,638 100% 2,964,119 100%

The revenue of the Group decreased by approximately
24.4% due to the combined effects of (i) the decrease in
the sales volume of the Group’s major products (ordinary
steel) and (i) the decrease in the average selling price of
ordinary steel and special steel products.

Cost of sales

Cost of sales mainly represents cost incurred for
purchasing iron ore powder, coke, scrap steel, coal,
depreciation, electricity, staff costs, etc.

During the Year, the Group’s cost of sales decreased to
approximately RMB15,210 million in 2022 from
approximately RMB18,332 million in 2021. The decrease
was mainly attributable to the decrease in sales volume
and trading business.

The average unit cost for the Group’s ordinary steel and
special steel products was approximately RMB4,127 per
tonne (Previous Year: approximately RMB4,173 per
tonne). The costs of raw materials remained at a high
level during the Year. As such, the average unit cost
remained at a high level.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EEEwR D ()

3. Gross (loss)/profit
Gross loss for the Year amounted to approximately
RMB750 million (Previous Year: gross profit of
approximately RMB784 million), while the gross loss
margin for the Year was approximately 5.2% (Previous
Year: approximately gross profit margin 4.1%).

The Group recorded a gross loss during the Year as (i)
the average selling price for ordinary steel and special
steel products decreased from approximately RMB4,412
per tonne to approximately RMB3,833 per tonne; (ii) the
demand for the Group’s ordinary steel and special steel
products decreased and the sales volume recorded a
17.0% decrease as a result of the unsatisfactory
performance of real estate industry in China in which
major customers of the Group operate, and slow
progress in infrastructure construction; and (iii) the surge
in the cost of sales arising from the fluctuation in major
raw materials prices such as coking coal while the cost
of iron ore remained high throughout the Year.
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Breakdown of the contribution of gross (loss)/profit and R FENRRM T :
gross (loss) profit margin by operating segment is as
follows:
2022 2021
2022 F 202146
Gross (loss) Gross profit
RMB’000 margin RMB’000 margin
ARBTTT E(B) % ARBTT EA=
Ordinary steel EEH (247,550) (4.2)% 636,584 6.8%
Special steel 154 (475,560) (13.7)% 72,221 2.0%
Production and sales of steel $MEERBE (723,110 (7.1% 708,805 5.4%
Trading of commodities BmES (6,524) (0.1)% 47,296 0.9%
Sales of by-products BEmEE (20,365) (4.0)% 27,855 4.2%
Total/Overall g Y (749,999) (5.2)% 783,956 4.1%
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Other income and (losses)/gains, net

Other income and (losses)/gains, net for the Year
amounted to losses of approximately RMB28 million
(Previous Year: gain of approximately RMB59 million).
The Group recorded net losses in other income and
losses during the Year as the Group incurred exchange
losses of approximately RMB47 million (Previous Year:
exchange gain of approximately RMB30 million). Since
the Group had other borrowings denominated in USD
and HK$, the Group suffered from the appreciation in
USD and HK$.

Other income and (losses)/gains, net mainly represents
impairment losses, exchange differences, interest
income, government grants and other miscellaneous
income and expenses.

Selling and distribution expenses
Selling and distribution expenses decreased to
approximately RMB8 million in 2022 from approximately
RMB13 million in 2021. The decrease was in line with
the decrease in revenue of the Group in 2022.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses for the Year amounted to
approximately RMB128 million (Previous Year:
approximately RMB90 million).

The increase was mainly attributable to the increase in
amortisation of intangible assets by the Group.
Administrative expenses mainly include general office
expenses, salaries of administrative staff, professional
and legal fees and bank service charges.
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Other operating expenses
Other operating expenses for the Year amounted to
approximately RMB149 million (Previous Year: nil).

Other operating expenses are the one-off expense
incurred for the occasional suspension of production.
During the Year, the Group did not fully utilise the
production lines due to (1) the impact of COVID-19
pandemic which affected the operations of the Group in
Zouping, and (2) the weak demand of certain products
during the Year.

Research and development costs

During the Year, the Group recognised a total expense
of approximately RMB379 million (Previous Year:
approximately RMB387 million) in relation to its research
and development activities which remained stable as
compared to that in the Previous Year.

The research and development costs included material
cost, staff remuneration, depreciation, technical service
fees and other miscellaneous costs.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Financial position

Liquidity and financial resources

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had approximately
RMB312 million (31 December 2021: approximately RMB332
million) of cash and cash equivalents, and approximately
RMB269 million (31 December 2021: approximately RMB419
million) of pledged bank deposits. The Group had trade and
bills payables of approximately RMB2,235 million (31
December 2021: approximately RMB2,254 million), bank and
other borrowings due within one year in the amount of
approximately RMB3,573 million (31 December 2021:
approximately RMB3,541 million), bank and other borrowings
due after one year in the amount of approximately RMB905
million (31 December 2021: approximately RMB34 million) and
interest payables due after one year in the amount of
approximately RMB78 million (31 December 2021: Nil). As at
31 December 2022, the bank and other borrowings were
denominated in RMB, HK$ and USD. All of the bank and other
borrowings (excluding borrowings from Xiwang Finance were
secured by non-current assets of the Group and Xiwang
Group, restricted bank deposits, 100% equity interests of
Xiwang Recycling Resources, ordinary shares and convertible
preference shares of a related company of the Company,
and/or guarantee by Mr. WANG Yong (a controlling
shareholder of the Company and the father of Mr. WANG Di
(former Chairman and non-executive Director of the
Company)), and/or Mr. WANG Yong and Ms. ZHANG Shufang
(spouse of Mr. WANG Yong), Mr. WANG Di, and/or Mr. WANG
Di and Ms. SU Xin (spouse of Mr. WANG Di), and/or Xiwang
Group Company. The Group mainly used its operating cash
inflows to fund its working capital needs, while the capital
requirement for acquiring additional production equipment
was mainly satisfied by cash inflows from operating and
financing activities.

The Group had unutilised banking facilities of approximately
RMB62 million as at 31 December 2022 (31 December 2021:
Nil).
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As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s total assets are
approximately RMB15,070 million (31 December 2021:
approximately RMB16,169 million), which are funded by the
followings: (1) share capital of approximately RMB1,370 million
(31 December 2021: approximately RMB1,370 million), (2)
reserves of approximately RMB3,092 million (31 December
2021: RMB4,415 million), and (3) total liabilities of
approximately RMB10,608 million (31 December 2021:
approximately RMB10,384 million) which mainly consist of
bank and other borrowings, contract liabilities, trade and bills
payables and guaranteed secured bonds.

Analysis of debt

The Group’s bank and other borrowings are mainly settled in
RMB, USD and HK$ without any notable seasonality. As at 31
December 2022, the details of the Group’s bank and other
borrowings are as follows:

Short-term/long-term bank and other borrowings:

Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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RMB (million)
ARBEET
Short-term AH
Bank borrowings H|ITER 2,761
Other borrowings HEMER 640
Other borrowings from Xiwang Finance KBTI EE M ER 37
Secured bonds HKIFES 134
Long-term BH
Other borrowings HAME R 905
Total et 4,477

Short-term bank and other borrowings included short-term
borrowings, long-term borrowings with portions due within
one year, bank and other borrowings with repayable on
demand clause and defaulted borrowings.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s total bank and other
borrowings amounted to approximately RMB4,477 million,
increasing by approximately RMB902 million compared to
approximately RMB3,575 million as at 31 December 2021,
which was mainly applied towards working capital.

For the Year, the Group adopted conservative treasury
policies, and all of the Group’s interest-bearing borrowings
bore interest at fixed interest rates.

There had been no change in the capital structure of the
Group since 1 January 2022 and up to the date of this report.
The share capital of the Company consists only of ordinary
shares.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions.
The Group monitors its capital with reference to its gearing
ratio and currently, it aims at maintaining its gearing ratio at a
relatively healthy level. Detailed calculation of the “gearing
ratio” is included in the section headed “Gearing ratio” below.

During the Year, the Group did not use any financial
instruments for hedging purposes (Previous Year: Nil).

Gearing ratio

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s gearing ratio was
approximately 30.6% (31 December 2021: approximately
22.9%).

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is
relevant debts divided by total assets. Total relevant debts
includes interest-bearing bank and other borrowings,
borrowings from the controlling shareholder, lease liabilities
and other long term payables.
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Funding and treasury policies and objectives

The Group adopts a prudent funding and treasury policy. The
Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy in respect of foreign currency transactions, assets and
liabilities. The Group will monitor its foreign currency exposure
closely and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

Currencies in which borrowings are made of and in which
cash equivalents are held

Most of the operating income of the Group’s business is in
RMB and the Group’s assets held and all of the committed
borrowings of the Group are mainly denominated in RMB,
except for certain bank and other borrowings and guarantee
secured bonds held by the Group denominated in HK$ and
USD.

Extent to which borrowings are at fixed interest rates

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s interest-bearing bank
and other borrowings. The Group’s policy is to obtain the
most favourable interest rate available. The Group has not
used any interest swaps to hedge its exposure to interest rate
risk. At the end of the Year, all of the Group’s interest-bearing
borrowings bore interest at fixed rates.

Use of financial instruments for hedging purposes
The Group currently does not use any financial instruments for
hedging purposes.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Material investment, material acquisition
and disposal of subsidiaries, associates or
joint ventures and future material
investment or capital and assets
acquisition plan

On 16 August 2021, Special Steel Company, a company
incorporated in the PRC with limited liability and an indirectly
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a
capital contribution agreement with the IMR and 10 PRC
individuals in relation to the capital injection into Zhongke
Xiwang, pursuant to which (i) Special Steel Company agreed
to provide a capital commitment by injecting certain
machinery, equipment and facilities (including construction-in-
progress) with a fair value of approximately RMB656 million
(based on a preliminary value appraised by an independent
valuer as at 31 May 2021) to Zhongke Xiwang; and (ii) IMR
and the 10 individuals together agreed to provide a capital
commitment by injecting certain intellectual properties with a
fair value of RMB353 million (based on a preliminary value
appraised by an independent valuer as at 31 May 2021) to
Zhongke Xiwang. Please refer to the Company’s
announcement dated 16 August 2021 and circular dated 25
August 2021 for further details about this transaction. Up to
the date of this report, Special Steel Company already
completed its injection of certain machineries, equipment and
facilities to Zhongke Xiwang.

Save as disclosed in this report, the Group did not have any
other significant investment, acquisition or disposal of
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures nor any future
material investment or capital and assets acquisition plan
during the Year and up to the date of this report.
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Pledge of assets

As at 31 December 2022, approximately RMB5,373 million (31
December 2021: approximately RMB5,012 million) of
buildings, machinery and equipment, approximately RMB84
million (31 December 2021: approximately RMB87 million) of
leasehold land and approximately RMB267 million (31
December 2021: approximately RMB407 million) of pledged
deposits were pledged as security for interest-bearing bank
and other borrowings of the Group and the subsidiaries of
Xiwang Group Company and bills payables. The Group’s other
borrowings of approximately RMB381 million (31 December
2021: approximately RMB382 million) were also secured by
the Group’s 100% equity interests in Xiwang Recycling
Resources.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s 95.6% (31 December
2021: 99.1%) equity interests in the subsidiary, Special Steel
Company, have been pledged for other borrowings of fellow
subsidiaries of approximately RMB804 million (31 December
2021: approximately RMB804 million). As at 31 December
2022, the Group’s 100% (31 December 2021: 100%) equity
interests in the subsidiary, Xiwang Metal Science, have been
pledged for other borrowings of Xiwang Group Company of
approximately RMB1,400 million (31 December 2021:
approximately RMB1,400 million).

Pledge of shares by controlling
shareholders

On 22 November 2019, the Company entered into a
subscription agreement with, among others, the guarantors
(being Mr. WANG Yong, Mr. WANG Di, Xiwang Group
Company, Xiwang Hong Kong, Xiwang Holdings and Xiwang
Investment) and the bond subscribers, pursuant to which the
bond subscribers conditionally agreed to subscribe for, and
the Company conditionally agreed to issue the bonds in an
aggregate principal amount of US$30.0 million (the “Bonds”).
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

As part of the security for the obligations of the Company
under the subscription agreement of the Bonds, (i) Xiwang
Group Company agreed to pledge its 100% shareholding
interests in Xiwang Hong Kong; (ii) Xiwang Hong Kong agreed
to pledge its 95% shareholding interests in Xiwang Holdings;
and (iii) Xiwang Holdings agreed to pledge its 100%
shareholding interests in Xiwang Investment (in liquidation), all
in favour of the subscribers of the Bonds. Pursuant to the
subscription agreement of the Bonds, each of the guarantors
also agreed to provide personal or corporate guarantees in
favour of the subscribers of the Bonds in respect of the
obligations of the Company under the subscription agreement
and the bond instrument. For further details of this transaction,
please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 24
November 2019 and 12 December 2019, respectively.

Merlion Macro Firm Ltd. (formerly known as Merlion Marco
Fund), one of the subscribers of the Bonds, on 17 February
2023 filed a winding-up petition (the “Petition”) (Case Number:
HCCW 80 of 2023) with the Court of First Instance of the High
Court of Hong Kong (the “Court”) against the Company. The
Petition was filed against the Company in respect of an
indebtedness allegedly due and payable by the Company in
the amount of US$5,000,000 and default interest accrued
thereon arising from the Bonds. The Court has set the first
hearing date for the Petition on 3 May 2023.

Specific performance obligations of the
controlling shareholders

Pursuant to the terms of the bond instrument of the Bonds, a
relevant event occurs if, among others, (i) Mr. WANG Yong
ceases to own, directly or indirectly, 50% or more of the voting
rights of the issued share capital of the Company; or (i) Mr.
WANG Yong breaches his undertaking to remain as the single
largest direct or indirect holder of the total issued shares of
the Company. Occurrence of any of these events will
constitute an event of default under the bond instrument
whereby the Bonds shall immediately become due and
payable by the Company at the mandatory redemption
amount, which is calculated with reference to the outstanding
principal amount multiplied by a multiplier and the interest
rate, together with, among others, default interest (if
applicable). For further details of this transaction, please refer
to the announcements of the Company dated 24 November
2019 and 12 December 2019, respectively.
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Disclosure obligation under Rules 13.19
and 13.21 of the Listing Rules

References are made to the announcements of the Company
dated 22 September 2017, 11 October 2017, 25 October
2019, 24 November 2019 and 12 December 2019 in relation
to the convertible bond in the aggregate principal amount of
US$30.0 million issued by the Company which was originally
due on 10 October 2019 and the Bonds in an aggregate
principal amount of US$30.0 million issued by the Company
which was originally due on 11 December 2019, and was
extended to 31 May 2020.

On 30 November 2022, the Group entered into a side letter
with one of the Bond subscribers and a revised redemption
schedule of the Bonds subscribed by the subscriber had been
agreed. The outstanding balance of the Bonds under the
name of such subscriber in the amount of US$5 million will
become fully repayable by 31 August 2023 through 9
installments. On 17 February 2023, such bond subscriber filed
the Petition with the Court against the Company in respect of
the subscribed amount of principal and default interest
accrued thereon arising from the Bonds.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has defaulted in
repayment of principals and interests of guaranteed secured
bonds amounting to approximately RMB100 million and
RMB13 million with another subscriber which were matured
on 30 September 2022. On discovery of the default, the
Directors informed such subscriber and commenced a
renegotiation of the terms of the Bonds with such subscriber.
As at the date of this report, those negotiations had not been
concluded and the negotiations in relation to a possible
revision to the redemption schedule of the Bonds are still in
progress. The Directors are confident that their negotiations
with such subscriber will ultimately reach a successful
conclusion. Such subscriber basically agreed with the revised
redemption schedule. In any event, should they call for
immediate repayment of the Bonds, the Directors believe that
adequate alternative sources of finance from Xiwang Group
are available to ensure that there is no threat to the continuing
operations of the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

In the year 2022, the Group was unable to repay its other
borrowings according to scheduled repayment date with a
principal amount of approximately RMB10 million (“Defaulted
Borrowings”) and interest of approximately RMB5 million. As
a result, the other borrowings with a principal amount of
approximately RMB339 million, with original contractual
repayment dates between year 2024 to 2028, were
reclassified as current liabilities from non-current liabilities as
at 31 December 2022 as they would be immediately repayable
if requested by the lender. In addition, the Group had a loan
advanced by the same lender in a principal amount of
approximately RMB42 million (“Current Loan”), which was
scheduled to be repayable within one year from 31 December
2022 and classified under current liabilities. Due to the
Defaulted Borrowings, the Current Loan also became default
and the lender is entitled to request immediate repayment.
Accordingly, the Group’s total defaulted other borrowings as
at 31 December 2022 were approximately RMB381 million.

On discovery of the breach, the Directors informed the lender
and commenced renegotiation of the terms of the other
borrowings with the relevant lender. As at 31 December 2022,
those negotiations had not been concluded. Since the lender
has not agreed to waive its right to demand immediate
payment as at the end of the reporting period, the loan had
been classified as a current liability as at 31 December 2022.
Up to the date of this report, the negotiations are still in
progress. The Group proposed a revised repayment schedule
to the relevant lender and such proposal is being considered
by them. The Directors are reasonably confident that their
negotiations with the lender will ultimately reach a successful
conclusion. In any event, should the lender call for immediate
repayment of the loan, the Directors believe that adequate
alternative sources of finance from Xiwang Group are available
to ensure that there is no threat to the continuing operations
of the Group.
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Capital commitments and contingent
liabilities

As at 31 December 2022, the capital commitment of the
Group for property, plant and equipment was approximately
RMB557 million (31 December 2021: approximately RMB577
million).

On 19 January 2021, the Company (and its subsidiaries) and
Xiwang Group Company and its subsidiaries other than the
Group (the “Relevant Subsidiaries”) entered into a guarantee
agreement (the “Guarantee Agreement”). Pursuant to the
Guarantee Agreement, the Group agreed to provide Xiwang
Group Company and the Relevant Subsidiaries with guarantee
services for the period from 1 January 2021 to 31 December
2023, with a proposed annual cap of RMB5.0 billion for each
year during the term. For details of the Guarantee Agreement
and relevant approvals, please refer to the announcements of
the Company dated 19 January 2021 and 19 March 2021,
respectively, and the circular of the Company dated 26
February 2021.

On 1 November 2022, the Company and Xiwang Group
Company entered into a new guarantee agreement (“New
Guarantee Agreement”) to replace the Guarantee Agreement.
The major terms of the New Guarantee Agreement remain the
same as the Guarantee Agreement and are already set out in
the announcement of the Company and the circular of the
Company dated 1 November 2022 and 6 December 2022,
respectively. The New Guarantee Agreement is valid for a term
of three years from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2025
upon the approval of the independent Shareholders at the
extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 23
December 2022.

As at 31 December 2022, the banking facilities guaranteed by
the Group for Xiwang Group Company and the Relevant
Subsidiaries were utilised to the extent of approximately
RMB1,400 million (831 December 2021: approximately
RMB1,400 million) and approximately RMB2,769 million (31
December 2021: approximately RMB2,790 million),
respectively.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Equity fund raising activities
The Group did not have any material equity fund raising
activities during the Year.

Foreign exchange risk

The majority of the operating income, costs and expenditures
of the Group were denominated in RMB. As such, the Group
has not been exposed to material foreign exchange risk
except certain bank and other borrowings and guarantee
secured bonds denominated in HK$ and USD during its
operations. As at 31 December 2022, the Group was mainly
exposed to risks related to its net liabilities denominated in
USD amounted to approximately RMB201 million (31
December 2021: approximately RMB215 million).

Employees and remuneration

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had a total of 3,202 (31
December 2021: 3,459) employees. Staff-related costs
incurred during the Year were approximately RMB261 million
(Previous Year: approximately RMB291 million). The
remuneration was determined based on the performance and
professional experience of employees as well as the prevailing
market conditions. The Company’s management will regularly
review the remuneration policy and arrangement of the Group.
In addition to pensions, the Group will also distribute
discretionary bonuses to certain employees as incentives
based on their performance.

Monthly evaluation is performed and each employee may be
given bonus based on their performance, effectiveness in
carrying out their jobs and the punctuality to report duty.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the
remuneration committee of the Board having regard to the
Group’s operating results, individual performance and
comparable market statistics.

The Group provided trainings to staff based on their job duties
plus their future career development.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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lll. BUSINESS OUTLOOK

Under the increasingly difficult operating conditions, the
Company insists on further promoting refined management,
reforming the management system, strengthening industry
benchmarking, establishing a direct procurement system, and
digging deep into the potential for cost reduction. Through
strengthening technical reform and technical measures,
optimising production process and elevating product quality,
the Company further reduces production costs. The Company
also actively carries out technical marketing, strengthens the
development of medium and high-end special steel customers,
improves the supply capacity to the high-end special steel
market, and accelerates the pace of transformation and
upgrade.

At present, with the full relaxation of pandemic control and the
rapid improvement of the domestic economic situation in the
PRC, governments at all levels are accelerating the full
recovery of economic development. The recovery of the
economy of China will stimulate the growth of steel demand,
and the steel industry is expected to usher in a positive market
in 2023. Steel demand is expected to improve as
infrastructure construction and the real estate market are
recovering. In addition, with the continuous advancement of
“carbon peak” and “carbon neutrality”, industries such as new
energy vehicles and wind power have maintained rapid
growth, and the development of these industries will also drive
the growth of steel demand.

The Company will continue to deepen the strategic
cooperation with the IMR. With the help of the research and
development strength of the IMR, the Company will continue
to develop new high-end special steel products of “special,
refined and high quality”, continue to optimise the variety
structure of all production lines, and gradually eliminate
products with low profitability. The Company will focus on the
development of special steels such as high-end bearing steel,
railway steel, marine engineering steel, large-scale roll special
steel, large-scale high-pressure container steel, large-scale
wind power steel, tool steel, and steel for special fields, to
realise a sustainable and high-quality development of the
enterprise by adjusting the industrial layout.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

During the Year, the Group has been granted the official
approval for establishing the Shandong Provincial Special
Steel New Material Technology Innovation Centre (the “TIC”).
The TIC is the only special steel new material technology
innovation centre in Shandong Province. Bearing the core
objective of research and development as well as application
of commonly-used key technology in the industry, it aims to
overcome the technological “bottlenecks”. The TIC undertakes
national and provincial scientific research and development
projects in various fields in respect of special steel new
materials, and strives to solve the “bottleneck” technological
issues of special steel segment, so as to fulfill the demand on
materials for highly sophisticated and precised products in the
high-end equipment field, and centralise the resources for
innovation of the special steel new material industry, while
enhancing the technological level and innovative capability of
the special steel new material industry in Shandong Province.

IMPACT OF COVID-19 OUTBREAK ON THE
GROUP’S PERFORMANCE

Effect of the COVID-19 pandemic on the
Group’s operations

During the Year, the Group experienced three times of lock-down in
Zouping City where the Group carries on its business and
operations principally. Though the Group did not completely stop its
production during the lock-downs, the Group’s suppliers and
customers might not be able to meet their schedules as expected.
The lockdowns and controlling measures led to difficulties in
logistics and transportation, which materially affected the
Company’s production and operations. The large-scale closures
and closures in the country in response to the COVID-19 epidemic
have also affected the downstream demand in the steel market of
China in 2022. Restrictions on travelling hindered the sales
personnel to contact the customers or potential customers directly.
The Group incurred losses of approximately RMB149 million due to
the occasion suspension of production.

EEEwR D ()

RAREE  AEBEABIRTINR
& R TR 8 AR B AT A1 R D ([ 39
BIF PO - RMAF R LORILRE
PR ME — B 55 SR S0 B A RH AT B3 R L -
RIATTE AR R RER S
b mERR [REF ] s -
Bl B 3 R 0 R R 2B 2 <R I A TR B R
MHBER AR EERER - 8D
PARRR S IR 80 4B 0 B [ R BT | Bl
HE mEanREEIASHERER
RO RL R SR (R IR B AR A SR e
WG ERER  AEEALRE
YRy R S T A R E SR B R A K SE A B
ERES) ©

COVID-19E B I ANEBMEE
A

RAFE AEEEAEEZTEEBLER
BB T HEET ZHE -  BEAEE
EHEBREYRTR2FIEEE  BEAEERN
HERMME S A e B AR B R RRET -
HIrEmEsnEnRE  FEAREE
EREZREIRRKFTE - h2022F FHAE
¥ COVID-19 % 15 T & je /Y B (9 K 18 19 =
EHBBESHMmSE TR EXIE
2 R{TBRFIPER THEABEEREHMEBRP
REERF - AEBREREESHELER
BHOAREA4BETT -

AEREERAT —B_—FFH




30

Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EEE W&k (E)

After relieving of the epidemic situation of the COVID-19 and
restoration of normal business operations in the PRC, it is expected
the chance of imposing travel bans, closure of public utilities and
large scale of testing are highly unlikely happen in the future. The
Group’s sales personnel can promote the business as usual. The
impact of COVID-19 will be less serious to the Group’s operations
in the year 2028.

The Group will not underestimate the impact of COVID-19 if there
are new coronavirus variants. The new coronavirus can cause more
severe disease than their predecessors. It may lead to significant
increases in hospitalisations and deaths. If this is the case, the
Group’s operations may definitely be affected. The Group will
continue to take preventive measures towards the COVID-19 such
as wearing masks in the Group’s premises and factories.

Risks or uncertainties that may materially
affect the Group’s future performance

Due to global high inflation, prices for bulk commodities, including
raw materials for steel making, have stayed high, posing challenges
to the world’s economic recovery in the year 2023. Increase in raw
material prices will increase the total cost of sales of the Group. The
Group may not be able to completely mitigate the increased raw
material prices by increasing finished product selling prices. As
such, the risk of the rise in raw material prices will retain in the
Group and may not be entirely transferred to the customers.

In 2022, the prices of major products in the PRC steel industry
continued to fall after a slight rise boosted by the conflict between
Russia and Ukraine at the beginning of the year. However, the
prosperity of the domestic real estate-based downstream industry
in China sagged sharply, which, coupled with the lingering
pandemic, further put steel selling prices on the downward track
since late April. The major sources of revenue of the Group are real
estate developers in China. The poor downstream consumption has
become the main factor of falling steel prices throughout the Year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Looking forward to 2023, the domestic demand from the property
developers in China may continue to be weak under the debt
crunch situation and as many projects of the property developers
have been postponed. Property developers adopted a de-stock and
deleverage policy and were very conservative in embarking on new
projects in the year 2022. The risks to property sector growth may
shrink in 2023 with unfinished projects likely to be completed
following stimulus measures imposed by the government recently.
The Group anticipates that steel price may be less volatile in the
year 2023.

China’s steel market may remain under big pressure in the first half
2023 given poor steel demand and comparatively high steel
production. However, most market sources believe the steel
demand in the second half of 2023 to improve from one year ago
and the first half of 2023, although it might not be able to rebound
to late 2021 level. The Group will manage the risk carefully and be
more cautious in cost control and hope the gross loss position can
be improved in the year 2023.

Assessments of the liquidity positions and
working capital sufficiency

The Company’s financial performance deteriorated in terms of
financing and operations in the Year. Firstly, due to the adverse
effects of the COVID-19 epidemic, the Group was facing difficulties
in soliciting new source of funds, including additional banking
facilities with PRC financial institutions to further support the
Group’s funding needs. Also, the credit market in the PRC remained
challenging as a result of tightened credit measures by the PRC
government. Secondly, the impact of the Russo-Ukrainian war
resulted in the violent fluctuation of the price of bulk commaodities
such as iron ore, coupled with the influence of factors such as
sluggish demand in the domestic downstream market, which led to
the deterioration of the Company’s profitability and the increase of
pressure on working capital.

Judging by the present situation, the impact of the COVID-19
pandemic on the Group in 2023 will be lessened. The recent “two
sessions” of China set an economic growth target of 5% and a
fiscal deficit rate of 3%, which indicates that China will implement a
proactive fiscal policy in 2023, but the impact on the credit status of
the Group requires further evaluation.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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Measures such as cost control, funding of and
adjustments to business plans taken or to be
taken to manage the impact of the COVID-19
pandemic

The joint prevention and control mechanism of the State Council of
the PRC announced in the press conference in February 2023 that,
China’s prevention and control situation is generally improving, and
it has entered steadily the normalised prevention and control stage
of “Class B and B Control”. However, as the adverse impacts
arising from the global pandemic are still being felt, the Group will
continue to pay close attention to the key area, continue to improve
various measures of “Class B and B Control”, and improve
normalised prevention and control and emergency response
capabilities. Based on the Group’s experience, the Group has
formulated relevant contingency plans to enhance emergency
responding capabilities and ensure stable business operations.
Under the new prevention and control stage and the planning and
deployment of the 20" National Congress of the Communist Party
of China on economic recovery and high-quality development, the
Group expects that upstream supply will improve and downstream
demand will rebound. The Group will further optimise cost control,
consolidate customer relationships, improve payment collection
capabilities, concentrate resources to promote transformation and
upgrade, search for new customers, improve profitability, and
introduce new financing and strategic investment. Forming a stable
and healthy development environment is the focus of the Group.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company is committed to maintaining good corporate
governance practices and procedures. The Company has adopted
the CG Code as set out in Part 2 of Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules as its own code of corporate governance. Save as otherwise
disclosed herein, the Board considers that the Company was in
compliance with all applicable code provisions set out in the CG
Code throughout the Year.

The Board is committed to upholding the corporate governance of
the Company to ensure that formal and transparent procedures are
in place to protect and maximise the interests of the Shareholders.
The Board is responsible for performing the duties on corporate
governance function as set out below:

° to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance;

° to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

° to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance and legal and regulatory requirements;

° to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

° to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report.

During the Year, the Board has reviewed the Company’s corporate
governance practices and the duties performed by the committees
of the Board, including review of the revised terms of reference for
the Remuneration Committee.

Set out below is a detailed discussion of the major corporate
governance practices adopted and observed by the Company
during the Year or where applicable, up to the date of this report.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

ExRERHmE (B)

In December 2021, the Stock Exchange published the conclusions
to its consultation on Review of Corporate Governance Code,
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rulers and the associated Listing Rules.
Most of the amendments are applicable for financial year
commencing on or after 1 January 2022. Most of the new
requirements under the amended Corporate Governance Code (the
“New Code Provisions”) have been adopted by the Company as
its corporate governance practices for a number of years. These are

highlighted in the following table:

R2021F12 A - XA T B R £H
FRIRT 8% 14 D EER T A M ARRE L AR AR
AR RARKE o AP KA D ERTE AR 2022 F 1
A1BS 2 RRABNMBFE - REFTEE
BR st A ([ #5F BURSC ) AR BV R B8 37 K
HEARRZFER-—BERMNERERATR—
B BRIBRN TR -

New Requirements The Company’s Practices

R E FRRETHER

Align the company’s culture with its purpose, values A healthy corporate culture across the Group is vital for
and strategy (New Code Provision A.1.1) the Company to achieve its vision and mission towards
sustainable growth. In the Company, it is the Board’s role
to foster a corporate culture with three core principles to
guide the behaviors of its employees, and ensure that the
Company’s vision, values and business strategies are

aligned to it.
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SFRMESCE AL R) LEGEFEE - RARFAN EFENREREEAR
—EZORAEESIMEEXE - NIEEREMTTR - L
RARABWES - BEBMEHREEZME -2 -

Establish policy(ies) and system(s) that promote and  The Group already introduced its anti-bribery and
support anti-corruption laws and regulations (New  corruption policies during the Year.

Code Provision D.2.7)

HEREMIFHREGEARERBROINBRMAELG (T AKREERAFERNRARBBEMRESHE -

SFANMEX ED.2.7 1)

Establish whistleblowing policy and system (New  The Group already introduced its whistleblowing policies

Code Provision D.2.6) and system during the Year.
i E 2 B M R 4w G < BIMGRBI 3 D.2.6 f5%) REBENRNFEARMBRBR LR -
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ExREAHmE (B)

New Requirements

R E

The Company’s Practices

ARBETHER

Disclosure of the mechanism(s) to ensure independent
views and input are available to the board, and annual
review of the implementation and effectiveness of
such mechanism(s) (New Code Provision B.1.4)
FERERREFSVESBEVEAREROES - UK
BFEHZEMB N E iR RBGETTRE (7 <F RIHEX
F£B.1.41§)

Equity-based remuneration (e.g. share options or
grants) with performance related elements should not
be granted to independent non-executive directors
(New Recommended Best Practice E.1.9)

TRABMIFAITE SR T AR A EREI EA MR

E1.91)

Annually review the board diversity policy (New Code
Provision B.1.3)

BERTEFEZITCEE G AIERXE B.1.3 %)

Nomination committee chaired by an independent
non-executive director and comprising a majority of
independent non-executive directors (Listing Rule
3.27A)
REZBEESHBYIIFNTESECTEF - BRIBHK
BRABYIFNTES ( ETHRBNEI27TAK)

Communications with shareholders and the relevant
annual review (Paragraph L of the Mandatory
Disclosure Requirement under the amended
Corporate Governance Code)
HEACR @A REEF Ema (REThEER A
TR RBEERELR)

The Board is committed to assessing the independence
of independent non-executive Directors annually and
ensuring that independent views and input are made
available to the Board.
EFRUNEFHEBUFRITEST 2B - WHRRE
SRR EEHBYBERER

The Company has a long-established practice of a
benchmarked approach in determining the independent
non-executive Directors’ fees, which does not involve
equity based remuneration with performance-related
elements. The level of fees payable to independent non-
executive Directors is also subject to Shareholders’
approval.
RARRANREAERERBREAEN T AEEAAEEE Y
FERITEENME - BT K AR R ER I B 4EM0E
AOME - BN TEERITESTOME KT IMELRE
HOAE -

The Company has set up the board diversity policy. The
policy is subject to annual review by the Nomination
Committee.

RARBHEERESEZ T LEEK - ZHEBFERIEEE
Beat o

The Company’s Nomination Committee, which comprises
a majority of independent non-executive Directors, has

been chaired by an independent non-executive Director.

ARRNRAZBEMBIYIFNTEFET IR - AR
DRERBIIFAITES -

The Company continuously reviewed its communication
channels with the Shareholders.

Details already set out in L. Shareholders’ Rights and
Investor Relations of this Corporate Governance Report
RARFERAHERRBRRES -
HBEHRACEERAME [LIRRENREEEBE]

AEREERAT —B_—FFH
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ExRERHmE (B)

New Requirements

R E

The Company’s Practices

AREETHER

Elaborate the linkage between corporate governance
and ESG (Introductory paragraph in the amended
Corporate Governance Code, New Principle D.2.
Code Provisions D.2.2 and D.2.3)

Mt b EEREIRE e RESRZHENE(KLE
RIEEEARTRAIRMNSIFRE - METRAD.2HEXE
D.2.2 % D.2.31§)

Publish ESG reports at the same time as publication
of annual reports (Listing Rule 13.91(5)(d) and
paragraph 4(2)(d) of the ESG Reporting Guide)
FIRZEMFRERE HEREARE(EMHSE
13.91(6)(d) & R IR 3E - & BB WM E 165 & 4(2)(d)
E)

THE COMPANY’S CULTURE

The Company is committed to inclusive practices in the way we
employ, develop and treat employees, underpinned by the
corporate values of fairness, integrity, innovation and transparency
with a focused people strategy to cultivate a safe and inclusive
corporate culture where employees can positively contribute to the
sustained growth of the Group.

The Group has been heavily investing its capital in quality
production, in particular, the development of high-end special steel
products. The steel industry in China is highly competitive and each
manufacturer targets to upgrade its products while reducing the
cost. The Group has been proactive in this area through its strategic
cooperation with the CAS to research, develop and produce
patented products with proprietary intellectual property rights. It
includes the production of high-quality building materials under the
new national standard that will be used in key projects in line with
the national investment direction at a low cost, as well as advanced
rail transit steel, high-end bearing steel, oceanic engineering steel,
steel for special fields and other new products with higher profit
margins, in order to build a national high-end special steel new
material support base, further enhance the technical barriers of the
Group, and contribute to the development of national high-end
equipment manufacturing. During the Year, the Group invested
approximately RMB379 million in research and development costs.
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The ESG Report includes the ESG governance structure.
A separate ESG working group has been set up to
implement and formulate the ESG strategy.

ESGHERERE HERERNERREE - ARFAEK
MBI HESG TE/ME ~ PAE i K il E ESG SR g -

The ESG Report has been published at the same time as
the Company’s Annual Report since the year ended 31
December 2022.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

The Group aims to enhance its competitiveness through its
technological innovation platform to produce ingots, forged
materials, rolled materials and building materials in a refined manner.

The Group continuously provides trainings to its employees and
potential employees in order to help them understand their future
career development in the steel industry. In the past years, the
Group continuously strengthened its cooperations with various
institutes such as the IMR, CAS and Lubei Technician College (&1t
FEMEEBR , formerly known as Binzhou Technical College).

The Group considers its people as its greatest asset. Apart from
enhancing the skills of the employees, the Group also encourages
the employees to maintain a work-life balance. The management
believes employees can contribute to their full potential if they lead
a happy, healthy and balanced life. At the Group, an individual is not
just an employee, but a member of the family and a part of the
bigger journey that is full of opportunities to discover his/her true
potentials. There are innumerable examples of people who have
been able to carry forward their interests here, always being
encouraged to lead a life in their own unique way.

The management maintains an open mind set throughout the
operations of the Group. The management acknowledges that they
do not always know everything, and should be open enough to
listen more, take in others’ viewpoints and respect differing
opinions.

A. DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its model code for
securities transactions by Directors. Having made specific
enquiries, all the Directors confirmed that they have complied
with the Model Code during the Year and up to the date of
this report.

ExREAHmE (B)
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xE

aHE ()

B. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

(i)

(ii)

Board composition

The Board currently comprises four executive Directors
and three independent non-executive Directors. During
the Year and up to the date of this report, the Board
consisted of the following Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. ZHANG Jian (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed as Chairman with effect from
14 February 2023)

Mr. SUN Xinhu
Ms. LI Hai Xia
Mr. WANG Chaoqun
(appointed with effect from 14 February 2023)

Non-executive Director
Mr. WANG Di (Chairman)
(resigned with effect from 14 February 2023)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. LEUNG Shu Sun Sunny

Mr. YU Kou

Mr. LI Bangguang

During the Year, the Board at all times met the
requirements under Rule 3.10(1) and (2) and 3.10(A) of
the Listing Rules that, at least one-third of members of
the Board being independent non-executive Directors,
with at least one independent non-executive Director
possessing appropriate professional qualifications, or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

Appointment and re-elections of
Directors

In accordance with the Articles, the Board is authorised
to appoint any person as a Director either to fill a casual
vacancy on the Board or, subject to authorisation by the
members in general meeting, as an additional member of
the Board. The Company has adopted the board
diversity policy, being the guidelines to achieve diversity
on the Board, and ensure the Board has a balance of
skills, experience and knowledge in the industry and
diversity of perspectives appropriate to the Company’s
business. The Nomination Committee ensures the
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

selection of candidates will be based on a range of
diversity perspectives, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service. The Nomination Committee is
responsible for monitoring the implementation of the
Company’s board diversity policy and review the same
as appropriate.

In compliance with Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules, the
Company has appointed three independent non-
executive Directors. The Board considers that all
independent non-executive Directors have appropriate
and sufficient industry or finance experience and
qualifications to carry out their duties so as to protect
the interests of Shareholders as a whole. One of the
independent non-executive Directors, Mr. LEUNG Shu
Sun Sunny, has over 30 years of experience in, among
other things, accounting, treasury management,
budgeting and corporate finance. He is a fellow member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants,
an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and a member of Certified
General Accountants’ Association of Canada. The
Company has received the annual written confirmations
from each of Mr. LEUNG Shu Sun Sunny, Mr. LI
Bangguang and Mr. YU Kou in respect of their
independence respectively pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. Based on such confirmations, the Board
considers all independent non-executive Directors to be
independent.

According to the Articles, additional Directors appointed
by the Board are subject to re-election by shareholders
at the next following annual general meeting. Directors,
including non-executive Directors, shall be elected or
replaced by the Company in general meeting and shall
serve a term of office of 3 years. A Director may serve
consecutive terms if re-elected by the Company in
general meeting upon the expiration of his term.

In accordance with Clause 74.1 of the Articles, Mr. SUN
Xinhu, Mr. WANG Chaoqun, Mr. LEUNG Shu Sun Sunny
and Mr. YU Kou will retire at the forthcoming 2023
annual general meeting of the Company and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election.
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£EERHRE (8)

(iif) Continuous appointment of

independent non-executive Directors
who have served for more than nine
years

Pursuant to the New Code Provision B.2.3, any further
appointment of independent non-executive director
serving more than nine years should be subject to a
separate resolution to be approved by shareholders.

As at the date of this report, each of Mr. LEUNG Shu
Sun Sunny and Mr. YU Kou has served as an
independent non-executive Director for more than nine
years.

Notwithstanding that each of Mr. LEUNG Shu Sun Sunny
and Mr. YU Kou has served as independent non-
executive Director for more than nine years, (i) the Board
has assessed and reviewed the annual confirmations of
independence based on the criteria set out in Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules and affirmed that each of Mr. LEUNG
Shu Sun Sunny and Mr. YU Kou remains independent; (i)
the Nomination Committee has assessed and is satisfied
of the independence of each of Mr. LEUNG Shu Sun
Sunny and Mr. YU Kou; and (iii) the Board considers that
each of Mr. LEUNG Shu Sun Sunny and Mr. YU Kou
remains independent of management and free of any
relationship which could materially interfere with the
exercise of their independent judgment. In view of the
aforesaid factors and the fact that the skills, expertise,
background, qualifications, experience and knowledge
of the relevant individuals, the Board is of the opinion
that such independent non-executive Directors will
continue to bring benefits to the Group and would
recommend Mr. LEUNG Shu Sun Sunny and Mr. YU Kou
for re-election at the AGM.

A separate resolution to be approved by the
Shareholders will be proposed to re-elect Mr. YU Kou
and Mr. LEUNG Shu Sun Sunny as independent non-
executive Directors of the Company.

Biographical details of Mr. LEUNG Shu Sun Sunny and
Mr. YU Kou are set out in the section headed “Directors
and Senior Management” in this report.
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(iv) Responsibilities and contributions of

the Board

The Board, with the assistance from the senior
management, forms the core management team of the
Company. The Board takes the overall responsibility for
the management of the Company, formulating the
business strategies development plan of the Company,
making decisions on important issues, including but not
limited to substantial mergers and acquisitions and
disposals, Directors’ appointments and significant
operational and financial matters, and reviewing and
approving of annual and interim results and reports of
the Company. The senior management is responsible for
executing the Board policies and strategies, including
the provision of monthly updates of the Group’s
performance, position and prospects to the Board to
enable the Board and each of the Directors to deliver
and discharge their duties under the Listing Rules. Daily
management, administration and operations of the
Company are delegated to the management team of the
Company. The Board has timely and full access to all
relevant information of the Company and may, upon
request, seek independent professional advices in
appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses,
for discharging their duties to the Company. The
Directors shall disclose the details of the companies in
which they hold offices. The Board also has access to
the advice and services of the company secretary and
the company secretary provides advice and services and
reports to the Board to ensure the Board complies with
all the Board procedures and all applicable rules and
regulations. Company secretary notifies the Board of rule
amendments and updates in respect of corporate
governance practices to assist the Directors to fulfill their
responsibilities.
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TEE

(v)

(vi)

aHE ()

Financial reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for
preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2022, which should give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group, and ensure that they
are prepared in accordance with the statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards. The
financial statements of the Company and the Group for
the Year were prepared on a going concern basis. The
Audit Committee has reviewed and recommended the
Board to adopt the audited accounts for the Year. The
statements of the Auditors with regard to their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the
Company are set out in the Independent Auditors’
Report on pages 111 to 114 of this report.

Relationship among members of the
Board

Mr. WANG Di (resigned with effect from 14 February
2023), the former chairman and a non-executive Director
of the Company is the son of Mr. WANG Yong, a former
non-executive Director of the Company (resigned with
effect from 5 July 2019). Save as disclosed, there is no
relationship (including financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationship(s)) between any of the
Directors or chief executive officer during the Year. Each
of Mr. WANG Yong, Mr. WANG Di and Mr. SUN Xinhu,
among others, have entered into a voting agreement in
respect of their shares held in Xiwang Holdings dated 27
September 2011 and a supplemental voting agreement
dated 7 February 2012. Under these agreements, each
of the shareholders of Xiwang Holdings shall only vote,
when in the capacity of a shareholder of Xiwang
Holdings, in accordance with the instruction of Mr.
WANG Yong at any shareholders meetings of Xiwang
Holdings.
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(vii) Continuous professional development

of Directors

Induction materials of comprehensive guidance on
directors’ duties and liabilities are provided to Directors
once they join the Board. Senior management of the
Company provides briefings to all Directors for updates
of their knowledge and skills of the industry of the
Company. Company secretary provides updates of or
amendments to the Listing Rules and other statutory
regulations for Directors’ fulfillment of their responsibilities
and duties in the Company. During the Year, the
Company provided the Directors with written materials
for the updates of corporate governance practices,
especially relating to the latest corporate governance
rules and board of directors and directors’ guide. All
Directors have confirmed they have studied the materials
provided by the Company.
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ExER

]S (E)

(viii) Evaluation of the Board

The Board distributed self-evaluation questionnaire to
the Directors during the Year to evaluate the overall
performance of the Board. The Chairman examined the
operations of the Board and its members along with its
effectiveness, quality of decision and strategy making,
and its relationship with the executive management.
Directors’ recommendations have been analysed,
discussed and prioritised.

The Board is generally satisfied with the current Board
composition. The Board comprised of members with
diversified background ranging from accountant, lawyer
to seasoned managers. The Board at present has three
committees and performed their duties effectively.
Succession planning is in place to ensure that the
strategy of the Group can be fulfilled and performed as
expected.

Executive Directors, being the employees of the Group,
are subject to monthly evaluation which covers their
punctuality and work completed during the previous
month. The Chairman of the Board will evaluate and
comment to help executive Directors understand the
quality of work completed in the current month.
Performance discussion is carried out on an ongoing
basis and a formal evaluation is conducted at least once
a year to review executive Directors’ overall performance,
achievements, and areas in need of improvement. Salary
review would be based on individual’s performance and
subject to the Group’s discretion and the recommendation
from the Remuneration Committee.

The determination of remuneration packages of the
Directors takes into consideration of the factors such as
time commitment and responsibilities of the Directors
and by reference to the level of emoluments normally
paid by a listed company in Hong Kong to directors of
comparable calibre and job responsibilities so as to
ensure a fair and competitive remuneration package as
is fit and appropriate. At present, all executive Directors
are not entitled to director’s fee for working as the
executive Directors of the Company. The Board will
review this practice if there is a change in the
responsibilities of the executive Directors.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

As at the date of this report, Mr. ZHANG Jian is the chairman
of the Company who is principally responsible for the
formulation of plans and policies of the Group and Mr. ZHANG
is also the chief executive officer of the Company. During the
Year, Mr. WANG Di was the chairman of the Board and a non-
executive Director. Effective from 14 February 2023, Mr.
WANG Di ceased to be a non-executive Director and chairman
of the Company and Mr. ZHANG Jian, an executive Director
and the chief executive officer of the Company, was appointed
as chairman of the Company.

The New Code Provision C.2.1 stipulates that the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. Following the
appointment of Mr. ZHANG as the chairman, Mr. ZHANG
assumes the dual roles of the chairman and the chief
executive officer of the Company. The Board believes that
having the same individual in both roles as the chairman and
the chief executive officer will continue to ensure that the
Company has consistent leadership and the ability to make
and implement the overall strategy of the Company effectively.
The Board believes that this structure does not compromise
the balance of power and authority between the Board and
the management of the Company. The Board will regularly
review the effectiveness of this structure to ensure that it is
appropriate to the Company’s circumstances.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Group has established the following board committees in
compliance with the CG Code. Independent non-executive
Directors constitute majority of members of these committees
appointed by the Board. The terms of reference of these
committees based on the CG Code are posted on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. Sufficient
resources are provided to the Board committees for their
discharge of their duties. They are able to seek independent
professional advice, at the Company’s expenses, upon
reasonable requests and under appropriate circumstances.

C.
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(i)

aHE ()

Audit Committee

In accordance with the written terms of reference of the
Audit Committee, all members of the Audit Committee
are non-executive Directors with majority of the members
being independent non-executive Directors. At least one
of them shall be an independent non-executive Director
with appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise as required
under the Listing Rules. Former partner of the
Company’s existing external auditor from time to time
may not act as a member of the Audit Committee for a
period of at least two years from the date of his ceasing
(a) to be a partner of the firm or (b) to have any financial
interest in the firm, whichever is later. As at 31 December
2022, the members of the Audit Committee comprised
Mr. LEUNG Shu Sun Sunny (chairman), Mr. LI Bangguang
and Mr. YU Kou, who are all independent non-executive
Directors. The chairman of the Audit Committee has the
appropriate professional qualifications as required under
the Listing Rules and none of the members of the Audit
Committee was a former partner of the Company’s
existing Auditors. The primary responsibilities of the
Audit Committee are to monitor the integrity of the
Group’s financial statements and reports and review
significant financial reporting judgements contained in
them, to exercise independent judgment in reviewing
and supervising the Company’s financial reporting
process and internal control procedures, to provide
recommendations to the Board for the improvements of
the Group’s financial reporting system and internal control
procedures and system, overseeing the independence
and performance of the external auditors of the
Company and to provide recommendations to the Board
for the appointment and renewal of external auditors.
The Audit Committee also supervises the internal
investigation and reviewing of the anti-corruption policy
and system and the whistleblowing policy and systems
and other arrangements for employees of the Company
to raise concerns about any possible inappropriate
matters related to the Group. The terms of reference of
the Audit Committee are available on the Company’s
website and the website of the Stock Exchange. Three
meetings were held by the Audit Committee during the
Year, including 2 meetings with the Auditors for audit
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

planning and annual results. During the Year, the Audit
Committee reviewed the Company’s financial reporting
system and internal control procedures. The Audit
Committee reviewed and recommended the Board to
adopt the audited accounts and final results
announcement for the year ended 31 December 2021
and the unaudited accounts and interim results
announcement for the six months ended 30 June 2022.
It has also reviewed and recommended the Board for the
re-appointment of external auditors. The Audit
Committee has reviewed the Company’s audited annual
results for the Year at the meeting held on 24 March
2023 and its updates on the annual results on 3 April
2028.

Remuneration Committee

In accordance with the written terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee, majority of members of the
Remuneration Committee shall be independent non-
executive Directors, with the chairman must be an
independent non-executive Director. The terms of
reference of the Remuneration Committee are available
on the Company’s website and the website of the Stock
Exchange. As at 31 December 2022, Mr. LI Bangguang
(chairman), Mr. WANG Di and Mr. YU Kou are members
of the Remuneration Committee, and Mr. LI Bangguang
and Mr. YU Kou are independent non-executive
Directors of the Company. As Mr. WANG Di ceased to
be a Director from 14 February 2023, Mr. LEUNG Shu
Sun Sunny was appointed as a member of the
Remuneration Committee on the same day. As at the
date of this report, all the members of the Remuneration
Committee are independent non-executive Directors.

The primary responsibilities of the Remuneration
Committee are to make recommendations to the Board on
the policy and structure of the Company for all directors
and senior management remuneration, assess the
performance of executive directors, review and approve
the terms of executive Directors’ service contracts and
to review and recommend to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual executive director
and senior management, by reference to the duties,
responsibilities, experience and qualifications of each
candidate. The Remuneration Committee also
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administers and oversees the Company’s Share Option
Scheme from time to time, and reviews and approves
the granting of share options to any staff of the Group.
No material matter related to the share scheme under
Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules were required to be
reviewed or approved by the Remuneration Committee
during the Year.

Remuneration Policy

— The Board has taken into consideration a number
of relevant factors when considering remuneration
adjustments and annual bonuses, such as making
references to the prevailing market conditions,
local market practice, salaries paid by comparable
companies, the financial performance of the Group,
the levels of emolument of existing staff of the
Company, job responsibilities, duties and scope,
performance of individuals and the market demand
for their skills. The Board seeks to obtain a balance
of all the abovementioned factors.

—  The Share Option Scheme is maintained for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to
eligible participants for their contribution or
potential contribution to the Group so as to
encourage them to participate in the long-term
development of the Group.

— No individual or any other of his or her associates
should participate in deciding his or her own
remuneration.

—  Each Director would sign an employment contract
or appointment letter containing specific terms
such as director’s fee and length of employment
when he or she joined the Board. The employment
contract or appointment letter will be reviewed and
approved by the Remuneration Committee.

Two meetings were held by the Remuneration
Committee during the Year, (i) to review and recommend
to the Board the remuneration packages of the Directors
and company secretary, and (ii) to review and approve
the revised terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee.

The remuneration of the Directors and key management
personnel are set out in Notes 8 and 34, respectively, to
the Company’s consolidated financial statements for the
Year as set out in this report.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

(iii) Nomination Committee

In accordance with the written terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee, majority of members of the
Nomination Committee shall be independent non-
executive Directors, with the chairman must be the
chairman of the Board or an independent non-executive
Director. The terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee are available on the Company’s website and
website of the Stock Exchange. As at 31 December
2022, Mr. LI Bangguang (chairman), Mr. WANG Di and
Mr. YU Kou are members of the Nomination Committee,
and Mr. LI Bangguang and Mr. YU Kou are independent
non-executive Directors of the Company. As Mr. WANG
Di ceased to act as a Director with effect from 14
February 2023, Mr. LEUNG Shu Sun Sunny was
appointed as a member of the Nomination Committee
on the same day. As at the date of this report, all the
members of the Nomination Committee are independent
non-executive Directors.

The primary responsibilities of the Nomination Committee
are to determine the policy for the nomination of
directors, review the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the
Board at least annually, make recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board to complement the
Company’s corporate strategy, and make
recommendations to the Board on the nominees for
appointment as directors and senior management of the
Group, by reference to the experience and qualification
of each candidate, and in respect of the nomination of
any proposed independent non-executive Directors, by
reference to their eligibility, the perspective, skills and
experience that the proposed independent non-executive
Director can bring to the Board, and his/her contribution
to diversity of the Board and ability to devote sufficient
time to the Board and Board committees.
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The Nomination Committee is also responsible for
ensuring that the Director selection process is
transparent and fair, and that it considers a broad range
of candidates who are outside the Board’s circle of
contacts and in accordance with the Company’s board
diversity policy. The Nomination Committee is also
responsible for developing and maintaining a policy
concerning diversity of Board members, reviewing
periodically and disclosing the policy on diversity or a
summary of the policy in the Company’s corporate
governance report and monitoring the implementation of
the board diversity policy and reviewing the same as
appropriate. The Board has also adopted a board
diversity policy. Below is a summary of the policy:

“The Board recognises that board diversity is an
essential element contributing to the sustainable
development of the Company and enhances Board
effectiveness and corporate governance. In determining
the optimum composition of the Board, all Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria,
with due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.
The Board aims to maintain a board which has an
appropriate mix of diversity, skills, experience and
expertise, as well as a balanced composition of
executive and non-executive directors (including
independent non-executive directors) so that there is
also independent element on the Board.”

The Board’s policy or a summary of the policy on board
diversity, including any measurable objectives that it has
set for implementing the policy, and progress on
achieving those objectives, as required under Para J(a)
of Part A of Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, are as
follows:

The Group has followed the Company’s board diversity
policy, which highlights the benefits of diversity with
respect to the Board’s effectiveness and decision-
making process, its succession planning and
development, and attainment of the Group’s strategic
objectives. It also sets out the Board’s commitment to
gender diversity and other diversity aspects, with the
ultimate goal of achieving gender parity on the Board.
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During the Year and up to the date of this report, the
Group had one female Director, and the Board will take
opportunities to increase the proportion of female
members over time as and when suitable candidates are
identified.

The Board considered its diversity of gender as at the
date of this report was appropriate and no additional
measurable objective was necessary in this respect. The
Company will ensure that gender diversity is taken into
account when recruiting staff members of mid to senior
level and ensure that sufficient resources are available
for providing appropriate trainings and career
development to develop a pipeline of potential
successors to the Board and maintain gender diversity in
the future.

As at 31 December 2022, as set out in the section
headed “Employees” in the ESG Report, among 3,202
employees (including senior management) of the Group,
the percentages of male employees and female
employees are approximately 89% and 11%,
respectively. Due to the industry characteristics, there
are relatively fewer female workers in the steel industry in
the PRC. The Board considers that the Group’s
workforce (including senior management) is composed
of an appropriate gender diversity. The Group will
continue to increase the ratio of female workers in the
future with a target of 13% in the next five years.

The Nomination Committee is also responsible for
developing and maintaining a policy for the nomination
of Board members which includes the nomination
procedures and the process and criteria adopted by the
Nomination Committee or the Company to identify,
select and recommend candidates for directorship
during the Year, and reviewing periodically and disclosing
the policy or a summary of the policy in the Company’s
corporate governance report and the progress made
towards achieving the objectives as set out in the policy.
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Nomination Policy

The Company has adopted a nomination policy which
sets out the following selection criteria and process and
the board succession planning considerations in relation
to the nomination and appointment of Directors of the
Company and aims to ensure that the Board has a
balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the Company and the continuity of the
Board and appropriate leadership at the Board level:

° Character and integrity;

° Qualifications including professional qualifications,
skills, knowledge and experience that are relevant
to the Company’s business and corporate strategy;

° Willingness to devote adequate time to discharge
duties as a member of the Board;

° Board diversity policy and any measurable
objectives adopted for achieving diversity on the
Board;

° Requirement for the Board to have independent
directors in accordance with the Listing Rules and
whether the candidates would be considered
independent with reference to the independence
guidelines set out in the Listing Rules; and

° Such other perspectives appropriate to the
Company’s business or as suggested by the
Board.

The above factors are for reference only, and not meant
to be exhaustive or decisive. The Nomination Committee
has the discretion to nominate any person to the Board,
as it considers appropriate.
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Nomination procedures

(@)

For filling a casual vacancy, the Nomination
Committee shall make recommendations for the
Board’s consideration and approval. For proposing
candidates to stand for election at a general
meeting, the Nomination Committee shall make
nominations to the Board for its consideration and
recommendation. The Board shall have the ultimate
responsibility for selection and appointment of
Directors.

The Nomination Committee shall, upon receipt of
the proposal on appointment of new director and
the biographical information (or relevant details) of
the candidate, evaluate such candidate based on
the criteria as set out in the selection criteria to
determine whether such candidate is qualified for
directorship.

If the process yields one or more desirable
candidates, the Nomination Committee shall rank
them by order of preference based on the needs of
the Company and reference check of each
candidate (where applicable).

For any person that is nominated by a Shareholder
for election as a director at the general meeting of
the Company pursuant to the Articles, the
Nomination Committee shall evaluate such
candidate based on the criteria as set out in the
selection criteria to determine whether such
candidate is qualified for directorship and where
appropriate, the Nomination Committee and/or the
Board shall make recommendation to the
Shareholders in respect of the proposed election of
director at the general meeting.
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Re-election of Directors at General Meetings

The Nomination Committee shall review the overall
contribution and service to the Company of the retiring
Director(s) including his/her attendance of the Board
meetings and, where applicable, the Company’s general
meetings, and the level of participation and performance
on the Board.

The Nomination Committee shall also review and
determine whether the retiring Director(s) continue to
meet the selection criteria aforementioned.

Two meetings were held by the Nomination Committee
during the Year. The Nomination Committee performed
annual review of the structure of the Board, and the
appointment of company secretary, and the
independence of the independent non-executive
Directors of the Company.

The Nomination Committee has reviewed the
implementation and effectiveness of the Company’s
board diversity policy and the nomination policy and
considered that they remain effective and appropriate for
the Company.
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(iv) Attendance record of the Board and

Board Committee meetings and
General Meetings

All Directors are given an opportunity to include matters
in the agenda for the Board meetings.

All Directors are entitled to have access to Board papers
and related materials. Management is responsible for
providing the Board and Board Committees with
adequate and timely information. These papers and
related materials shall be in a form and quality sufficient
to enable the Board to make informed decisions on
matters placed before it.

The details of Directors’ attendance of the Board and
Board Committee meetings and general meetings held
during the Year are set out in the following table:
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Audit Remuneration  Nomination
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83 g3 6| 6 BRAE
Executive Directors: HTES:
Mr. ZHANG Jian RELE
(chief executive officer) (f784%) 2222 NANER NATER  NATER 2/2
Mr. SUN Xinhu BERLE 22122 NATEH NATER  NATER 2/2
Ms. LI Hai Xia FRERL 2222 NATER NATER  NATER 2/2
Non-executive Director: FHTES:
Mr. WANG Di (Chairman) THREE(EE) 2222 NANER 2/2 2/2 2/2
Independent Non-executive BUFHTES:
Directors:
Mr. LEUNG Shu Sun Sunny PR EE 22/22 33 NATER  NATER 2/2
Mr. YU Kou Fngs 22/22 3/3 2/2 2/2 2/2
Mr. LI Bangguang FRAEEE 22122 3/3 2/2 2/2 2/2
Besides the above Board meetings, the then chairman of kREisEEggzi KREES

the Board, Mr. WANG Di held one Directors’ meeting
with the independent non-executive Directors without
the presence of other Directors during the Year.
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E. REMUNERATION OF SENIOR E.
MANAGEMENT

The number of non-director senior management (whose
biographical details are set out in the section headed
“Directors and Senior Management” in this report) whose
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

SREEEME

BMENTFUTHENIIEEESREE
B(HENBEEFBIRNARE [ES
ERERE] —&) ASuT

Number of
senior
management

EREEBAY

Nil to RMB1,000,000 & AK#1,000,0007T 3

F. AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION F.

A breakdown of the remuneration of the Group’s external
auditors is as follows:

2 SR B ==

AEENINEZBETNSAMAMT -

For the year ended
31 December 2022

HE 20225
12A31HLEFE
(RMB’000)
(AREFTT)

Service rendered PRt AR 7%
Annual audit services FEEZRY 1,500
Non-audit services FEBEZRS 564

The Audit Committee reflected their views to the Board that
the remuneration paid/payable to the Company’s Auditors was
reasonable and fair in all circumstances and there had been
no major disagreement between the Auditors and the
management of the Company during the Year.

In respect of each significant non-audit service assignment
performed by the Auditors during the Year, it mainly included
the preparation of the comfort letters in connection with the
working capital sufficiency and statement of indebtedness for
preparing the circulars of the Company.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

Anti-corruption Policy and Whistleblowing
Policy

The Group has set up the anti-corruption policy and
whistleblowing policy in order to promote and support the
fairness in all business transactions of the Group. For details
of the Group’s anti-corruption policy and whistleblowing
policy, please refer to the section headed “Anti-corruption” in
the ESG Report.

Risk Management and Internal Control
Maintaining sound risk management and internal control
systems is pivotal to the fulfilment of the Group’s business
objectives and its long-term sustainable growth. The Board
acknowledges its overall responsibility for evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to
take in achieving the Group’s strategic objectives, and
ensuring that the Company establishes and maintains
appropriate and effective risk management and internal control
systems to safeguard shareholders’ investment and the
Group’s assets. To this end, the Board continuously reviews
the effectiveness and makes improvements in its risk
management and internal control framework. During the Year,
the Group had set up an internal audit department and
conducted a comprehensive review of the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control and risk
management, resulting in an enhanced enterprise risk
management (“ERM”) framework through a robust and
inclusive system that manages risks at all levels of the
organisation.

In recent years, there has been increasing recognition of the
importance of ESG factors in risk management. ESG-related
risks can have significant impacts on a company’s financial
performance, reputation, and ability to operate. The Group’s
risk management and internal control processes therefore take
into account potential impacts of ESG factors on the Group’s
operations, reputation, and financial performance.
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Risk Management Framework

The Group’s risk management system is aligned with the
internal control framework of international body consisting of
the five elements, namely, the control environment, risk
assessment, control activities, information and communication,
and monitoring. The risk management and internal control
systems of the Company are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives of the
Group and can provide reasonable, but no absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss. The systems are made of
two essential features, the risk governance structure and
process.

Risk Governance Structure

The Group’s risk governance structure is based on the “3 lines
of defence” model comprised of day-to-day operational
management and control, risk and compliance oversight, and
independent assurance. The ERM policy formalised by the
Group clearly defines roles and responsibilities of each of the
multiple layers of the structure, including the Board, the Audit
Committee, management, department heads, operational level
and internal audit.

Risk Management Process and Scope — The Group’s ERM
approach is a structured mechanism and a continuous
process of identifying, evaluating, prioritising, managing and
monitoring of the risks that the Group faces. The key process
of the Group’s ERM is illustrated below:
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The ERM adopted by the Group is embedded in its strategy
development, business planning and day-to-day operations.
The Group adopts a control and risk self-assessment
methodology and continuously assesses and manages its risk
profile on a regular basis. Risks that are relevant to the
Group’s business are identified, assessed and ranked
according to their likelihood, financial consequences and
reputational impact on the Group. The ERM system uses risk
indicators and red flags to monitor the priority risks identified.
As a process used to review the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control system, risk owners are
required to submit risk alerts with risk mitigation plan promptly
and regular risk reports are presented to the management and
the Audit Committee for ongoing review and monitoring. The
quality of the management’s on-going monitoring of risks and
of internal control system is considered satisfactory. The key
risks identified, managed and monitored during the Year
included sale and marketing process and material storage.
Action plans were formulated and implemented during the
Year to address the areas of concern effectively. The internal
audit department has risk management and internal control
reviews covering operational, financial and compliance
controls of the Group. The Group’s internal audit function
reports directly to the Audit Committee. It carries out
independent reviews of key business processes and controls
in accordance with its annual audit plan approved by the Audit
Committee. The head of internal audit meets the Audit
Committee at least once a year to report the key findings and
recommendations for improvement of audit issues and enable
it to assess the effectiveness of control and risk management
of the Company.
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Annual Review of System Effectiveness

The Board, through the Audit Committee, had conducted
annual review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems for the year ended
31 December 2022. Heads of key business units and functional
departments are required to confirm the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control system of their responsible
areas during the Year. The Board has received a confirmation
from the management on the effectiveness of the systems and
no significant areas of concern have been identified and
considered the systems and the Company’s processes for
financial reporting and Listing Rule compliance effective and
adequate. During the annual review, the Audit Committee has
also considered the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the
Company’s internal audit, accounting and financial reporting
function is in place.

The task of annual review of the internal audit of the Company
during the Year had been completed and had the following
results:

Business risks: The business risks the Group mainly faces in
respect of its operations in the PRC include macro-
environmental risks such as the epidemic, supply chain risks
and products risks. The Board regularly reviews and identifies
potential risks of the Group, and adjusts strategies and policies
in a timely manner, to ensure that the business risks are
controlled and managed.

Financial risks: The Group has adopted financial risk
management policies to control the Group’s financial risk
exposure, such as interest rate risks, liquidity risks and financial
reporting risks. Also, the Board monitors the financial results
and key operating statistics with the assistance of the Group’s
internal finance department on a regular basis.

Compliance risks: The Group has adopted internal procedures
to monitor the Group’s compliance risks to ensure that the
Group has in all material respects complied with the laws and
regulations of the regions where the Group conducts business
in particular the environmental risks and safety risks.
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INSIDE INFORMATION

The Company takes seriously its obligations under the Part
XIVA of the Securities and Futures Ordinance and the Listing
Rules with respect to procedures and internal controls for the
handling and dissemination of inside information. The Group’s
disclosure policy sets out guidelines and procedures to the
Directors and officers of the Group to ensure inside
information of the Group is to be disseminated to the public in
equal and timely manner. Under the Disclosure Policy, the
Company’s disclosure team comprising executive Directors
and members of senior management have the overall
delegated authority to decide whether the information reported
is inside information and requires disclosure and refers the
subject matter to the Board for decision. Measures are in
place to preserve the confidentiality of inside information and
to ensure that its recipients recognise their obligations to
maintain confidentiality. In communicating with external
parties, only designated officers are authorised to respond to
enquiries in allocated areas of issues. Briefing session is held
regularly for officers to facilitate their understanding and
compliance with the Company’s disclosure policy.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company is a full-time
employee of the Group and has day-to-day knowledge of the
Company’s affairs. The company secretary provides advice
and services and reports to the Board in relation to the
compliance with all the Board procedures and all applicable
rules and regulations. The company secretary notifies the
Board of rule amendments and updates in respect of
corporate governance practices, to assist the Directors to fulfill
their responsibilities. The Company has appointed Ms. FUNG
Nga Fong (“Ms. FUNG”) as its company secretary on 6 May
2022 Ms. FUNG has sufficient relevant professional training
during the Year as required under Rule 3.29 of the Listing
Rules.

Note: Mr. YU Chi Kit has tendered his resignation as the company secretary
with effect from 1 April 2022 due to his personal career development.
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DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITY
INSURANCE

The Company has taken out liability insurance to indemnify its
Directors and senior management for their liabilities arising
from the performance of their duties. The insurance coverage
is reviewed by the Company on an annual basis. No claim has
been made against the Directors or senior management of the
Company during the Year.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company adopted its dividend policy on 23 November
2017. It aims to manage its capital efficiently and generate
long-term sustainable value for Shareholders, while balancing
operational, regulatory, rating agency and policyholder
requirements. It also aims to grow its dividends in line with its
business growth and to share the benefits of its success with
the Shareholders.

The Company intends to share its profits with Shareholders in
the form of annual dividend in an amount that is expected to
be of 30% of the Group’s annual consolidated net profit
attributable to the owners of the Company, subject to the
criteria set out below:

The declaration and payment of dividends shall remain to be
determined at the sole discretion of the Board and subject to

any restrictions under the Laws of Hong Kong and the Articles.

In proposing any dividend payout, the Board shall take into
account of the following factors, inter alia:

° the general financial conditions of the Group;

o the Group’s current and future operations;

o liquidity position and capital requirements of the Group;

o dividends received from the Company’s subsidiaries;
and

° any other factors that the Board deems appropriate.
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Any final dividends declared by the Company must be
approved by an ordinary resolution of the Shareholders at an
annual general meeting and must not exceed the amount
recommended by the Board. No assurance that a dividend will
be proposed or declared in any given period.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company’s Shareholders’ communication policy is to
maintain transparency and provide timely information of the
Group’s material developments to Shareholders and investors.
General meetings of the Company are formal channels for
communication between Shareholders and the Board. The
chairman of the Board and the Board committees are invited
to attend the general meetings to have direct communication
with the Shareholders. External auditors of the Company also
attend annual general meetings to answer Shareholders’
enquires where appropriate. To safeguard the Shareholders’
interests and rights, separate resolution should be proposed
for each substantially separate issue at the general meetings,
including the election of individual director. All resolutions put
forward at the general meetings will be voted by poll pursuant
to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange,
respectively, after each general meeting. Save as disclosed in
this corporate governance report, the Board considers that
the Company was in compliance with all applicable code
provisions set out in the CG Code throughout the Year.
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During the Year, an annual general meeting and an
extraordinary general meeting was held on 14 June 2022 and
23 December 2022, respectively, at which all the Directors
attended either by person or by means of electronic facilities
to communicate with the Shareholders of the Company.
Notices and circulars related to the general meetings had
been properly and timely despatched to the Shareholders. In
addition, all corporate communications and regulatory
announcements were published by the Company on its
website and the website of the Stock Exchange in a timely
manner. Having considered the multiple channels of
communication and above specific measures in place, the
Board considers that the Company’s shareholders
communication policy is effective during the Year.

During the Year, pursuant to clause 50.2 of the Articles and
section 566 of the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622 of the
Laws of Hong Kong), shareholders holding not less than 5%
of the total voting rights of all the members having a right to
vote at general meeting of the Company may by written
requisition to the Board for convening and putting forward
proposals at an extraordinary general meeting. The
procedures for Shareholders to convene extraordinary general
meetings and put forward proposal are as follows:

1. The requisitionist(s) must sign a written request stating
the objects of the meeting to be convened, and deposit
the same at the registered office of the Company
situated at Unit 2110, 21/F, Harbour Centre, 25 Harbour
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for the attention of the
company secretary. The written request may consist of
several documents in like form, each signed by one or
more requisitionist(s).

2. The Company will then verify the particulars of the
requisitionist(s) in their written request with the
Company’s share registrar, and upon confirmation from
the Company’s share registrar that the written request is
in order, the company secretary will arrange with the
Board to convene an extraordinary general meeting by
serving sufficient notice to all the registered Shareholders
in accordance with all the relevant statutory and
regulatory requirements and the provisions in the
Articles.
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3. In the event that the written request has been verified as
not in order, the Shareholders concerned will be advised
of this outcome and accordingly, an extraordinary
general meeting will not be convened as requested.

4., If the Directors do not within 21 days from the date of
the deposit of the written request proceed duly to
convene an extraordinary general meeting for a day not
more than 28 days after the date on which the notice
convening the meeting is given, the requisitionist(s), or
any of them representing more than one half of the total
voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene an
extraordinary general meeting, but any extraordinary
general meeting so convened shall not be held after the
expiration of 3 months from the date of deposit of the
written request.

The investor relations and corporate communication
department of the Company maintains regular communication
and dialogues with shareholders, investors and analysts. It can
be accessed during normal business hour by phone
(Telephone: 86 543 813 8066/852 3188 4518). Shareholders
can also send their written enquiries or suggestions on the
business of the Company to company secretary at the
Company’s business address in Hong Kong. The Board and
senior management of the Company will seriously consider the
Shareholders’ enquiries and address them accordingly in
accordance with the Listing Rules. Shareholders and investors
can also visit the Company’s website at www.xiwangsteel.com
and the Stock Exchange’s website for the Company’s
announcements, circulars, financial information, corporate
governance practices, annual reports, interim reports and
other corporate information and updates of business
development and operations. Pursuant to rule 13.90 of the
Listing Rules, the Company has published on the Company’s
website and the website of the Stock Exchange its Articles.
During the Year, no amendments were made to the
constitutional documents of the Company.

The procedures for proposing a candidate for election as a
Director are available on the website of the Company.
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M. COMPLIANCE OF NON-COMPETITION M. BF A RBIRE

66

UNDERTAKING

The Company has entered into a deed of non-competition
dated 30 January 2012 (the “Non-competition Deed”) with
each of the controlling shareholders of the Company named
therein (the “Controlling Shareholders”), pursuant to which
each of the Controlling Shareholders has jointly and severally
undertaken to the Company (for itself and for the benefit of
other members of the Group) that each of them will not, and
procure that its/his/her associates will not, whether as
principal or agent and whether undertaken directly or indirectly
(including through any of their respective associate, subsidiary,
partnership, joint venture or other contractual arrangement)
and whether for profit or otherwise, carry on, engage, invest,
participate or otherwise be interested in any business which
is, in each case, the same as, similar to or in direct or indirect
competition with any business relating to steel manufacturing
and such other business conducted or carried on by any
member of the Group from time to time. Details of the Non-
competition Deed are set out in the paragraph headed “Non-
competition Undertaking” in the section headed “Relationship
with Controlling Shareholders” of the prospectus of the
Company dated 13 February 2012.

The Company has received the annual confirmation from all of
its Controlling Shareholders regarding their respective
compliance with the terms of the Non-competition Deed. The
independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
annual confirmation from the Controlling Shareholders relating
to the compliance with the non-competition undertaking by
the Controlling Shareholders under the Non-competition Deed
and are satisfied that the same has been complied with by the
Controlling Shareholders in accordance with the Non-
competition Deed. For details of the corporate governance
measures adopted by the Company to manage the conflicts of
interests arising from any competing business and to
safeguard the interests of the Shareholders, please refer to the
paragraph headed “Corporate Governance Measures” in the
section headed “Relationship with Controlling Shareholders” of
the prospectus of the Company dated 13 February 2012.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO
GOING CONCERN (“GOING CONCERN
UNCERTAINTY?”)

Details of the Going Concern Uncertainty

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group had
incurred a net loss of approximately RMB1,329 million and the
Group’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets by
approximately RMB6,549 million as at 31 December 2022. At
the same time, as at 31 December 2022, the Group was in
negotiation with one bond subscriber about the redemption
schedule of the Bonds and the loan repayment schedule and
consequently, the related approximately outstanding bonds of
approximately RMB100 million (the “Outstanding
Borrowings”) became repayable on demand. In addition, as
at 31 December 2022, bank and other borrowings of the
Group which were past due within one year amounted to
approximately RMB3,573 million. These conditions, together
with other matters disclosed under the section headed “Basis
for Disclaimer of Opinion — Multiple uncertainties relating to
going concern basis” in the Independent Auditors’ Report and
in Note 2.1 to the Company’s consolidated financial
statements for the Year as set out in this report, indicate the
existence of material uncertainties which may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Accordingly, the Auditors, HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Limited, considered that a material uncertainty exists that may
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern.
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Mitigating measures of the Company

In order to improve the Group’s liquidity and cash flows to
sustain the Group as a going concern, the Company has
implemented, or is in the process of implementing, the
following key plans and measures (the “Action Plan”):

(i) Upon the gradual stabilisation of economic situation in
the PRC, management has benchmarked to latest price
level in the steel product market, together with rigorous
cost control measures over its production, to generate
enhanced positive operating cash flows. The Group has
also reduced the production of ordinary steel which has
less demand in the market and has lower profit margin.
The Group has deployed more resources in enhancing
its production works in special steel which has a higher
profit margin.

(i) The Group has requested its lenders to extend the
repayment dates of the outstanding bank and other
borrowings falling due in the next twelve months for at
least another twelve months upon their maturity during
the coming year, all of which were included in the
Group’s current liabilities as at 31 December 2022. The
Directors are confident in further extending the
repayment dates of the principals of the bank and other
borrowings, while the terms had not been finalised as at
the date of approving these consolidated financial
statements.

(i)  The Group has received a written confirmation dated
3 April 20283 from Xiwang Group Company, the
Company’s ultimate holding company and the controlling
shareholder, that it will provide continuing financial
support to the Group to enable the Group to meet its
financial obligations as and when they fall due for the
foreseeable future, and agreed not to demand
repayment of any of the amounts due to Xiwang Group
by the Group in the next twelve months from the date of
this report.

XIWANG SPECIAL STEEL COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022

RA R RN IE K

RUEARARENRDESRRSRE
MR AEERELE  ARREE
Mk IEE B A A T = 25+ 8 RIEM(T1T
BEtaEl))

() FEKEZIRE EEECMN
HEE MM SR ERKFES
EE WA o B SRR Y
PR SIIE - WELBREE
REeneE - AEETERT S
K& BB REE & E
e ARBERREZ BIR NG
HMBEERR2 O FMEETE -

iy AEEBEERKEEZRABERRK
+ZERARNE B REERITR
H g e iZ R B BE R F 2 5
BELEERT @A MxZE
& I FT AR & B 72022 F 12
A31TEMRESHEE BREESH
ELE—FSERBITREMER
AR S ERE - R ILE T B %
ERAMBHRRED  MREE
BRAMGEEN -

(i) AEBR2023F 438 K EIR
UNEIE- 3 S2d L UNETE: S 3 8 il
ITEBAGNEARER  RRE
1815 B ) A S E R R B RS S 8
EAEEERER RKGENETT
HISNPBET  TREAAR
RERAGPRART=ZM@EA  Tg
BRAEBEETMAEMTTE
B H9FE o



(iv)

(vi)

Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

The Group is currently soliciting different sources of
funds, including additional banking facilities with PRC
financial institutions and strategic institutional investors,
to further support the Group’s funding needs should the
aforesaid operating cash inflows turn out to be less than
the amount forecasted in the Group’s cash flows
forecast prepared by the Group’s management covering
a period of 12 months from 31 December 2022 (the
“Cash Flow Forecast”).

The Group is reviewing the business operations for
various new initiatives such as accelerating the sales of
steel products to new customers and upgrading the
existing products to improve the Group’s profitability and
is implementing various cost control measures to
enhance the control over its costs of operation.

The Group commenced renegotiations of the terms of
defaulted other borrowings and defaulted guaranteed
secured bonds. The Group offered revised repayment
proposals to the relevant lenders and such proposals
had been reviewed by them. As at the date of this report,
the negotiations were still in progress. The Directors are
confident that their negotiations with the lender/
bondholder will ultimately reach a successful conclusion.
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Disclaimer of Opinion Issued by the
Independent Auditors

The matters discussed under the section headed “Basis for
Disclaimer of Opinion — Multiple uncertainties relating to going
concern basis” in the Independent Auditors’ Report and other
matters as described in Note 2.1 to the Company’s
consolidated financial statements for the Year as set out in
this report indicate the existence of material uncertainties
which may cast significant doubt about the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. In particular, the validity of the
going concern assumptions on which the consolidated
financial statements for the Year have been prepared depends
on the outcome of these measures, which are subject to
multiple uncertainties, including:

(i) whether the Group is able to sell its products at the
forecasted selling prices as the Group has benchmarked
to latest price level in the steel product market, and
whether the Group is able to control its operating costs
in the forecast period based on the rigorous cost control
measures planned to be undertaken by the Group over
its production process, and hence whether the Cash
Flow Forecast, which are showing positive operating
cash flows, could be achieved by the Group. This is also
dependent upon the gradual stabilisation of economic
situation in PRC;

(i) whether the Group is able to successfully conclude its
negotiations for extension of the repayment dates of the
outstanding bank and other borrowings which have
fallen due or are falling due in the next twelve months for
at least another twelve months upon their maturity during
the coming year, all of which were included in the
Group’s current liabilities as at 31 December 2022;

(i) whether Xiwang Group Company, the ultimate holding
company and the controlling shareholder, will be able to
provide financial support to the Group despite the fact
that the Group has received a written confirmation dated
3 April 2023 from Xiwang Group Company that it will
provide continuing financial support to the Group to
enable the Group to meet its financial obligations as and
when they fall due for the foreseeable future from the
date of approval for issue of the consolidated financial
statements; and
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(iv)  whether the Group is successful in soliciting different
sources of funds, including additional banking facilities
with PRC financial institutions and strategic institutional
investor, to further support the Group’s funding needs
should the operating cash inflows turn out to be less
than the amount forecasted in the Cash Flow Forecast.

Should the Group be unable to operate as a going concern,
adjustments would have to be made to write down the
carrying values of the Group’s assets to their recoverable
amounts, to provide for any further liabilities which might arise,
and to reclassify non-current assets and non-current liabilities
as current assets and current liabilities, respectively. The
effects of these adjustments have not been reflected in the
Company’s consolidated financial statements for the Year as
set out in this report. In view of the above, the Auditors do not
express an opinion on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the Year.

The Management’s and Audit Committee’s
View on the Disclaimer of Opinion

The Company has considered the rationale of the Auditors
and understood its consideration in arriving at the disclaimer
of opinion. The Directors have reviewed the Group’s Cash
Flow Forecast prepared by the Group’s management covering
a period of 12 months from 31 December 2022. The Directors
have also considered the measures taken or to be taken by
the Group in order to improve the Group’s short-term liquidity
and cash flows, details of which are set out in Note 2.1 to the
Company’s consolidated financial statements in this report.
The Directors are of the opinion that, taking into account the
above-mentioned Action Plan, the Group will have sufficient
working capital to finance its operations and meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due within 12 months from
31 December 2022.
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As at the date of this report, the Directors are of the opinion
that based on the information currently available to them, the
disclaimer of opinion does not have a material actual or
potential impact on the financial position of the Group. The
Group already reviewed its existing bond subscription
agreements, bank loan agreements and other borrowings
agreements, and confirmed that there are no terms or
conditions that require the Group has to immediately repay the
outstanding debts upon the forming of the disclaimer of
opinion by the Company’s auditors in respect of the
Company’s financial statements. As at the date of this report,
no bondholders or lenders requested the Group to settle the
relevant debts owed by the Group to them before their
respective mature dates due to the issuance of the disclaimer
of opinion. The Group’s suppliers and customers also have
not raised questions about the disclaimer of opinion or
reduced or even ceased the transactions with the Group. The
Group’s operations are being carried on as normal.

The Directors are aware of the filing of the Petition against the
Company in respect of an indebtedness allegedly due and
payable by the Company. In response to it, the Company has
already started the negotiation with the petitioner regarding
repayment schedule of the indebtedness. The Directors
revisited the Cash Flow Forecast in light of such Petition and
the outstanding debt thereunder. Taking into account the
outstanding amount and the sources available to the Group, in
particular, the financial support to the Group committed by
Xiwang Group Company and Xiwang Finance, the Directors
are of the view that the Petition shall not have a material
adverse effect on the operations of the Group and it should
not become a material obstacle for the Auditors to remove the
audit disqualification for the year ending 31 December 2023.

In consideration of the aforesaid, the Directors are satisfied
that it is appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the Year on a going concern
basis.
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The Audit Committee has objectively and critically reviewed
the basis for the disclaimer of opinion, the Company’s views
concerning the basis for disclaimer of opinion and measures
taken or to be taken by the Company in addressing the
matters and issues underlying the basis for disclaimer of
opinion. The Audit Committee has also discussed with the
Auditors and management regarding the financial position of
the Group, the measures taken and to be taken by the
Company and the internal system of the Group in continuously
monitoring the liquidity and cash flow needs of the Group. The
Audit Committee has considered the rationale of the Auditors
and understood its consideration in arriving at the disclaimer
of opinion. Based on the above, the Audit Committee agreed
with the Company’s view in respect of the disclaimer of
opinion and the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements for the Year on a going concern basis.

The Audit Committee has carefully reviewed the Petition and
discussed with the management regarding the position of the
Group, the measures taken and to be taken by the Company
in this report. The Audit Committee understood that the
Company will oppose the Petition vigorously.

Notwithstanding the above, significant uncertainties exist as to
whether the management of the Group will be able to achieve
the plans and measures as described above in the Action
Plan. The Group, the Directors and the management will
proactively resolve matters relating to the disclaimer of opinion
throughout the financial year ending 31 December 2023.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESERSHRERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. ZHANG Jian (&)

Mr. ZHANG, aged 41, was appointed as an executive Director and
the chief executive officer of the Company on 14 October 2015. He
was appointed as an authorised representative of the Company with
effect from 1 April 2022 and resigned on 6 May 2022. Mr. ZHANG
was further appointed as the Chairman of the Company on 14
February 2023. He obtained his Bachelor of Engineering from
Yanbian University (i& £ X £) in 2004 and Master of Engineering
from Qilu University of Technology (2 & T % K £)in 2013. He
joined the production department of Shandong Xiwang Sugar from
February 2004 to August 2004. From August 2004 to October
2014, he held several managerial positions including director of
general manager office, manager of supply department, project
manager, deputy managers and general managers within Xiwang
Group and its subsidiaries, including Shandong Xiwang Steel Co.,
Ltd. (LU 3 78 T & & & R 2 7)), Shandong Xiwang Biochemical
Technology Co., Ltd. (I & 75 £ 4 {t &l £ A& BR A 7)), Shandong
Xiwang Sugar, Shandong Youhuo Fructose Co., Ltd. (LU 7 E&)E
EH#EA MR A F)) and Xiwang Pharmaceutical Company Limited (78 E
% % 5 R A 7). Since October 2014, he has been the general
manager of Xiwang Metal Science, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company.

Mr. SUN Xinhu (¥ %)

Mr. SUN, aged 49, was appointed as a non-executive Director in
June 2011 and re-designated to executive Director on 16 April
2015. Mr. Sun has been serving as vice general manager since he
joined Xiwang Group Company in March 2003. Mr. Sun earned his
master’s degree in food science from Southern Yangtze University
(IFEIARE) in July 2004 and bachelor’s degree in food science from
Shandong Polytechnic University (1L % & T 2 £ F3) in July 1997.
Mr. Sun was an executive director of Xiwang Property, a company
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited under stock code 2088, since December 2008 and re-
designated as a non-executive director in July 2012. Mr. Sun has
also been a director of Xiwang Foodstuffs, a company listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange under stock code 000639, since 2010
and the vice chairman of the board of Xiwang Foodstuffs since June
2014. Mr. Sun was the secretary of the board of Xiwang Foodstuffs
from 2010 to October 2013.
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

Ms. LI Hai Xia (Zi&88&)

Ms. LI, aged 41, was appointed as an executive Director of the
Company on 14 October 2015. She graduated from the Party
School of the Central Committee of C.P.C (£ b Jt # ) with a
bachelor degree in Economics and Management in 2009. She
worked in Shandong Xiwang Sugar from December 2003 to July
2015, during which she was the finance manager from May 2013 to
July 2015. She has been the deputy finance general manager of
Xiwang Metal Science since August 2015.

Mr. WANG Chaoqun (E#BE)

Mr. WANG, aged 38, was appointed as an executive Director of the
Company on 14 February 2023. Mr. Wang graduated from Qingdao
Open University (& & MK E) (previously named Qingdao Radio
and Television University (5 5 EEERAE)) in 2007, majoring in
business administration. Since May 2007, he has worked in Xiwang
Metal Science. From November 2014 to August 2022, he has been
a factory manager of Xiwang Metal Science. Since August 2022, he
has been the deputy general manager of Xiwang Metal Science.
Since January 2023, he has held directorship in several subsidiaries
of the Company, including Xiwang Metal Science, Special Steel
Company, Xiwang Recycling Resources and Zhongke Xiwang. Mr.
WANG shall hold office until the forthcoming AGM and shall be
eligible for re-election at such meeting. His appointment will also be
subject to retirement by rotation and the re-election at the annual
general meeting in accordance with the articles of association of the
Company.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Mr. WANG Di (E#R)

Mr. WANG, aged 40, was appointed as a non-executive Director in
November 2007 and was appointed as the chairman of the
Company in October 2014, Mr. WANG resigned as a non-executive
Director and chairman of the Company on 14 February 2023. He is
the son of Mr. WANG Yong, the controlling shareholder and a
former non-executive Director of the Company. He has been serving
as the head of branding of the Group since March 2010. Mr. WANG
attended the bachelor’s degree course of information conflict from
the Electronic Engineering Institute of the Chinese People’s
Liberation Army (FFEI A REE M EE F T2 Z8) from 2001 to 2005.
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ESERGREEE (F)

Mr. WANG joined Xiwang Group in August 2005 and has been in
charge of the international trading business of Xiwang Group for
more than eight years. Mr. WANG has been granted various awards
and honours, including outstanding worker for enterprise education
and training of Shandong Province of the PRC in 2006, labour
model of Binzhou City of Shandong Province of the PRC, labour
model of Shandong Province, the PRC and outstanding
entrepreneur in food industry of Shandong Province of the PRC. He
was appointed as the executive director of Xiwang Property in
November 2010 and the deputy chairman in July 2012, and was re-
designated as the chairman and a non-executive director of Xiwang
Property on 15 July 2013. Mr WANG resigned as a non-executive
director and chairman of Xiwang Property with effect from 14
February 2023. Mr. WANG was appointed an chairman of Xiwang
Group Company in October 2013.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. LEUNG Shu Sun Sunny (2 #7)

Mr. LEUNG, aged 60, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director commencing from 23 February 2012. He is the
chairman of the Audit Committee. Mr. LEUNG was also appointed
as a member of the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee. He has over 20 years’ working experience in, among
other things, accounting, treasury management, budgeting and
corporate finance. He is a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants, an associate member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a member of
Certified General Accountants’ Association of Canada. Mr. LEUNG
is an independent non-executive director of China Arts Financial
Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1572), since October 2016. Mr. LEUNG is
an independent non-executive director of Pan Asia Environmental
Protection Group Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 556), since December 2007. From
2005 to 2007, he served as the financial controller, qualified
accountant and company secretary of Xiwang Property. From 2001
to date, he was a director of a company providing accounting, tax
and corporate finance services. From 1999 to 2001, he held key
finance position in a listed company in Hong Kong. From 1998 to
1999, he was a finance director of a company principally engaged
in the provision of network infrastructure solutions. From 1993 to
1998, he was the financial controller of a company principally
engaged in property investment, trading and securities. From 1987
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

to 1990, he had worked in international accounting firms, handling
audit, tax and accounting matters. Mr. LEUNG received a
professional diploma in accountancy from Hong Kong Polytechnic
University in November 1994 and obtained a master’s degree in
business administration, which is a long distance course from the
University of South Australia in 1997.

Mr. YU Kou (FAQ)

Mr. YU, aged 75, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director commencing from 23 February 2012. Mr. YU is the deputy
secretary general of China Special Steel Enterprise Association (F
B4 3N 22 ) since 2008. He served as vice general manager of
Shougang Company and the vice general manager of the sales
company of Shougang Group (& i & &) from 2005 to 2008, and
was with Shougang Group since 1983. Mr. YU has worked in the
steel industry since 1969. He studied in the master program at the
Party School of the Central Committee of C.P.C. (&R ER) in
economics and management from September 2004 to July 2007.
Mr. YU received a professional diploma in industrial management
from Beijing Institute of Economic Management (1t 5 1 4% 75 & 18 %
=263 ) in December 1986.

Mr. LI Bangguang (Z#E)

Mr. LI, aged 50, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director commencing from 31 March 2016. Mr. LI is a qualified PRC
lawyer. Mr. LI graduated from Shandong University (L1 3 X &) in
2005 majoring in law. Mr. LI worked as sales manager at Zouping
Health Products Company (4R i&dm B R A &) from June 1994
to October 2000 and as an attorney at Zouping Cheng Zhong Legal
Services Office (8 T 4 F1 7% 2 BR 7% FT) from October 2000 to May
2005. Since May 2005, Mr. LI joined Shandong Li Zhi Law Office (LU
HENEZENEFT) and is working as a practicing lawyer there.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. ZHANG Qingsheng (GRE4)

Mr. ZHANG, aged 45, was appointed as the vice president of the
technical department of the Group in November 2008 and was re-
designated as the deputy general manager of production department
on 7 October 2013. Mr. ZHANG is responsible for the overall
management and supervision for the technical support and issues
related to the steel production process and the large bar rolling line
project. Mr. ZHANG has served as the vice president of Special Steel
Company since 2008. Mr. ZHANG worked for Xiwang Property
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ESERGREEE (F)

overseeing technical issues for its factories and was its vice president
from 2005 to 2008. Mr. ZHANG obtained his bachelor’s degree from
Liaoning Shihua University (3 2 £ i £ T X £) in July 2002, and
obtained a master’s degree in materials engineering from Qilu
University of Technology (25 & T2 K2 ) in June 2017,

Mr. LI Dian Zhong (B )

Mr. LI, aged 54, was appointed as the technical director of the Group
commencing from 16 April 2015. He graduated from Harbin Institute of
Technology (¥ EYE T2 K 22) with a doctorate degree in engineering
in 1998. Mr. Li is a researcher and doctoral supervisor and the director
of the Materials Process Modeling Division of Shenyang National
Laboratory for Materials Science, Institute of Metal Research of
Chinese Academy of Sciences. In 1998, he was admitted to the
“Hundred Talents Program (B A5t El)” of CAS. He mainly engages in
the research of optimising the key material composition and alloy
phase control for heavy castings and forgings products and high-
quality special steel; material modeling and defect control; simulation of
nucleation during metal solidification; computer simulation of structural
evolution under deformation condition for steel; real-time observation
and computer simulation of liquid metal flows, etc. He has won the
National Outstanding Science and Technology Worker in 2014, State
Scientific and Technological Progress Award (Second Class) in 2012,
Outstanding Achievement Award in Science and Technology from the
CAS in 2009, and Ho Leung Ho Lee Foundation Prize for Scientific and
Technological Innovation in 2007. He has published more than 100
papers on periodicals such as Acta Mater, and registered more than
30 patents and 2 software licenses.

Mr. WANG Jianxiang (EiE#H)

Mr. WANG, aged 39, graduated from The University of Newcastle,
Australia with a master’s degree in international trade. Mr. Wang
was appointed as the investor relations director of the Group in
2017. Mr. Wang was a business manager of Xiwang International
Trade Co., Ltd. from September 2009 to October 2010, and served
in the investment department of Xiwang Group Company since
October 2010. From October 2013 to June 2017, he served as the
securities affairs representative of Xiwang Foodstuffs.
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The Board is pleased to present its annual report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is a leading high-end special steel manufacturer located
in Shandong Province of China. The Group’s products mainly
consist of ordinary steel products that are primarily used in buildings
and infrastructures, as well as special steel products that are used
in automobile, shipbuilding, chemical and petrochemical, machinery
and equipment sectors. The Group also engages in commodities
trading business, mainly iron ore trading.

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend any payment of final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2022 (Previous Year: Nil).

There was no arrangement under which any Shareholder has
waived or agreed to waive any dividend during the Year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Business review of the Company and a discussion and analysis of
the Group’s performance during the Year, the material factors
underlying its results and financial position, and an indication of the
likely future development of the Company’s business are set out in
the Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 10 to 32 of this
report. An analysis of the Group’s performance using financial key
performance indicators is provided in the Management Discussion
and Analysis on pages 12 to 16 of this report. These discussions
form part of this Directors’ report.

1. Major Risks and Uncertain Factors

A. Risk of Raw Material Price Increase
The supply of raw materials had a material impact on the
prices of iron and steel, and the fluctuation in raw
material prices also brought uncertainty to the
Company’s market strategy formulation and
implementation as well as impacted the cost control of
the Company.
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EFEHREE(A)

During the first half of the Year, various macroeconomic
factors squeezed the profit margins of the Group. As a
consequence of the outbreak of the ongoing Russo-
Ukrainian conflict and the policies implemented by the
People’s Bank of China including the lowering of deposit
reserve requirement and lending interest rate, the
domestic market in the PRC saw a surge in the prices of
the major raw materials for the Group’s production,
including iron ore and coking coal. In the meantime, the
reduction in the demand for steel in the domestic market
which was caused by the COVID-19 pandemic also
significantly affected the Group’s revenue.

During the second half of the Year, the U.S. Federal
Reserve adjusted the federal fund rate frequently which
had led to global price pressure. The selling prices of
raw materials (such as iron ore) and steel products fell
rapidly. As the prices of steel products dropped more
significantly than the prices of raw materials, the profit
margins of the Group’s products of the Year decreased.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)

Market Risks

The Group bears market risks such as risks of interest
rate and currency rate. Since the PRC steel industry is a
capital intensive industry, the operations of the Group
need to be supported by external financing. As
mentioned, the U.S. Federal Reserve had been actively
adjusting its benchmark interest rate during the Year.
Increase in the loan interest rate will increase the
financial cost borne by the Group, in particular, when
reviewing the Group’s loan agreements. Some
businesses of the Group involve the use of foreign
currencies and thus the Group is subject to the risk of
exchange losses under adverse fluctuation of the
relevant exchange rates as well. The Group has
proactively communicated with some financial
institutions which have fixed the exchange rates for
some businesses of the Group.

Risk of New Products

The Group is proactively carrying out industrial upgrade
and transformation, and gradually increasing the ratio of
the more profitable special steel products in the Group’s
product portfolio. Despite making such efforts, the
Group may nevertheless be unable to maintain stable
sales in the fierce market competition.

The various financial risks that the Group is facing are
disclosed in Note 37 to the Company’s consolidated
financial statements for the Year as set out in this report.
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Environmental Policies and Performance

The Ministry of Industry and Information Technology of the
PRC, together with other authorities, established the Standard
Conditions for Iron and Steel Industry which prescribe the
specific standards for the production scale, equipment and
environmental protection of steel enterprises. Upon review of
the relevant competent authorities, the Group has complied
with the requirements and qualifications set forth in the
Standard Conditions for Iron and Steel Industry. The Group
discharges pollutants in strict compliance with the
requirements of the permit for pollutant discharge, the
requirements of China’s environmental protection laws and
regulations and the requirements of competent environmental
protection authorities. The Group strives to be an
environmentally-friendly enterprise by investing large amount
of funds to install environmental protection facilities and
proactively recycling and reusing wastes. The Group has
implemented a number of policies to encourage employees on
duty to streamline and remove the procedures which generate
waste of raw materials and energy, to minimise the waste of
raw materials and to improve the effectiveness in the use of
raw materials and energy. Meanwhile, the Group also urges
and encourages employees on duty to reduce the use of
energy and paper. The ultimate purpose for all of the above is
to conserve resources and minimise costs, protect the
environment and promote the overall profitability of the Group.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations
The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the
Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC while the Company itself
was incorporated in Hong Kong and is listed on the Stock
Exchange. The Group’s establishment and operations
accordingly shall comply with relevant laws and regulations in
the PRC and Hong Kong and the Listing Rules. During the
Year and up to the date of this report, to the knowledge of the
Company, save as disclosed in this report, the Group has
complied with all the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC
and Hong Kong that have a significant impact on the Group in
all material respects.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)

Notes on Important Relationship with
Employees, Customers and Suppliers

The Group promotes a people-oriented management culture
and emphasises the value of employees as it believes its
employees are very important resources for enhancing the
Company’s productivity and core competency. Providing
employees with competitive remunerations and opportunities
to receive skill trainings is closely connected to the realisation
of the employees’ individual values as well as the Group’s
strategic goals.

The Group relies on the constant patronage of its major
customers as its stable source of income. Many of the
Group’s customers are distributors who sell the Group’s
products to the downstream steel producers, real estate
developers and construction contractors. They contribute to a
substantial portion of the Group’s earnings and are influential
to the Group’s business performance. Maintaining good
cooperative relationship with customers will promote the
Group’s business performance and enable the Group to
achieve solid and sustainable results.

The Group also pays close attention to the relationship with its
suppliers. Being able to secure sufficient supply of raw
materials at competitive prices is an important safeguard for
the Group to maintain steady production schedule and fulfill
commitments to its customers. The Group is committed to
entering into purchase agreements with its existing suppliers
and in the meantime proactively seeking to expand its supplier
network. The Group also maintains timely communications
with suppliers to establish good relationships in order to
ensure that the productions are in line with the planned
schedules.

The Group holds annual meeting(s) every year, and distributes
questionnaires to share its achievements with employees,
customers and suppliers. The Group also discusses the
defects in the past and strives to identify any room of
improvement in order to create closer mutually beneficial
relationship.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Year are set out in Note 13 to the Company’s
consolidated financial statements for the Year as set out in this
report.

BORROWINGS

Details of the Group’s borrowings as at the end of the Year are set
out in Note 23 to the Company’s consolidated financial statements
for the Year as set out in this report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital for the Year
are set out in Note 26 to the Company’s consolidated financial
statements for the Year as set out in this report.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 259 of this report.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates the Share Option Scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants for their
contribution or would-be contribution to the Group so as to
encourage them to participate in the long-term development of the
Group and to share common interests and objectives with the
Group and/or to enable the Group to recruit and retain high calibre
employees and attract human resources that are valuable to the
Group. The Share Option Scheme became effective on 3 September
2014 (the “Effective Date”), no share options were exercised during
the Year. The remaining life of the Share Option Scheme is less than
2 years.

Any options that are outstanding on the tenth anniversary of the
Effective Date shall remain in force according to the terms of the
Share Option Scheme and the applicable award agreement between
the Company and the participant.
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(1)

(2)

Directors’ Report (Continued)

Eligible Participants to the Share Option
Scheme

The Directors may, at their absolute discretion, invite any
eligible participants (the “Eligible Participants”), to take up
options (the “Options”) to subscribe for ordinary shares at a
price calculated in accordance with paragraph (7) below for
such number of shares as it may determine in accordance
with the terms of the Share Option Scheme. The basis of
eligibility of any of the Eligible Participants to the grant of any
Options shall be determined by the Directors from time to time
on the basis of their contribution to the development and
growth of the Group and any invested entity.

Maximum Number of Shares Available for

Exercise

(@ The maximum number of shares to be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding Options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company must not in
aggregate exceed 30 per cent of the total number of
shares in issue from time to time.

(b)  The total number of Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all Options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company must not in aggregate exceed
200,000,000 shares (the “General Scheme Limit”),
representing 10 per cent of the shares in issue as at the
date of the passing of the relevant ordinary resolution.

The maximum number of ordinary shares that may be
issued under the Share Option Scheme is 200,000,000
Shares which represents approximately 8.44% of the
Company’s total issued Shares as at the date of this
report.

(c) Subject to paragraph (a) above and without prejudice to
paragraph (d) below, the Company may seek approval of
the Shareholders in general meeting to refresh the
General Scheme Limit provided that the total number of
Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all Options
to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company must not
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(3)

(4)

exceed 10 per cent of the Shares in issue as at the date
of approval of the General Scheme Limit. For the
purpose of calculating the General Scheme Limit,
Options previously granted (including those outstanding,
cancelled, lapsed or exercised in accordance with the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company) will not be counted.

(d)  Subject to paragraph (a) above and without prejudice to
paragraph (c) above, the Company may issue a circular
to the Shareholders and seek separate Shareholders’
approval in general meeting to grant Options beyond the
General Scheme Limit or, if applicable, the limit referred
to in paragraph (c) above to the Eligible Participants
specifically identified by the Company before such
approval is sought.

Maximum Entitlement of each Eligible
Participant

The total number of Shares in issue and which may fall to be
issued upon exercise of the Options granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
Options) to each Eligible Participant in any 12-month period
shall not exceed 1 per cent of the total number of the relevant
class of Shares (the “Individual Limit”). Any further grant of
options in excess of the Individual Limit in any 12-month
period up to and including the date of such further grant, shall
be subject to the issue of a circular to the Shareholders and
the Shareholders’ approval in general meeting of the Company
with such Eligible Participant and his associates abstaining
from voting.

Grant of Options to Connected Persons

(@)  Any grant of Options under the Share Option Scheme to
a Director, chief executive or substantial Shareholder of
the Company or any of their respective associates must
comply with the requirements of Rule 17.04 of the
Listing Rules and must be approved by independent
non-executive Directors (excluding any independent
non-executive Director who is the grantee of the
Options). In the event of any change in the terms of
Options granted to a substantial Shareholder or an
independent non-executive Director of the Company; or
where any grant of Options to a substantial Shareholder
or an independent non-executive Director, or any of their

XIWANG SPECIAL STEEL COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022

(3)

(4)

M10% ° Bt E RS LR
ZHEE L (BREREERER
B R AN A RE ] B A RS A pE T
RITE - BHUH - BRMEETT
FE)NBERETEER -

(d) H‘EETEX(@RMTEREX(C)
BRBERT - AR B R ABCIR
HiB KA FEBRAE ESTTROK
P RAL R — RET 8 ER (3
FEERBR TR EX (o) B ATt
ER) MECRAER AR R 5
BIRAMAERSEERNBR
& o

g%éﬁ%%ﬁ%%%ﬁﬁ

FEAEMA21E A BRE - ERIZERER
8 N AR R f] E A BB R R 813
MEBRE(BREDTE  SBUBKRKRTT
2 BRI BT - ERRFTRE S
AEEEER2EEZITHRMN BB
NSRBI BRI B2 1% ([ {8
ALBRD - EEM121E A BHE (EE R
BRE-—SPREEH)BHEALRE
—HREBRERERREMBRNL
RARABBERARE LEBE AERS
HENEBEANENAEERR -

OEEATROBERE

@ EERETEHAALFESE &
BITHAB  TEREXKESH
e ARDBRERET ETHR
BIZE17.04 &0 R L IEHNTTE
EHE(ERABREARANTE
SMIERITEERIN) c BERARA
RAEERENBEIIENTESR
MR GRE EE) AR
NEIEBRERBIIENTES
REZ BT BB AR ERE
BERMEERERBEEREAE



Directors’ Report (Continued)

respective associates, would result in the Shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of all Options already
granted and to be granted (including Options exercised,
cancelled and outstanding) to such person in the
12-month period up to and including the date of such
grant:

(i) representing in aggregate over 0.1 per cent of the
total number of Shares in issue;

(i) having an aggregate value on the closing price of
the Shares at the date of each grant, in excess of
HK$5 million;

such further grant of Options must be approved by the
Shareholders. The Company must send a circular to the
Shareholders. All connected persons of the Company
must abstain from voting at such general meeting,
except that any connected person may vote against the
relevant resolution at the general meeting provided that
his intention to do so has been stated in the circular. Any
vote taken at the meeting to approve the grant of such
options must be taken on a poll.

(5) Time of Acceptance and Exercise of an

Option

An offer of grant of an Option may be accepted by an Eligible
Participant within 28 days from the date of the offer of grant of
the Option. A consideration of HK$1.00 is payable on
acceptance of the offer of grant of an Option. An option may
be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme at any time during a period to be determined and
notified by the Directors to each grantee, which period may
commence on the date on which the offer for the grant of
Options is made but shall end in any event not later than 10
years from the date of grant of the Option subject to the
provisions for early termination thereof and to the minimum
period for which the Option has to be held before it can be
exercised as the Directors may at their discretion determine
(“Option Period”). No minimum period for which the Option
has to be held before it can be exercised is specified in the
Share Option Scheme.
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EFEHREE(A)

(6)

(7)

(8)

Performance Targets

Unless otherwise determined and stated by the Directors in
the offer of the grant of Options to an Eligible Participant, an
Eligible Participant is not required to achieve any performance
targets before any Options granted under the Share Option
Scheme can be exercised.

Subscription Price for Shares

The subscription price for Shares under the Share Option
Scheme shall be a price determined by the Directors, but shall
not be less than the higher of (i) the closing price of Shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the
date of the offer of grant, which must be a trading day; (ii) the
average closing price of Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheeting for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of the offer of grant; and (iii)
the nominal value of a Share (if applicable). Without prejudice
to the generality of the foregoing, the Directors may grant
Options in respect of which the subscription price is fixed at
different prices for different periods during the Option Period
provided that the subscription price for Shares for each of the
different periods shall not be less than the subscription price
determined in the aforesaid manner.

Restrictions on the Time of Grant of
Options

A grant of Option under the Share Option Scheme shall not be
made after inside information has come to the knowledge of
the Company until the information has been announced. In
particular, during the period commencing one month
immediately preceding the earlier of (i) the date of the board
meeting (as such is first notified to the Exchange in
accordance with the Listing Rules) for approval of the
Company’s results for any year, half year, quarterly or any
other interim period (whether or not required under the Listing
Rules); and (ii) the deadline for the Company to publish an
announcement of its results for any year or half year under the
Listing Rules, or quarterly or any other interim period (whether
or not under the Listing Rules), no Option should be granted.
The Directors may not grant any Option to an Eligible
Participant who is a Director during the periods or times in
which Directors are prohibited from dealing in Shares pursuant
to the Model Code or any corresponding code or securities
dealing restrictions adopted by the Company.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)

(9) Period of the Share Option Scheme 9)
The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of
10 years commencing on the date on which the Share Option
Scheme becomes unconditional. As at 31 December 2022, no
Options were outstanding.
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Number of Share Options
EREHR

Asat As at Exercise

1 January 31 December  price per
Grantee Date of grant 2022 Granted Exercised  Lapsed 2022 Share Vesting period Exercise period

(HKS)
ARA RiLEH R2022% R il P Ro2E  BRAKE GRS s

1B18 12A318 (%)
Employees 12 April 20171 200,000 - - (200,000) - 138 12402017 - 12/4/2019 12/4/2019-11/4/2022
EE" 017547128 M1754A 1282 019547 12B%
019544128 X2%F4A118

Note: e

(1) The closing price of the Shares immediately before the date on which the
Options were granted (namely, 11 April 2017) was: HK$1.39.

For details of the fair value of the Options at the date of grant
and the accounting standard and policy adopted, please refer
to Note 2 and Note 27 to the Company’s consolidate financial
statements for the Year as set out in this report.

1) REERERERL B H(RN2017 44 A 11
A) AR D 2 W B R 1.3987T °
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FFEAREKRFS  B2HAREmM
BOAFEARNRGAVBREWN T2
Kt 27 o

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT PR ER D1 iR

Save as disclosed in this report regarding the Share Option BARENFRBREZIPTREEIN K
Scheme, the Company has not entered into any equity-linked 22 RIPA AR S [E I A 25 7T (R A] AR A £ 4 19 2% -
agreement during the Year and no equity-linked agreement — BERAZREEE AR MAEE 0 2748

subsisted as at the end of the Year.
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EFEHREE(A)

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles or the laws of Hong Kong, being the jurisdiction in which the
Company was incorporated, which would oblige the Company to
offer new Shares on a pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption available
to the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s
securities.

PURCHASE, SALES OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY’S SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the listed securities of the Company and/or its
subsidiaries during the Year.

SHARES AND DEBENTURES ISSUED
DURING THE YEAR

No shares or debentures was issued during the Year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company during the
Year are set out in Note 40 to the Company’s consolidated financial
statements for the Year as set out in this report. As at 31 December
2022, the reserves of the Company available for distribution (i.e.
retained profits), calculated in accordance with the provision of
sections 291, 297 and 299 of the Companies Ordinance, amounted
to approximately RMB39 million (Previous Year: RMB117 million).
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Directors’ Report (Continued)

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The procurement from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 68% (Previous Year: 74%) of the Group’s total cost of
purchase for the Year. The procurement from the largest supplier
accounted for approximately 44% (Previous Year: 48%) of the Group’s
total cost of purchase. The sales to the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for approximately 82% (Previous Year: 84%) of the Group’s
total revenue for the Year. The sales to the largest customer accounted
for approximately 60% (Previous Year: 65%) of the Group’s total revenue
for the Year.

To the knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors, their
respective close associates or any Shareholder (which to the
knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s
share capital) owned any direct or indirect interest in the Company’s
suppliers and customers mentioned above during the Year.

DONATIONS

During the Year, the Group did not make charitable or other
donations (Previous Year: Nil).

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. ZHANG Jian (Chairman and chief executive officer)
(appointed as Chairman on 14 February 2023)

Mr. SUN Xinhu

Ms. LI Hai Xia

Mr. WANG Chaoqun (appointed on 14 February 2023)

Non-executive Director
Mr. WANG Di (Chairman) (resigned on 14 February 2023)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. LEUNG Shu Sun Sunny

Mr. YU Kou

Mr. LI Bangguang
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EFEHREE(A)

Each of the executive Directors, non-executive Director and
independent non-executive Directors has entered into a service
agreement with the Company for a term of three years. Each of
these service agreements may be terminated by either party by
giving to the other not less than three months’ prior notice in writing.
None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company or
any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation. The Company has received from each of the
independent non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the
Board considered each of the independent non-executive Directors
to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of
the Group are set out on pages 74 to 78 of this report.

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The directors of the Company’s subsidiaries during the Year and up
to the date of this report were:
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Director

B

Company
AT

XIWANG METAL SCIENCE

Mr. WANG Yong, Mr. WANG Di, Mr. WANG Dong, Mr. WANG Liang,

Mr. SUN Xinhu, Mr. ZHANG Jian, Ms. GUO Zhenjing, Mr. WANG
Chaoqun (appointed with effect from 9 January 2023)

AT BRI

IELE  IRELE  ITWRELE - TRAE - BIEERLE

RfEL A SBESL L - TEBEALA (R 2023F1 AOBBEZRT)

SPECIAL STEEL COMPANY

Mr. WANG Yong, Mr. WANG Di, Mr. WANG Dong, Mr. WANG Liang,

Mr. SUN Xinhu, Mr. ZHANG Jian, Mr. ZHANG Qingsheng,
Ms. GUO Zhenjing, Mr. WANG Chaoqun (appointed with effect from

9 January 2023)
SEIVNE]

FEELE  ERELE  TREL - ETRELE - BHIEERLE

RIENAE RELEGE  BERRLE - THEAE
(PA202341 F9BBEZIT)
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Company
NE

Director

B

XIWANG RECYCLING RESOURCES

AEBEER

XIWANG INTERNATIONAL TRADE
(QINGDAO) CO, LTD.
ATEE(ES)ARAA

WIN GOAL TRADING LIMITED

KRB HERRAE

XIWANG SPECIAL STEEL ECONOMIC
AND TRADE CO., LTD.
AT EERA A

ZHONGKE XIWANG

RRET

SHANDONG XIWANG SPECIAL STEEL
NEW MATERIALS TECHNOLOGY
INNOVATION CENTRE
COMPANY LIMITED

HIBR & 7 3 R R S 5T 0 R B BT AR
BRAA]

Mr. WANG Hongxiang (resigned with effect from 9 January 2023)
Mr. WANG Chaoqun (appointed with effect from 9 January 2023)
TAT RS A (R202351 o B#REHT)

TR 4 (R2023F1 A9HBEZE)

Mr. WANG Wei, Ms. WANG Dan, Mr. WANG Jiudi

ERELE - ERRE - Fomks

Mr. WANG Di (resigned with effect from 10 February 2023),
Mr. Wang Yong (appointed with effect from 10 February 2023)
FREAE (FR2023 52 10 BAERHE) - EB 54 (720232 A 10H
REELE)

Mr. WANG Di (resigned with effect from 21 November 2022),

Mr. ZHANG Jian (appointed with effect from 21 November 2022)
FARSEAE (R 20225 11 A 21 BEEHE)  SREBSLAE (120224

11 21 HEEEE )

Mr. WANG Chao (appointed with effect from 10 November 2022 and
resigned with effect from 9 January 2023), Mr. LI Dianzhong,
Mr. SUN Xinhu, Mr. HUANG Liang, Mr. ZHANG Jian,
Mr. WANG Chaoqun (appointed with effect from 9 January 2023)
FiBEAE(F2022F 11 A 10 HRREZEA 7 2023F 1 A9 B REHE) -
TP LA BIRSALE  FmREAA  REBEAE - TEBELLE
(FA2023F1 A9 HEEET)

Mr. ZHANG Jian (appointed with effect from 14 April 2022),
Mr. ZHANG Chenglian (appointed with effect from 14 April 2022),
Mr. ZHANG Lingtong (appointed with effect from 14 April 2022)

RESE(FR2022F 4 A14 BBESRT) ~ RAGETAE (K 2022F 4 A
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Director

B

Company
NE]

SHANDONG XIWANG EQUIPMENT
MANUFACTURING
COMPANY LIMITED

Mr. WANG Di (appointed on 23 November 2022), Mr. WANG Dong
(appointed on 23 November 2022), Mr. WANG Liang (appointed
on 23 November 2022), Mr. SUN Xinhu (appointed on 23 November

2022), Mr. ZHANG Jian (appointed on 23 November 2022)

LWRAEREBEERR AR

TR A (7A2022F 11 23 BEZT) « TR E (7A20224F 11 A

23HEERT) « TR E(FA2022%11 A23HEZT) -
FEREE (20225 11 A28 BEEE) - sRfEE 4 (20224

11 A23 BEZEE)

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Saved as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Connected
Transactions” below and in Note 34 to the Company’s consolidated
financial statements for the Year as set out in this report, there was
no contract of significance between the Company or one of its
subsidiaries on the one hand, and a controlling shareholder or any
of its subsidiaries on the other, subsisting during or at the end of
the year ended 31 December 2022. Saved as disclosed in the
paragraph headed “Connected Transactions” below and in note 34
to the consolidated financial statements for the Year as set out in
this report, there was also no other contract of significance for the
provision of services to the Company or any of its subsidiaries by a
controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries during or at the end
of the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Saved as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Connected
Transactions” below and in Note 34 to the Company’s consolidated
financial statements for the Year as set out in this report, no Director
had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract of
significance to the business of the Group to which the Company, its
holding company or any of its subsidiaries was a party subsisting
during or at the end of the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the Year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries or the holding company or a
subsidiary of the Company’s holding company a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means
of an acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the Year and up to the date of this report, none of the
Directors had any interest in a business apart from the Group’s
business which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the Group’s business.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Pursuant to the Articles, every Director shall be indemnified out of
the assets of the Company against all liabilities which he/she may
incur in the execution and discharge of his/her duties or otherwise
in relation thereto. The Company has kept in force insurance against
the liability and costs associated with defending any proceedings
which may be brought against the Directors of the Company.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the Year.
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REMUNERATION POLICY AND
RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The remuneration policy of the Group is set on the basis of the
employees’ merit, qualifications and competence and reviewed by
the Remuneration Committee periodically. The remuneration
package of the Directors are reviewed and recommended by the
Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board, with
consideration to the Group’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics. The Group has also
adopted the Share Option Scheme as incentive and reward for
those qualifying staff who have made contribution to the Group.

The Group has joined the mandatory MPF Scheme for all eligible
employees in Hong Kong. The MPF Scheme is registered with the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance of Hong Kong. Under the MPF
Scheme, the employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the MPF Scheme at rates specified in the rules of
the MPF Scheme. The employees of the Company’s subsidiaries
established in the PRC are members of a state-managed retirement
scheme operated by the PRC government. These subsidiaries are
required to contribute certain percentage of payroll costs to the
retirement benefit scheme. No forfeited contribution is available to
reduce the contribution payable under the above schemes.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
OF THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2022, the Directors or chief executive of the
Company and their respective associates had the following interests
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company and
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the provisions of Division 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO); or were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO; or notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code,
were as follows:
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Approximate

percentage
shareholding
in the same
class of
Number securities in
Name of company/ and class the relevant
associated of securities corporation as at
Name of Director  corporation Capacity held/interested" 31 December 2022
R2022512831H
Rl
PVl BE/HEERN HEERESH
BEpE EEH BB &6 EEHARER BRESAT DL
WANG Di Company Beneficial owner 9,333,333 shares (L) 0.39%
R /NS EEEEA 9,333,333 & iz 17 (L)
Xiwang Holdings Beneficial owner 177 shares (L) 0.09%
AR EalEEA 177 BB (L)
Xiwang Group Company Beneficial owner RMB35,460,000 (L) 1.44%
AEEERA EmEEA AR 35,460,000 ¢ (L)
Xiwang Property Beneficial owner 3,000,000 share 0.21%
options (L)
BEEX EnEAA 3,000,000 17 & A (L)
SUN Xinhu Xiwang Holdings Beneficial owner 89 shares (L) 0.04%
BHE AEER EnBEAA 89 (L)
Xiwang Group Company Beneficial owner RMB35,460,000 (L) 1.44%
AEIRELNA EREAA AR ¥ 35,460,000 7T (L)
Xiwang Property Beneficial owner 3,000,000 share 0.21%
options (L)
ATEX EREAA 3,000,000 17 & A% # (L)
Note: MiEE -
1) The letter “L” represents the Director’s long position in the shares of the relevant (1) FE[ LI RRESHNIERZERNDHTE -

corporation.

BEEREAFRAT

“ECCEFR




Directors’ Report (Continued)

EFEHREE(A)

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND
OTHER PERSONS WHO ARE REQUIRED TO
DISCLOSE THEIR INTERESTS PURSUANT
TO PART XV OF THE SFO

(a) Substantial shareholders of the Company
As at 31 December 2022, so far as it is known to the
Directors, the following persons (other than the Directors and
chief executive of the Company) had or were deemed or taken
to have interests or short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the

R IR 58 %5 I HA 5 4R £ 55 XV &P
ARBRSEZNEERRRK
Hitt At

(@ DT EERR
R2022F12A31H BMESFT A
THAL(BEBERARRERSITERAS
BN RA R B RN RIEERG P HE
SR ANEEEBELEHEN AR TR
BBE RSG5 336 KB EFEED
Erffrh iSRRI T ¢

SFO:
Approximate
percentage of
Name of Number of shares of interest in the
substantial the Company held/ Company as at
shareholder Capacity interested” 31 December 2022%
A2022%12H831H
BEBEREEN ERNEE
FTERRER 14 AARRHEE W BHABEIL®
Xiwang Investment Beneficial owner® 868,093,000 36.64%
(in liquidation) ordinary shares (L)
AEIRE (FEF) EREEAQ 868,093,000 &
ERA(L)
Xiwang Holdings Interest of a controlled 868,093,000 36.64%
corporation® ordinary shares (L)
PAEER REHEE R R @ 868,093,000 &
ERAL(L)
Xiwang Hong Kong Interest of controlled 868,093,000 36.64%
corporations® ordinary shares (L)
AEES REHEE R R @ 868,093,000 &
ERA(L)
Xiwang Group Company Interest of controlled 868,093,000 36.64%
corporations® ordinary shares (L)
(RSN REHEE R R @ 868,093,000 &
ERA(L)
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ESTHEE(A)

Name of
substantial
shareholder

FERREH

Capacity

)

Number of shares of
the Company held/
interested”

BE/BEREN
AREROBE

Approximate
percentage of
interest in the

Company as at

31 December 2022%
2022612831 H
EAR A B ER
BREs @

Mr. WANG Yong

FBELELE

Ms. ZHANG Shufang

SRt

Haitong International Finance

/83 BB B 7%

Haitong International Securities

BB E S

Haitong International Holdings

BRI

Haitong Securities

<

BRE S

f

Interest of controlled
corporations®
ZEHEE A ER @

Interest of spouse®

PR o

Other ©

Hip©

Interest of a controlled
corporation”

REREB R

Interest of a controlled
corporation”

REREENERED

Interest of a controlled
corporation”
S E MR O

868,093,000
ordinary shares (L)
868,093,000 A%
A (L)

868,093,000
ordinary shares (L)
868,093,000 A%
LB L)

849,875,000
ordinary shares (L)
849,875,000 &

H AR (L)

849,875,000
ordinary shares (L)
849,875,000 &
R

849,875,000
ordinary shares (L)
849,875,000 &
R

849,875,000
ordinary shares (L)
849,875,000 %
EEB L

36.64%

36.64%

35.87%

35.87%

35.87%

35.87%
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EFEHREE(A)

Notes:

The letter “L” represents the entity’s long position in the shares of the
Company.

These percentages are calculated based on 2,369,110,999 listed Shares
in issue as at 31 December 2022.

As at 31 December 2022, Xiwang Investment (in liquidation) was the
registered Shareholder of 868,093,000 Shares. The Company was
informed by a letter from the Official Receiver’s Office of Hong Kong
dated 21 March 20283 that a winding-up order was made against Xiwang
Investment and the Official Receiver is now the provisional liquidator of
Xiwang Investment. For further details, please refer to the Company’s
announcement dated 30 March 2023.

As at 31 December 2022, Xiwang Investment (in liquidation) was directly
wholly-owned by Xiwang Holdings, which in turn was directly held as to
95% by Xiwang Hong Kong and as to 5% by Mr. WANG Yong and 22
individuals, respectively. Xiwang Hong Kong is in turn wholly-owned by
Xiwang Group Company. As at 31 December 2022, Xiwang Group
Company was owned as to 25.24% by Mr. WANG Yong, 32.33% by 20
individuals (including Mr. WANG Di and Mr. Sun Xinhu, each a Director)
and the remaining 42.43% by other shareholders. Further, the 20
individuals are accustomed to act in accordance with the directions of
Mr. WANG Yong in respect of the exercise of their voting rights held as
shareholders of Xiwang Group Company. Therefore, Mr. WANG Yong,
Xiwang Group Company, Xiwang Hong Kong and Xiwang Holdings are
deemed to be interested in the number of shares of the Company held
by Xiwang Investment (in liquidation).

The Company was informed by a letter from the Official Receiver’s Office
of Hong Kong dated 21 March 2023 that a winding-up order dated 20
March 2023 was made against Xiwang Investment. The Official Receiver
is now the provisional liquidator of Xiwang Investment. For further details,
please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 30 March 2023.

Ms. ZHANG Shufang, being the spouse of Mr. WANG Yong, is deemed
to be interested in all the shares of the Company in which Mr. WANG
Yong is deemed to be interested in.

Based on the disclosure of interests notice filed by Haitong International
Investment Solutions on 30 April 2021, the substantial shareholder of the
Company entered into a security agreement and pledged the Shares of
the Company to Haitong International Investment Solutions. Upon
occurrence of event of default, Haitong International Investment Solutions
exercised the right to dispose of pledged Shares partially (i.e. forced
liquidation) on 27 April 2021. To the best knowledge of the Directors,
such Shares of the Company held by Haitong International Investment
Solutions have been assigned to Haitong International Finance.

Based on the disclosure of interests notices filed by Haitong Securities,
Haitong International Holdings, Haitong International Securities and
Haitong International Finance on 13 September 2021, Haitong
International Finance is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Haitong
International Securities, which in turn is 64.4% owned by Haitong
International Holdings, which in turn is wholly-owned by Haitong
Securities. Therefore, Haitong Securities, Haitong International Holdings
and Haitong International Securities are deemed to be interested in the
number of Shares in the Company held by Haitong International Finance.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)

EEEHEE (H)

(b) Other persons who are required to disclose (b) BEFESF R HEFRFIEXVE
their interests pursuant to Part XV of the AFRBEESNEMAL
SFO
Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Directors’ BIEERAQTI R EAE EEN R
interests in shares, underlying shares and debentures of the B BB R EESDREDS ] — B
Company and its associated corporations” and paragraph (a) N EX (o) BT EE SN - 72022512
above, as at 31 December 2022, to the knowledge of the A31H ARG ES=ME  HEH
Directors, no other person had interests or short positions in AR A T A% D ok A8 BE A% 1D
the shares or underlying shares of the Company which are BAZHENARNTIREESREEKR
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company 715 336 I E R BB L MAaER
under section 336 of the SFO. KA o

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS BERS

Related party transactions and connected BBMAXEREERS

transactions

The Group entered into certain related party transactions with  pAKERE  AEFEEEK T ETE THEE T
related parties during the Year which constituted connected x5 . ET%WKEIE’]?@LXEJHH*E@L
transactions or continuing connected transactions of the Group, %8 . SEH N AR E FFE B AEERD
details of which are set out in Note 34 to the Company’s 4= ABt7&EREFIET34 o z'g@gjagwtgrggzyg
consolidated financial statements for the Year as set out in this @Iy thEES SR FHEE|S 14053
report. The Company has complied with the disclosure j-ripzE4aT o

requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules

for these connected transactions entered into during the Year.

BERMAARAR —B-_FFH



Directors’ Report (Continued)

EFEHREE(A)

The Group has entered into various transactions during the Year
which constituted continuing connected transactions of the Group
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The transaction information
of each of the non-exempt continuing connected transactions of the
Group for the Year is set out below:

BIELETRBNE1IATE - REBERAFE
AINZEBRASERERERZINRS
RAFE  AEBBFHRRFEREIINR

HIEEMT

Transaction Maximum
Amount Balance  Annual Cap
for the Year  for the Year for the Year
Connected Person Nature of transaction (RMB) (RMB) (RMB)
rEE rEE KEE
RELH B= &R FELR
BEAL RHEME (AR¥T) (AR T) (AR® )
Xiwang Logistics — Delivery of steel®© 1.4 million N/A 118 million
BT — EXWMO6 1488 i A 118 B8
— Delivery of ore powder" 0.9 million N/A 299 million
— BREHO 09EBE TEmA 299 H &
Xiwang Finance — Deposit services? © N/A  628.5 million 2,100 million
B — FRRBO6 TEA 628.58 & 2,1008&
— Bill discounting services® — million N/A 2,000 million
— RIERBERK - A8 e 2,000 88
— Bill acceptance services? 659.1 million N/A 2,000 million
— RBAG R 659.1 58 A 2,00058
Zouping Power Branch — Sales of steam®© 27.7 million N/A 30 million
BFBHDRA] — hEH#EOO 27.7TEE i A 0ES
— Procurement of electricity 986.3million N/A 1,661 million
(including VAT)® ©®
— BEEH(SBER)WO 986.3EH & A 1,661 BE
— Prepayment of electricity N/A 306.7 million 328 million
charge (including VAT)®
— ENENFIA(FEED)O @A 306.7EH 328EH
Xiwang Group — Guarantee services provided N/A 4.2 billion 5 billion
(excluding the Group) to Xiwang Group®®
AIEE(TBEAEER) — AATEEREERRE OO TE R 4218 5018
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Other connected transactions included in Note 34 to the Company’s
consolidated financial statements for the Year as set out in this
report are exempt continuing connected transactions under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

Notes:

M

Xiwang Metal Science entered into a steel delivery services agreement and a ore
powder delivery services agreement with Xiwang Logistics, a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of Xiwang Group Company on 4 November 2021. Xiwang Logistics
agreed to provide delivery service to Xiwang Metal Science for the delivery of the
Group’s (1) steel to Shandong Province and other provinces in the PRC and (2)
ore powder from Shandong Province and other provinces in the PRC to Xiwang
Metal Science for a term of three years commencing on 1 January 2022

For details of the abovementioned steel delivery services agreement and the ore
powder delivery services agreement, please refer to the announcement and
circular of the Company dated 4 November 2021 and 30 November 2021,
respectively.

The Company entered into a financial services agreement with Xiwang Finance
with a term of three years commencing from 1 January 2022, pursuant to which,
Xiwang Finance provides the Company and the Qualified Subsidiaries (as
defined in the announcement of the Company dated 4 November 2021) with
deposit services, loan services, bill discounting services and bill acceptance
services. Apart from these services, Xiwang Finance may also provide the
Company and the Qualified Subsidiaries with other financial services approved
by the China Banking and Insurance Regulatory Commission. Other financial
services to be provided under such financial services agreement will be on
normal commercial terms and on terms similar to or even more favourable than
those offered by other independent commercial banks in the PRC.

For details of the financial services agreement, please refer to the announcement
and circular of the Company dated 4 November 2021 and 30 November 2021,
respectively.

Xiwang Metal Science and Zouping Power Branch entered into a steam supply
agreement on 31 December 2019 for the supply of steam for a period of three
years commencing on 1 January 2020 and ending on 31 December 2022.

Pursuant to such steam supply agreement, Zouping Power Branch would be
responsible for lining or modifying the steam pipeline network and installing the
steam gauge, while Xiwang Metal Science would be responsible for supplying
steam to Zouping Power Branch. Both Xiwang Metal Science and Zouping
Power Branch would record the volume of steam at the end of each month,
Zouping Power Branch was responsible for ensuring the accuracy of the steam
gauge, while Xiwang Metal Science would perform checks from time to time.

ESTHEE(A)

BRIE EHRBNE14AT - RREMERARF
BN R BERE W5 R P o 34 By EoAtb B3
R RERRFERERS -
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RIZ 2 BB AR EYRET M8 xRS
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REILRE REME D REBEPRHILRSE kEA
BMEXAEENENEATSERE - 52022
F1A1ARASE=F -

B B Lt S A 5 K IR A 1 R D 1B K IR A 1 ek
S B2EARRBEES R A2021 411 A4
H X% 20214 11 A30 BE QS KB ©

© ARAT T F BT SR - B 20224F
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B A2021 11 A4 A 2021 F11 A30 B A S
Rk e

(3) R2019F12A31H AX S BRHTEG FE N
DRRGHEEZE T R B ERE - 820204
1A1BEE2022F12 A31 B ABH=F -

AREHESL FB NS REHAEHR
RMERAEERBRREEIEN%  MEE
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EFEHREE(A)

For details of the abovementioned steam supply agreement, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 16 December 2019 and 31 December
2019, respectively.

During the Year, the Group did not renew the abovementioned steam supply
agreement with Zouping Power Branch. Xiwang Metal Science entered into a
new steam supply agreement (the “New Steam Supply Agreement”) with
Shandong Xiwang Sugar on 1 November 2022 for the provision of supply of
steam service to Shandong Xiwang Sugar, with the major terms remaining
substantially the same, except (1) Zouping Power Branch is substituted by
Shangdong Xiwang Sugar; (2) the revised price for steam per kcal and tonne (tax
inclusive); and (3) that Xiwang Metal Science will be responsible for lining or
modifying the steam pipeline network and installing the steam gauge. The New
Steam Supply Agreement has a term for three years from 1 January 2023 to 31
December 2025.

For details of the New Steam Supply Agreement, please refer to the
announcement and circular of the Company dated 1 November 2022 and 6
December 2022, respectively. The New Steam Supply Agreement and the
transactions contemplated thereunder had been approved by the independent
Shareholders of the Company at the Company’s extraordinary general meeting
held on 23 December 2022.

Xiwang Metal Science and Zouping Power Branch entered into an electricity
purchase agency agreement on 21 August 2020 and, pursuant to which Xiwang
Metal Science contracted Zouping Power Branch to provide agency services in
relation to the electricity purchase from State Grid Shandong Electric Power
Company Binzhou Power Supply Company (B4 1L EEE N A REMNEELQF)
(“Binzhou Power"), through Zouping Power Branch for the period from 1
January 2020 to 31 December 2022. Binzhou Power is a local power supply
company which is an independent third party of the Company. According to the
requirements of Binzhou Power, Xiwang Group Company and its affiliated
companies are required to settle the electricity bills together. During the course
of the electricity purchase, Xiwang Metal Science will also pay Zouping Power
Branch a certain amount of prepaid electricity charge (the “Prepaid Electricity
Charge") for Zouping Power Branch to pay to Binzhou Power. Zouping Power
Branch will charge Xiwang Metal Science for the electricity supplied to the
Group at the original price charged by Binzhou Power, and the price must not
be increased in any other way. Zouping Power Branch should not charge
Xiwang Metal Science any service fees, commission or agency fee (except for
any charges to be paid to Binzhou Power and/or other independent third
parties). Electricity meters should be installed by the Group at each and every
points of electricity supply, and meter reading should be recorded by Zouping
Power Branch on the first day of each calendar month. Xiwang Metal Science
should prepay Zouping Power Branch the Prepaid Electricity Charge, the
amount of which should be no less than one month of the expected electricity
charge. After each meter reading, the accrued electricity charge should be
settled by setting off against the Prepaid Electricity Charge received by Zouping
Power Branch.

The procurement of electricity for the Year under the abovementioned electricity
purchase agency agreement was approximately RMB872.9 million and the
relevant VAT paid was approximately RMB113.4 million.

For details of the electricity purchase agency agreement, please refer to the
announcement and circular of the Company dated 21 August 2020 and 23
October 2020, respectively.
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During the Year, Xiwang Metal Science renewed such electricity purchase
agency agreement with Zouping Power Branch commencing from 1 January
2023 and ending on 31 December 2025 (both dates inclusive) on substantially
same terms except for the term of the agreement. For details, please refer to the
announcement and circular of the Company dated 1 November 2022 and 6
December 2022, respectively. The renewed electricity purchase agency
agreement and the transactions contemplated thereunder had been approved
by the Company’s independent Shareholders at the extraordinary general
meeting of the Company held on 23 December 2022.

The Company (and its subsidiaries) and Xiwang Group Company and the
Relevant Subsidiaries entered into the Guarantee Agreement in relation to the
provision of guarantee services, which was effective from 1 January 2021 to 31
December 2023 on 19 January 2021.

Pursuant to the Guarantee Agreement, the Group agreed to provide Xiwang
Group Company and the Relevant Subsidiaries with guarantee services under
which the Group shall undertake to guarantee and bear any obligations and
liabilities of Xiwang Group Company and the Relevant Subsidiaries under the
loan agreements to be entered between the lenders and Xiwang Group
Company and/or the Relevant Subsidiaries, in accordance with the terms of the
specific guarantee agreements to be entered between the lenders and the
Group.

It was agreed that any loans repaid by the Group for and on behalf of Xiwang
Group Company and the Relevant Subsidiaries pursuant to the Guarantee
Agreement shall be deemed to be a repayment of (i) the loans payable by the
Group to Xiwang Group Company or the Relevant Subsidiaries; or (i) other
amounts payable by the Group to Xiwang Group Company or the Relevant
Subsidiaries. It was also agreed that if the guarantee amount to be provided by
the Group to Xiwang Group Company and the Relevant Subsidiaries under the
Guarantee Agreement exceeds the aggregate outstanding amount due from the
Group to Xiwang Group plus the aggregate amount of the Group’s borrowings
which are guaranteed, secured or pledged by Xiwang Group Company and the
Relevant Subsidiaries less the aggregate amount due from Xiwang Group
Company and the Relevant Subsidiaries to the Group (the “Outstanding
Amount”), (i) the Group reserves the right to unilaterally terminate the specific
guarantee(s) for an amount no less than the amount exceeding the aggregate
outstanding amount due from the Group to Xiwang Group; and (ii) a guarantee
fee of 0.5% per annum on the Outstanding Amount shall be payable by Xiwang
Group Company and/or the Relevant Subsidiaries to the Group for the amount
exceeding the Outstanding Amount. Xiwang Group also undertook that it shall
always continue to provide guarantees and loans to the Group and cannot
unilaterally terminate any one of them without the Group’s consent. The
guarantee amount shall not exceed the Outstanding Amount during the Year,
and shall be subject to a maximum cap of RMB5.0 billion.
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EFEHREE(A)

During the Year, a guarantee fee of approximately RMB3.3 million had been
received from Xiwang Group Company and the Relevant Subsidiaries.

For details of the Guarantee Agreement and relevant approvals, please refer to
the announcements of the Company dated 19 January 2021 and 19 March
2021, respectively, and the circular of the Company dated 26 February 2021.

During the Year, the Company further renewed the Guarantee Agreement with
Xiwang Group Company and the Relevant Subsidiaries earlier than the expiry of
the Guarantee Agreement because Xiwang Group was negotiating new
borrowings with the financial institutions in the PRC and the terms of these
potential borrowings would cover the period from 1 January 2023 to 31
December 2025. Accordingly, Xiwang Group Company intends to renew the
Guarantee Agreement in order to proceed the potential borrowings. For details
of the renewal, please refer to the announcement and circular of the Company
dated 1 November 2022 and 6 December 2022, respectively. The new
guarantee agreement with Xiwang Group Company was entered into on 1
November 2022 and the entering into of which and the transactions
contemplated thereunder had been approved by the Company’s independent
Shareholders at the Company’s extraordinary general meeting held on 23
December 2022.

Information for the connected persons:

Xiwang Group Company is a company incorporated in the PRC with limited
liability on 24 April 2001 and the controlling shareholder of the Company and is
principally engaged in investment holding.

Xiwang Logistics is a company incorporated in the PRC and is principally
engaged in transportation of general goods and provision of logistics services in
the PRC. It is an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of Xiwang Group
Company.

Xiwang Finance is a non-wholly owned subsidiary of Xiwang Group Company
and is owned as to 5% by the Company. Xiwang Finance is intended to provide
the member companies of Xiwang Group, including but not limited to the
members of the Group, with professional financial services, as well as to
minimise financial risks and enhance the general competitiveness of Xiwang
Group.

Zouping Power Branch is a branch company of Xiwang Group Company. The
scope of business of Zouping Power Branch includes supply of power, gas,
heat, water and electricity. It is also authorised to provide services in respect of
installation of power facilities, sewage and water treatment, and involve in sale
of iron ore, iron ore powder and coke.

Shandong Xiwang Sugar is a non-wholly owned subsidiary of Xiwang Group
Company and is a leading provider of starch sugars, principally engaged in corn
processing business with a focus on the production of starch sugars and corn
co-products in the PRC, and the distribution and the sale of such products
within and outside the PRC.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)

Continuing Connected Transactions

Confirmation from the independent non-executive Directors
Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the independent non-
executive Directors of the Company have reviewed the above
continuing connected transactions and are of the opinion that the
above continuing connected transactions have been (i) carried out
in the usual and ordinary course of business of the Group (except
for the Guarantee Agreement and the transactions contemplated
thereunder); (i) conducted on normal commercial terms; and (iii)
entered into in accordance with the terms of the agreement which
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Company’s
Shareholders as a whole. The Company has followed the pricing
policies and guidelines when determining the price and terms of the
above transactions conducted during the Year. Please refer to the
announcements and circulars relating to the respective transactions
for details.

Confirmation from the Auditors

The Company’s Auditors were engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with the Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised)
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note
740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the HKICPA. For the
purpose of Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Auditors of the
Company, have provided a letter to the Board confirming that
nothing has come to their attention to cause them to believe that
the continuing connected transactions:

(i) have not been approved by the Board;

(i) were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the
pricing policies of the Group for transactions involving the
provision of goods or services by the Group;

(i) were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance
with the relevant agreements governing such transactions;

and

(iv)  have exceeded the annual caps as set by the Company.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)

EFEHREE(A)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A report on the principal corporate governance practices adopted
by the Company is set out on pages 33 to 73 of this report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Company comprises of three Directors,
namely, Mr. LEUNG Shu Sun Sunny, Mr. LI Bangguang and Mr. YU
Kou who are independent non-executive Directors. Mr. LEUNG Shu
Sun Sunny serves as the chairman of the Audit Committee. The
major duties of the Audit Committee under its written terms of
reference include monitoring the integrity of the financial statements
and reports, overseeing the independence and performance of the
external auditor of the Company, reviewing the Group’s financial
reporting system and internal control procedures. The Audit
Committee has reviewed with the management the accounting
policies and practices adopted by the Group and discussed with
the management internal control and financial reporting matters of
the Company, including the review of the Group’s audited
consolidated financial results for the Year.

For the Audit Committee’s view on the Auditors’ disclaimer of
opinion regarding the Company’s financial statements, please refer
to the section headed “Corporate Governance Report — N. Material
uncertainty related to going concern” in this report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is available to the Company and as far as
the Directors are aware, the Company has maintained a sufficient
public float as required under the Listing Rules as at the date of this
report.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Subsequent to the reporting period and up to the date of this report,
the important events affecting the Group were the following:

(M

(i

(i)

Mr. Wong Di resigned as the non-executive Director and
chairman of the Company, and Mr. ZHANG Jian and Mr.
WANG Chaoqun were appointed as the chairman and
executive Director of the Company, respectively, with effect
from 14 February 2023. For further details, please refer to the
Company’s announcement dated 14 February 2023.

Merlion Macro Firm Ltd. (formerly known as Merlion Marco
Fund), one of the subscribers of the Bonds, on 17 February
2023, filed the Petition with the Court against the Company.
The Petition was filed against the Company in respect of an
indebtedness allegedly due and payable by the Company in
the amount of US$5,000,000 and default interest accrued
thereon arising from the Bonds. The Court has set the first
hearing date for the Petition on 3 May 2023.

The Company received a letter dated 21 March 2023 from the
Official Receiver’s Office of Hong Kong which stated that, inter
alia, a winding-up order was made on 20 March 2023 against
Xiwang Investment (in liquidation), which, as at the date of this
report, directly holds a total of 868,093,000 ordinary Shares of
the Company, representing approximately 36.64% of the
Company’s total issued share capital. The Company was
requested to remit a sum of RMB9,957,000 to them as a sum
allegedly due by the Company to Xiwang Investment as at 30
June 2021 within the next 21 days from the date of the letter.

Further details in relation to the abovementioned items (ii) and (iii) in
this section can be found in the Company’s announcement dated
30 March 2023. Saved as disclosed above, there were no other
important events affecting the Group subsequent to the reporting
period and up to the date of this report.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)

EFEHREE(A)

AUDITORS

The Company’s consolidated financial statements for the Year have
been audited by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited. A resolution
will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM of the Company to re-
appoint HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited as auditors of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board

ZHANG Jian
Chairman

Hong Kong, 3 April 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

B &3t F BT OA R )
HODGSON IMPEY CHENG LIMITED

HLB

31/F, Gloucester Tower
The Landmark

11 Pedder Street
Central

Hong Kong

To the Shareholders of Xiwang Special Steel Company Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements of
Xiwang Special Steel Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 115 to 258, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2022, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group. Because of the significance of the matters
described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section of our
report, we have not been able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on these
consolidated financial statements. In all other respects, in our
opinion, the consolidated financial statements have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Companies Ordinance.
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)

By BET RS (1

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

Multiple uncertainties relating to going

concern basis

We draw attention to the consolidated financial statements, which
describes that the Group incurred a gross loss and a net loss of
approximately RMB749,999,000 and RMB1,328,792,000 respectively
for the year ended 31 December 2022 and, as of that date, the Group’s
current liabilities exceeded its current assets by approximately
RMB6,549,017,000. As at that date, the Group had outstanding bank
and other borrowings with aggregate amount of approximately
RMB4,477,358,000, whilst its cash and cash equivalents amounted to
approximately RMB311,599,000. The Group had defaulted on
repayments of its debts, including: i) default in repayment of principal
amount of guaranteed secured bonds of approximately RMB99,521,000
and interests thereon of approximately RMB12,895,000; and ii) default in
repayment of principal amount of other borrowings of approximately
RMB9,605,000 and interests thereon of approximately RMB4,732,000
which had triggered other borrowings with principal amounts of
approximately RMB381,000,000 to become immediately repayable upon
demand.

These events and conditions, along with other matters as set forth in
Note 2.1 to the consolidated financial statements, indicate the existence
of material uncertainties which may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

The directors have certain plans and measures to improve the Group’s
liquidity and financial position, which are set out in Note 2.1 to the
consolidated financial statements and have review the cash flow forecast
of the Group, which have been prepared based on the assumptions that
these plans and measures will be successfully implemented by the
Group. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a
going concemn basis, the validity of which is dependent on the outcomes
of these plans and measures, which are subject to multiple uncertainties,
including (i) whether the Group is able to sell its products at the
forecasted selling prices as the Group has benchmarked to latest price
level in the steel product market, and whether the Group is able to
control its operating costs in the forecast period based on the rigorous
cost control measures planned to be undertaken by the Group over its
production process, and hence whether the cash flow forecast showing
positive operating cash flows could be achieved by the Group, which is
also dependent upon the gradual stabilisation of economic situation in
PRC; (ii) whether the Group is able to successfully conclude its
negotiations for extension of the repayment dates of the outstanding
bank and other borrowings which have fallen due or are falling due in the
next twelve months for at least another twelve months upon their
maturity during the coming year, all of which were included in the
Group’s current liabilities as at 31 December 2022; (i) whether Xiwang
Group Company, the ultimate holding company and the controlling
shareholder, will be able to provide financial support to the Group
despite the fact that the Group has received a written confirmation dated
3 April 2023 from Xiwang Group Company that it will provide continuing
financial support to the Group to enable the Group to meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due for the foreseeable future from the
date of approval for issue of these consolidated financial statements; and
(iv) whether the Group is successful in soliciting different sources of
funds, including additional banking facilities with PRC financial institutions
and strategic institutional investor, to further support the Group’s funding
needs should the aforesaid operating cash inflows turn out to be less
than forecasted.
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION
(Continued)

Multiple uncertainties relating to going
concern basis (Continued)

We have not been able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence to satisfy ourselves about the appropriateness of the use
of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements because of the lack of detailed
analyses provided by management in relation to its plans and
measures for future actions in its going concern assessment which
take into account the uncertainty of outcome of these plans and
measures and how variability in outcome would affect the future
cash flows of the Group.

Should the Group be unable to continue to operate as a going
concern, adjustments would have to be made to write down the
carrying values of assets to their recoverable amounts, to provide
for further liabilities which might arise and to reclassify non-current
assets and non-current liabilities as current assets and current
liabilities respectively. The effects of these adjustments have not
been reflected in these consolidated financial statements and we
were unable to determine whether such adjustments might have
been found necessary.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. In preparing the
consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for
assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)

W %SRS ()

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group’s consolidated
financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the HKICPA, and to issue an auditors’ report in
accordance with our agreed terms of engagement and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. However,
because of the matters described in the Basis for Disclaimer of
Opinion section of our report, we were not able to form an audit
opinion on these consolidated financial statements.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditors’ report is Kwok Tsz Chun.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Kwok Tsz Chun

Practising Certificate Number: PO6901
Hong Kong, 3 April 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COM EHENSIVE INCOME
.a.
FeExskHEMEEER
2022 2021
2022 2021 %
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B &E AR®TTT ARET T
REVENUE 1] 5 14,460,271 19,116,121
Cost of sales SHER AR (15,210,270) (18,332,165)
Gross (loss)/profit 8),/ 7 (749,999) 783,956
Other income and other He A R E b (B518), Wz
(losses)/gains, net FER 5 (27,793) 58,650
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEMAS (8,428) (13,123)
Administrative expenses TEAX (128,229) (90,314)
Other operating expenses Hin B (148,980) -
Reversal of/(impairment losses) SRMEERRL/CRESE)
on financial assets, net FER 3,802 (5,373)
Research and development costs B R AR (378,848) (387,076)
Finance costs BEKAE 7 (238,048) (289,473)
(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX BBAT (B51E) uF 6 (1,676,523) 57,247
Income tax credit PASTHAE % 10 347,731 7,784
(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FE (B8 5F (1,328,792) 65,031
(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE KATEBEREFEA
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY FEhER (BB BF
EQUITY HOLDERS OF
THE COMPANY 12
Basic and diluted AR KEE RMB(56.09) cents  RMB2.74 cents
AK¥(56.09)0  ARE¥274%H

BEEREAFRAT
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income (Continued)

GeRsEkAME2EBERE)

2022 2021
2022 2021 %
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARETTT
(LOSS) / PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FE(BR)5F (1,328,792) 65,031
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) Eft2[EK,/ (EE)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) that REZHBIEESR
may be reclassified to profit or loss in PTEERRH
subsequent periods: Hit2mEks/ (FE)
Exchange differences: MEH R
Exchange differences on translation of BEBINETSEER
foreign operations N ER 18,782 (3,778)
Bills receivables at fair value through ATEFAEMBEEREZ
other comprehensive income: JEN I -
Release on disposal of debt instruments HERAFESFAEM
at fair value through other FEMEES
comprehensive income T AR - 591
18,782 (3,187)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income that BTeREAHBERIER
will not be reclassified to profit or loss BEMNEME2E
in subsequent periods: (B8), Wz :
Equity investments designated at fair value BEBRATFEFAEAM
through other comprehensive income: iﬁl&ﬁnz%\ ®E -
Changes in fair value NEEESH (15,073) (9,402)
Income tax effect Frisfiz & 2,261 1,410
(12,812) (7,992)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) FEHM2ME K%/ (FE)
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX MBRHLIE 5,970 (11,179)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/INCOME  AAR#AEABEEERE
FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO (B8),/ WELE
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY (1,322,822) 53,852

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AREERRR

31 December 31 December

2022 2021

2022 & 2021

12H31H 12A31H

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

(= ARBT T ARET T

NON-CURRENT ASSETS FERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB NEE 13 10,849,247 11,218,379
Right-of-use assets FREEE 14 117,971 87,834
Prepayments for long term assets REPEE 2B FIE 19 172,248 198,361
Other intangible assets HEEEEE 15 579,736 477,917
Equity investment designated EEBIEAFETAHM

at fair value through other ZEWREZEREE

comprehensive income 16 51,023 66,096
Deferred tax assets EERRIBEE 24 368,228 48,469
Total non-current assets EMEBEELE 12,138,453 12,097,056
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories FE 17 348,262 1,387,544
Trade receivables FEWWE 5 A8 18 31,061 57,505
Prepayments, other receivables FERTFRIA o 8 HORIE K2

and other assets Hih&EE 19 1,971,327 1,875,311
Pledged deposits [REEEIER 20 269,466 419,272
Cash and cash equivalents BEREEZEY 20 311,599 332,182
Total current assets MENEERE 2,931,715 4,071,814
CURRENT LIABILITIES REAEE
Trade and bills payables FERHE 2 3B R ER RR 21 2,235,169 2,254,123
Other payables and accruals Hih e AN ERTE A 22 531,966 660,789
Contract liabilities SHBE 22 2,811,334 3,389,324
Dividend payables FERTIR B 290,369 290,369
Lease liabilities HEAE 14 - 479
Interest-bearing bank and ETEIRIT R EMEK

other borrowings 23 3,572,545 3,540,868
Borrowings from the ultimate KA REERATER

holding company 34(d)(ii) 447 447
Income tax payables JERTATIS R 38,902 50,373
Total current liabilities nBBEER 9,480,732 10,186,772
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEEFE (6,549,017) (6,114,958)

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT #EERLEHAR
LIABILITIES 5,589,436 5,982,098

AEREERAT —B_—FFH



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)

A MR R ()

31 December

31 December

2022 2021
2022 2021 4
12A31H 12 A31H
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
M AR® T AREF T
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Other payables HAth &~ 518 22 77,828 -
Interest-bearing bank and ETEMRIT REMIEK
other borrowings 23 904,813 33,791
Deferred tax liabilities BEEFRIBEE 24 14,879 33,569
Other long term payables H i REAEN ROE 25 130,000 130,000
Total non-current liabilities BB ERE 1,127,520 197,360
Net assets BEFE 4,461,916 5,784,738
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXRREE
Share capital RE AR 26 1,369,681 1,369,681
Reserves HiE 28 3,092,235 4,415,057
Total equity S aEE 4,461,916 5,784,738

F115 B E 258 BATHMERE MR K T
AR EEG([EE®]])MN2023F4 A3H
ERRETE WA TEERREE

The consolidated financial statements on pages 115 to 258 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors of the
Company (the “Board”) on 3 April 2023 and are signed on its behalf
by:

ZHANG Jian Sun Xinhu
R BRER
Director Director
EF EF

BER P E B X Fir A S TER M — & D -

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
AROE=RER

Attributable to owners of the parent

BRRREARL
Statutory Share Exchange
Share  Contributed Other Fair value surplus option Special  fluctuation Retained Total
capital surplus reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits equity

A fABH AEE  ATERE iERBEE  BRERRE BHRE EARBRR REEA BH4E
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  AR%Tn  ARMTR  AR¥TR  ARMTR  ARETR  ARMTR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR

(note 26) (note 28(c)) (note 28(a)) (note 27) (note 28(b))
(Hfzk26) (Fizk28(c) (Hi228(a)) (Hzk2r)  (Msk28(b))

At 1 January 2021 R0 E1A18 1,369,681 78,938 56,084 (21,4177 687,200° 1,061 163,823 3,278 3,392,248 5,730,886
Profit for the year ERRF - - - - - - - 65,031 65,031
Other comprehensive income/oss) AER £t2ENE/

forthe year: (B)
Change in far value of equity iﬁ’Nr 'U\ﬁﬁbiﬁ%ﬁ

investments at fair value through T

other comprehensive income, kR

net of tax - - - (7,992 - - - - - (7,992)
Release on disposal of debt HERATEFALEE

nstruments at far value through iz 2 BT AR

other comprehensive income - - - 591 - - - - - 591
Exchange differences on translation #EEHERELMEL

of foreign operations 28 - - - - - - - (3,778) - (8,778)
Total comprehensive income/lloss)  £E 24/ (BiE) 48

for the year - - - (7,401) - - - (3,778) 65,081 53,852
Transfer of share option reserve KB FERRESHNES

upon the lapse of share options - - - - - (759) - - 759 -
Disposal of a subsidiary ElEnRERNFR - - - - (76) - - - 76 -
Profit appropriated toreserves B FIBERE - - - - 7,908 - 2,416 - (30,324) -
Utlised special reserve BHRRHEE - - - - - (22.416) - 22,416 -
At 31 December 2021 R2021512A31R 1,369,681 78,938 56,084 (28,818 695,032" 292 163,828 (500)" 3,450,206 5,784,738
Loss for the year FEER - - - - - - - - (1328792 (1,328,792
Other comprehensive income/(loss) AEEE 2N/

forthe year: (B8):
Change in fai value of equty BATEFARB2ENE

invesiments at fair velug though ~ #)ER%ZZATELRT -

other comprehensive income, HNBHE

net of tax - - - (12,812) - - - - - (12,812
Exchange differences on ranslation 4Z§HERELRER

of foreign operations =] - - - - - - - 18,782 - 18,782
Total comprehensive oss)income  £E 2 (1) / Wiz gE

for the year 5 5 - (12812 5 5 - 18782 (138792)  (1,322822)
Transfer of share option reserve KA FERRERHES

upon the lapse of share options - - - - - (292 - - 292 -
Profit appropriated to reserves TR Z R - - - - - - 48,304 - (48,304) -
Utlised special reserve BRRRIIRE - - - - = = (48,304) = 48,304 =
At 31 December 2022 H2022812831R 1,369,681 78,938 56,084* (41,630 695,032 - 163,823* 18,282 2,121,706 4,461,916
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of 3,092,235,000 * ZERBRERESAUBRARANGERBARE

(2021: RMB4,415,057,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position. 3,092,235,000 7T (2021 4 = A & % 4,415,057,000
TL) e

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated — FEMIII T KX Hi5 A M BRI —ZLH -
financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FERERER

2022 2021
2022 F 20214
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
ihx=3 AR%Tx AR®ET T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING R& EEFESHRSHRE
ACTIVITIES
(Loss)/profit before tax KAl (E518), 5 A (1,676,523) 57,247
Adjustments for: AT BIEHEITHFE -
Interest income B A 5 (10,555) (8,593)
Depreciation of property, plant ME - BENMRENITE
and equipment 6 566,401 561,226
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ~ {F S EITE 6 2,780 2,820
Amortisation of other H R &
intangible assets 6 59,949 35,592
Foreign exchange differences, net ME H Z R F 5 5 46,512 (30,060)
(Reversal of)/impairment losses JE U E 5 30IE N E b e I
on trade receivables and B (BE),/REESRE
other receivables 6 (3,802) 5,373
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RNBAR 2 W 5 - (9,165)
Loss on disposal of items of HEWE BENMKEEE
property, plant and equipment ZEE 5 526 2,353
Written-off of trade receivables FEU E 5 R IB M GH 5 = 1,618
Finance costs BhE B 7 238,048 289,473
(776,664) 907,884
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FEORd),/ 1 1,039,282 (609,294)
Decrease in trade receivables FEW B 5 R IE R A 26,030 13,082
Increase in prepayments, other TERTHUR ~ HAah U skIE &
receivables and other assets H b & EE 0 (69,596) (416,754)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and BN E S RIBRENEE
bills payables (R A), /& mn (18,954) 129,036
(Decrease)/increase in other payables E {th f& <t 318 K B+ &
and accruals (R A), /& mn (178,052) 225,340
(Decrease)/increase in contract AHBECRD),
liabilities (577,990) 1,171,341
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

FERERERE)

2022 2021
2022 F 20214
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Ff 5 AR®T T AR®ET T
Cash (used in)/generated from BEER (A, EENRS
operations (5655,944) 1,421,535
Interest received 2 F B 14,464 8,593
PRC tax refund/(paid) BR (B BHhEfE 34,870 (13,496)
Net cash flows (used in)/generated K& EE (FTA) s
from operating activities FHERE (506,610) 1,416,632
CASH FLOWS FROM RETHMBRERE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds on disposal of property, HEWE  BEMERESN
plant and equipment FTiS 50UA 680 -
Purchases of property, plant BEEWE  BEREHE
and equipment 13 (198,475) (421,166)
Purchase of right-of-use assets BEFHESE 14(a) (32,903) -
Purchase of other intangible assets & H i\ A& 15 (159,921) (253,818)
Decrease in pledged time deposits 2 & 3R Bi1F 507 149,806 72,947
Net cash outflow from disposal of HE—HNBARMGBRESR
a subsidiary SEbEE- 38 - 6)
Net cash flows used in RETEBHMAFRRESRE
investing activities (240,813) (602,043)
CASH FLOWS FROM RETHMERERE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from bank and R1T R E M KATE IR
other borrowings 2,761,573 465,919
Principal portion of lease payments ~ F &z H AR & 35 (497) 621)
Repayment of bank and EERIT REMERK
other borrowings (1,893,805) (1,093,694)
Interest paid ERFLE (141,884) (241,175)
Net cash flows generated BMETEMRE (A FRS
from/(used in) financing RE
activities 725,387 (869,571)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

FERERERE)

2022 2021
2022 F 20214
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B E AR®T T ARBFT
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND RERBEEEEY
CASH EQUIVALENTS W (22,036) (54,982)
Cash and cash equivalents at FUEXRERECEED
beginning of year 332,182 386,812
Effect of foreign exchange rate HNETE R E B R L F R
changes, net 1,453 352
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS &£XRERELSZEY
AT END OF YEAR 20 311,599 332,182

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION

Xiwang Special Steel Company Limited (the “Company”) is a
limited company and was incorporated in the Special
Administrative Region of Hong Kong (“Hong Kong”) of the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC” or “China”) on 6
August 2007. The Company’s registered office is located at
Unit 2110, 21/F, Harbour Centre, 25 Harbour Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong. The shares of the Company have been listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) since 23 February 2012. The Group is principally
engaged in the production and sales of steel products, trading
of commodities and sale of by-products mainly in the PRC.

In the opinion of the Directors, the immediate holding company
of the Company is Xiwang Investment Company Limited (in
liquidation) (“Xiwang Investment”) (78 £ & GFR A &), which
is wholly owned by Xiwang Holdings Limited (“Xiwang
Holdings”) (78 T 1% % & BR /2 &)). During the year ended 31
December 2022 (the “Year”), the ultimate holding company of
the Company was Xiwang Group Company Limited (“Xiwang
Group Company”) (Fa £ & E B R A &]), which is incorporated
in Zouping, Shandong Province, the PRC.

Information about subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as
follows:

A B IS SRR EE

REIREEEH

AEFMAERAR(AAT]) A—H
R2007F8A6HEREARLME
([HBEDEABFIITHE(ESR]) T
M MBR AT - AR A & ot
BEMRE BT BEEBE 55 GEF
212110 FE « AR AR 3 B 2012
F2 23 HABNE BB G R 5 (] B
REFD) Eme AEBEERFBENSE
FEREEMMER BmEENHE
ERIEMET -

BEERE ARANEEEZERAAA
AEREARAFOCEEF) (BAEER
B zZARBEAEERERAR( A
FER)EZEHES - BE2022F 12 A
STHEFE(EE]  ARAIKNZEK
EBRARARTEBRERAG (AT
SEAF))  HYRAFAEILESEPF
D=l avat

fIE QB EH
AAREBMERARENT

Place and date of
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ Percentage of
registration and registered ownership interest and
Company name Notes  place of business share capital voting power held by the Company Principal activities
AL/ EREER BRAEER/ AARBENERRERR
ARER iz BHRESHY ERER REREAML IBEH
Direct Indirect
BE% i
2022 2021 2022 2021
022F  021F  002F  WNF
% % % %
Win Goal Trading Limited Hong Kong USD28,500,000 100 100 - - Trading of commodities
9 November 2012
RREFERAT EE2012511A9A 28,500,000%7C BnEs
Xiwang International Trade () PRC 24 June 2013 USD16,380,000 100 100 - - Trading of commodities
(Qingdao) Company Limited
EIBRE5(E8)ARAT hEI2013%6 4248 16,380,000% T BEnZh
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e B I RaR M EE ()

CORPORATE AND GROUP 1. REIREEEHR @
INFORMATION (continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued) M B A T &R (|
Place and date of
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ Percentage of
registration and registered ownership interest and
Company name Notes  place of business share capital voting power held by the Company Principal activities
HRAL/EREER BRfTEER/ ARRGENERRERR
ARER i BHRE$HY Bl REBAMY ITER
Direct Indirect
E# 3
2022 2021 2022 2021
02F  A1F  00F  0AF
% % % %
Xiwang Special Steel Company () &(ii)  PRC 31 December 2003 RMB704,823,000 - - 100 100 Production and sale of
Limited steel products
BIRARRAA (1 R(i) #E2003%12A318 ARK704,823,0007T EERHERIER
Zhongke Xiwang Special Steel () PRC29 June 2020 RMB650,000,000 - - 100 100 Production and sale of
Company Limited steel products
hRATRARRAR () #E00%65298 ARE650000,0007 RERHERIER
Xiwang Metal Science & Technology () & (v)  PRC 29 December 2007 USD221,800,000 100 100 - - Production and sale of
Company Limited ( “Xiwang Metal (2021: steel products
Science’) USD171,800,000)
BILEHRARAT (1R() HE007E128208 221,800,005 EERBEMIER
([ETLENH)) (2001% :
171,800,000%TC)
Shandong Xiwang Recycling &)  PRC7 May 2009 RMBG677,359,000 - - 100 100 Purchase and sale of
Resources Company Limited steel scrap
WRATEEERERAT (1 R() *RE200055878  AR¥677,359,0007 EERH
Shandong Xiwang Special Steel () PRC 14 April 2022 RMB20,000,000 - - 100 - Research and
New Materials Technology development
Innovation Centre
Company Limited
WREBTRABRHRL (I #E02F4A148  AK%20000,0007 ik

B L ERAR
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

R RRMEE (B

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP 1.
INFORMATION (Continued)

PEIREBER @

Bﬁ%ﬁ?ﬁ#ﬁl (&)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

(i)

(i

(i)

(v)

Companies registered as limited liability companies under PRC law.

As at 31 December 2022, 100% (2021: 100%) equity interests of the
subsidiary, Shandong Xiwang Recycling Resources Company Limited,
have been pledged for the Group’s other borrowings of
RMB381,000,000 (2021: RMB382,000,000) (note 23).

As at 31 December 2022, 95.6% (2021: 99.10%) equity interests of the
subsidiary, Xiwang Special Steel Company Limited, have been pledged
for other borrowings of fellow subsidiaries of RMB804,000,000 (2021:
RMB804,000,000) (note 34(b)).

As at 31 December 2022, 100% (2021: 100%) equity interests of the
subsidiary, Xiwang Metal Science, have been pledged for other
borrowings of the ultimate holding company of RMB1,400,000,000
(2021: RMB1,400,000,000) (note 34(b)).

(i)

(i)

(v)

ZERRRBHEEREMAAREMLER
7o

H2022F12 A31H  MBARILERE
BEERAR AT 100% (2021 4F : 100%)
WRECERAEEHEMERARY
381,000,000 7t #9 # # (2021 F : A R
382,000,000 7%) (K& 23) °

R2022F 12 A31 8 HEB R A7 T 5
AR A A95.6% (2021 4 : 99.1%) #h % 1
CEAREMBRARNEMERARYE
804,000,000 7t # # # (2021 F : A R
804,000,000 7t.) (i 7 34(0)) °

R2022F12A318 WEBRAARISE
FL4100% (2021 4F = 100%) & i # & 1F
REERERRAAHEMERARE
1,400,000,000 7t /)4 # (2021 F = AR ¥
1,400,000,000 7T.) (Fff5E 34(0)) °
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e B I RaR M EE ()

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION 21 REEE

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). For the purpose of
preparation of the consolidated financial statements,
information is considered material if such information is
reasonably expected to influence decisions made by primary
users. In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical cost
basis, except for financial instruments that are measured at
fair value. These financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB”) which is different from the functional
currency of the Company of Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”). The
directors of the Company adopted RMB as presentation
currency as most of Group’s transactions are denominated
and settled in RMB and this presentation is more useful for its
current and potential investors. All values are rounded to the
nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are
within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing
transactions that are accounted for in accordance with HKFRS
16 Leases , and measurements that have some similarities to
fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in
HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36 Impairment of
Assets.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

Going concern

As at 31 December 2022, the Group incurred a gross loss and
a net loss of approximately RMB749,999,000 and
RMB1,328,792,000 for the year ended 31 December 2022
and, as at that date, the Group’s current liabilities exceeded
its current assets by approximately RMB6,549,017,000, and
the Group had outstanding bank and other borrowings with an
aggregate amount of approximately RMB3,572,545,000 which
are due for repayment in the next twelve months from 31
December 2022, while its cash and cash equivalents
amounted to approximately RMB311,599,000 as at 31
December 2022. The Group had defaulted on repayments of
its debts, including: i) default in repayment of principal amount
of guaranteed secured bonds of approximately
RMB99,521,000 and interests thereon of approximately
RMB12,895,000; and ii) default in repayment of principal
amount of other borrowings of approximately RMB9,605,000
and interests thereon of approximately RMB4,732,000 which
had triggered other borrowings with principal amounts of
approximately RMB381,000,000 to become immediately
repayable upon demand.

e B ISR EE ()

1 4RV EL#E ()

SN B BmREM S - AFEE
BEAFEFENE AREHERE
ERATFEFENG ASIRYT 28
MEEUNBAE—HK FE_MRE
=& AT -

s FREABEBRERNGEAR
HR AR EEREERARER
BTS2 WE (CREHE)

s FoABABEBRIEELAMR
ERIERBABRE 2HARE
(F-RABRBORERI) &

s EZRWABBREEXARBY
TRBREABIE -

R2022F12A831H KR&EEH =
2022F 12 A31BILFEELEEEN
BB F R AR ¥ 749,999,000 7T & A
R#1,328,792,0007T ' MAE H » A
SEMNRDAEBBERBEENLD
AR #6,549,017,0007T - EAEEH
REERTREMEREBNAEAR
¥ 3,572,545,0007T I 72022 F 12
A31HBEBAKR+—EARNTEEE
mER2022F12 A1 HWIR & KR
TEBYWH AARE 311,599,000 7T °
REBHRERER 2%  DHEXE
EOEREBESFASHNARE
99,521,000t & E Fl B HH A R ¥
12,895,0007T : Mii) B /R 8 38 B M {&
ARG #) AR ¥ 9,605,000 7T K H F &
AR 4,732,0007C © fBEEBEIE BN
VEAIEENEMEREASHARE
381,000,000 7T °
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e B I RaR M EE ()

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Going concern (Continued)

These conditions indicate the existence of a material
uncertainty which may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability as a going concern, in particular the ability to discharge
its liabilities due within the next twelve months in the normal
course of business. In such circumstances, the Directors have
taken, or will continue to take, the below measures in order to
improve the Group’s short-term liquidity and cash flows in
order for the Group to sustain as a going concern and
adopted the going concern basis in the preparation of
consolidated financial statements:

o Upon the gradual stabilisation of economic situation in
the PRC, management has benchmarked to latest price
level in the steel product market, together with rigorous
cost control measures over its production, to generate
enhanced positive operating cash flows. The Group has
also reduced the product of ordinary steel which has
less demand in the market and has lower profit margin.
The Group has deployed more resources in enhancing
its production works in special steel which has a higher
profit margin.

o The Group has requested its lenders to extend the
repayment dates of the outstanding bank and other
borrowings falling due in the next twelve months for at
least another twelve months upon their maturity during
the coming year, all of which were included in the Group’s
current liabilities as at 31 December 2022. The Directors
are confident in further extending the repayment dates of
the principals of the bank and other borrowings, while the
terms were not finalised as at the date of approving these
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e B ISR EE ()

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued) R EL ()
Going concern (Continued) HFERE |

The Group has received a written confirmation dated
3 April 2023 from Xiwang Group Company, the
Company’s ultimate holding company and the controlling
shareholder, that it will provide continuing financial
support to the Group to enable the Group to meet its
financial obligations as and when they fall due for the
foreseeable future, and agreed not to demand
repayment of any of the amounts due to Xiwang Group
Company and its subsidiaries (“Xiwang Group”) by the
Group in the next twelve months from the date of this
report.

The Group is currently soliciting different sources of
funds, including additional banking facilities with PRC
financial institutions and strategic institutional investors,
to further support the Group’s funding needs should the
aforesaid operating cash inflows turn out to be less than
forecasted in the Group’s cash flows forecast prepared
by the Group’s management covering a period of 12
months from 31 December 2022.

The Group is reviewing the business operations for
various new initiatives such as accelerating the sales of
steel products to new customers and upgrading the
existing products to improve the Group’s profitability and
is implementing various cost control measures to
enhance the control over its costs of operation.

The Group commenced renegotiations of the terms of
defaulted other borrowings and defaulted guaranteed
secured bonds. The Group offered revised repayment
proposals to the relevant lenders and such proposals
had been reviewed by them. As at the date of this report,
the negotiations are still in progress. The Directors are
confident that their negotiations with the lender/
bondholder will ultimately reach a successful conclusion.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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BRI ERaR M EE ()

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Going concern (Continued)

The Directors have critically evaluated the practical realisation
of those measures that have not yet happened, together with
the management of the Company. Taking into account their
evaluation and other measures as above, the Directors expect
that the Group would be able to improve its working capital in
order to finance its operations and meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due in the foreseeable future.
Based on the Cash Flow Forecast, the management is of the
opinion that the Company will have sufficient working capital
and adequate resources to be able to continue in operational
existence, to finance its operation, and to meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due in the twelve months
from 31 December 2022. As such, they are of the opinion that
it is appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial
statements of the Company for the Year on a going concern
basis.

Should the going concern assumption be inappropriate,
adjustments may have to be made to write down the values of
the assets to their recoverable amounts, to provide for any
further liabilities that may arise, and to reclassify non-current
assets and non-current liabilities as current assets and current
liabilities, respectively. The effects of these adjustments have
not been reflected in these consolidated financial statements.

The Audit Committee of the Board (“the Audit Committee”)
has confirmed that it had objectively and critically reviewed the
measures stated above. The Audit Committee and the Board
have confidence that the Group’s business plan as referred
above is feasible and achievable.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing
rights that give the Company the current ability to direct the
relevant activities of the investee).

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases. Profit or loss and each component of
other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of
the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests,
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation. The Group reassesses whether or not it controls
an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
described above. A change in the ownership interest of a
subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction. If the Group loses control over a subsidiary,
it derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities
of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of any non-
controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative translation
differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value
of the consideration received, (ii) the fair value of any
investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in
profit or loss. The Group’s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to
profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same
basis as would be required if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities.
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do not
result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are
accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of
the Group’s relevant components of equity and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiaries, including re-attribution of
relevant reserves between the Group and the non-controlling
interests according to the Group’s and the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted, and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity
and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if any)
are derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
and is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate
of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value
of any retained interest and (ii) the carrying amount of the
assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary
attributable to the owners of the Company. All amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the
subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to
another category of equity as specified/permitted by
applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained
in the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent
accounting under HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (‘HKFRS 9”)
or, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or a joint venture.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2.2 APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountant (“HKICPA”) for the first time for
their annual reporting period commencing on or after 1
January 2022:

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the
Conceptual Framework

Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond
30 June 2021

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment —
Proceeds before Intended Use

Amendments to HKAS 37  Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract

Amendments to HKFRSs  Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
positions and performance for the current and prior years and/
or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e B I RaR M EE ()

2.2 APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue
but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not

yet effective:
HKFRS 17 (including
the October 2020 and
February 2022
Amendments to
HKFRS 17)
Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

134

Insurance Contracts'

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture?

Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback®

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and
related amendments to
Hong Kong Interpretation 5
(2020)!

Disclosure of Accounting Policies!

Definition of Accounting
Estimates’

Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from
a Single Transaction'
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2.2 APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue
but not yet effective (Continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.
s Effective for annual periods beginning on or 1 January 2024.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
all new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material
impact on the consolidated financial statements in the
foreseeable future.

2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by
the Company on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments if
the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of the
subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e B I RaR M EE ()

2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 23 FEEHBEHMEm

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the consolidated financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the Group’s
chief operating decision maker for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or to provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose entities)
over which the Group has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies generally accompanying a shareholding
of more than one half of the voting rights. The existence and
effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or
convertible are considered when assessing whether the Group
controls another entity.

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for the
acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group which qualifies as
business combination, except for those acquisitions which
qualify as a common control combination and are therefore
accounted for using the merger accounting.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Under the purchase method of accounting, subsidiaries are
fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred
to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date that
control ceases. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the
fair value of the assets given, equity instruments issued and
liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of exchange and, all
acquisition-related costs are expensed. |dentifiable assets
acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their fair values
at the acquisition date. On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis,
the Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share
of the acquiree’s net assets.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in the
acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If this is less than the fair
value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case
of a bargain purchase, the difference is recognised directly in
the consolidated statements of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of
completion and costs necessary to make the sale. Costs
necessary to make the sale include incremental costs directly
attributable to the sale and non-incremental costs which the
Group must incur to make the sale.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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BRI ERaR M EE ()

2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it
is probable that the Group will be required to settle that
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation at
the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision
is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of
those cash flows (where the effect of the time value of money
is material).

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

R RRMEE (B

2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 23 FESHHRME @
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Related parties (Continued) EAHE 5 ()
(b) the party is an entity where any of the following ) —FHAFE TIINEMEHNE
conditions applies: fe
()  the entity and the Group are members of the same () FZEBEASE —5HF
group; BB A Al
(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the iy —REERBES—EB(XS
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow —EENERT - WEAA
subsidiary of the other entity); BAGES b= WNGIDE= o) —/N
Al EERE
(i)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the iy “mEREANEBRAR—
same third party; TS ERE
(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the vy —HEBRF=SEENSE
other entity is an associate of the third entity; BhE - mME—EBRE=
FEBNEE AT
(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the v) BREBATNSBESEALE
benefit of employees of either the Group or an BB BBt E B M =EH
entity related to the Group; SHEEBENETE
(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a Vi) ZEBI@BEFEMAL
person identified in (a); PRk & EE S
(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence (vi) R (@)BFIIEMALEHZE
over the entity or is a member of the key BEEATENNBEBZER
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent (LZEBHYRA)ME
of the entity); and ZEHEENE &
(vii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is (vii) ZERBIZEBEEMBESERD
a part, provides key management personnel ERKERA] - BAREE
services to the Group or to the parent of the REEGARREEZZERE
Group. ANB AR -
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. When an item of property, plant
and equipment is classified as held for sale or when it is part
of a disposal group classified as held for sale, it is not
depreciated and is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS
5. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss in the period
in which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition
criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is
capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a
replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful
lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal
annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings 2.5% - 3.3%
Machinery and equipment 5% - 6.6%
Motor vehicles 20%
Office equipment and fixtures 20%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and the
depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the
year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset.

Construction in progress represents buildings, machinery and
equipment and office equipment and fixtures under
construction, which are stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and are not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct
costs of construction and capitalised borrowing costs on
related borrowed funds during the period of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed
and ready for use.

Other intangible assets (other than
goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value at the date of
acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed
to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives
are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period
and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a
finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of the reporting
period.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets acquired separately
Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses/revalued amounts,
being their fair value at the date of the revaluation less
subsequent accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets with finite
useful lives is recognised on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and
amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being
accounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried
at cost less any subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains and losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are
recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Intellectual properties

Purchased patents and licences are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised on the straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives of 10 years.

Software

Software is stated at cost less any impairment losses and is
amortised on the straight-line basis over its estimated useful
life of 10 years.

Research and development costs
All research and developments costs are charged to profit or
loss as incurred.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment on property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and
intangible assets other than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets and intangible assets with finite useful lives to
determine whether there is any indication that these assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, and intangible assets are estimated
individually. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount individually, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the Cash Generating Units (“CGU”) to which the
asset belongs.

In testing a CGU for impairment, corporate assets are
allocated to the relevant CGU when a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be established, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis
can be established. The recoverable amount is determined for
the CGU or group of CGUs to which the corporate asset
belongs, and is compared with the carrying amount of the
relevant CGU or group of CGUs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset (or a CGU) for which the estimates of future cash
flows have not been adjusted.
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment on property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and
intangible assets other than goodwill
(Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or a CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. For
corporate assets or portion of corporate assets which cannot
be allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis to a CGU,
the Group compares the carrying amount of a group of CGUs,
including the carrying amounts of the corporate assets or
portion of corporate assets allocated to that group of CGUs,
with the recoverable amount of the group of CGUs. In
allocating the impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if
applicable) and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis
based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the
group of CGUs. The carrying amount of an asset is not
reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and
zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise
have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the
other assets of the unit or the group of CGUs. An impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or CGU or a group of CGUs) is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or a CGU or a group of
CGUs) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date of
initial application or arising from business combinations, the
Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease
based on the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception,
modification date or acquisition date, as appropriate. Such
contract will not be reassessed unless the terms and
conditions of the contract are subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of
the non-lease components.

The Group applies practical expedient not to separate non-
lease components from lease component, and instead
account for the lease component and any associated non-
lease components as a single lease component.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to leases of machinery and equipment, that have a lease term
of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do
not contain a purchase option. It also applies the recognition
exemption for lease of low-value assets to leases of office
equipment and laptop computers that are considered to be of
low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line
basis or another systematic basis over the lease term.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A BTSRRI RE (48

2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 23 FEEHBEHMEm

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

° the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

° any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives received;

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

o an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the
underlying asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain
to obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end
of the lease term are depreciated from commencement date
to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term.

Leasehold lands and buildings

Leasehold lands 50 years
Buildings 21 months — 2 years

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of lease
payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the
present value of lease payments, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date
if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.

The lease payments include:

° fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable;

o variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

° amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees;

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

° payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising an option to terminate
the lease.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR RRMEE (B

2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by
interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)
whenever:

o the lease term has changed or there is a change in the
assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which
case the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the date of reassessment.

o the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review, in which
cases the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using the initial
discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on
the consolidated statement of financial position.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate
lease if:

o the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

o the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the
increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments to
that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances of the
particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability based
on the lease term of the modified lease by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the
effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities
by making corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-of-
use asset. When the modified contract contains a lease
component and one or more additional lease or non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the
modified contract to each lease component on the basis of
the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the
aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 23 FEEHBEHMEm

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessor

Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as finance
or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership
of an underlying asset to the lessee, the contract is classified
as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating
leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”), and fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL”).

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for managing
them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting the
effect of a significant financing component, the Group initially
measures a financial asset at its fair value, plus in the case of
a financial asset not at FVTPL, transaction costs.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or FVTOCI, it needs to give rise to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on
the principal amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash
flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at FVTPL,
irrespective of the business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines whether
cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows,
selling the financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified
and measured at amortised cost are held within a business
model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified
and measured at FVTOCI are held within a business model
with the objective of both holding to collect contractual cash
flows and selling. Financial assets which are not held within
the aforementioned business models are classified and
measured at FVTPL.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on the trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

nv'.R
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at FVTOCI (debt instruments)

For bills receivable at FVTOCI, interest income, foreign
exchange revaluation and impairment losses or reversals are
recognised in profit or loss and computed in the same manner
as for financial assets measured at amortised cost. The
remaining fair value changes are recognised in other
comprehensive income. Upon derecognition, the cumulative
fair value change recognised in other comprehensive income
is recycled to profit or loss.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Financial assets designated at FVTOCI (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify
irrevocably its equity investments as equity investments
designated at FVTOCI when they meet the definition of equity
under HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are
not held for trading. The classification is determined on an
instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled
to profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as “other income
and gains/(losses), net” in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income when the right of
payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured
reliably, except when the Group benefits from such proceeds
as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which
case such gains are recorded in other comprehensive income.
Equity investments designated at FVTOCI are not subject to
impairment assessment.
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value with net
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected to
classify at FVTOCI. Dividends on equity investments classified
as financial assets at FVTPL are also recognised as “other
income and gains/(losses), net” in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income when the
right of payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured
reliably.

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial
liability or non-financial host, is separated from the host and
accounted for as a separate derivative if the economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to the host; a
separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded
derivative would meet the definition of a derivative; and the
hybrid contract is not measured at FVTPL. Embedded
derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss. Reassessment only occurs if
there is either a change in the terms of the contract that
significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be
required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of the
FVTPL category.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing a
financial asset host is not accounted for separately. The
financial asset host together with the embedded derivative is
required to be classified in its entirety as a financial asset at
FVTPL.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in
the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have
to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in a debt instrument
classified as at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the FVTOCI reserve is reclassified to profit or
loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which
the Group has elected on initial recognition to measure at
FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in
the FVTOCI reserve is not reclassified to profit or loss, but is
transferred to retained profits.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

nv'.R

BRI ERaR M EE ()

2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit losses (“ECLs”) model for all debt instruments not held
at FVTPL. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract
and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest
rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the
sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are
integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses
that result from default events that are possible within the next
12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for
which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective
of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit
risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since
initial recognition. When making the assessment, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort,
including historical and forward-looking information.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
General approach (Continued)

For bills receivable at FVTOCI, the Group applies the low
credit risk simplification. At each reporting date, the Group
evaluates whether the bills receivable are considered to have
low credit risk using all reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort. In
making that evaluation, the Group reassesses the external
credit ratings of the bills receivable. In addition, the Group
considers that there has been a significant increase in credit
risk when contractual payments are more than three months
past due.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are six months past due. However, in
certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset
to be in default when internal or external information indicates
that the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding
contractual amounts in full before taking into account any
credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is
written off when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovering the contractual cash flows.

Bills receivable at FVTOCI and financial assets at amortised
cost are subject to impairment under the general approach
and they are classified within the following stages for
measurement of ECLs except for trade receivables which
apply the simplified approach as detailed below.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A BTSRRI RE (48

2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
General approach (Continued)

Stage 1

Stage 2

Stage 3

Financial instruments for which credit risk has
not increased significantly since initial
recognition and for which the loss allowance
is measured at an amount equal to 12-month
ECLs

Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition
but that are not credit-impaired financial
assets and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the
loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs

1 58 XIWANG SPECIAL STEEL COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022

23 FEEFBEBMEm@m

ERMEERE @

—R7IE ()
F—HR —

F_HA —
FZHA —

FERK B B XER
AT | K EF I&
HERI2EAEHRES
EBEFEEBEEREN D
mMITE

EERR B & IRER
Xﬁ%tﬂ(@l#%
EXBENEREE)
BEENED ﬂ%ﬁ%
FEEERAEBERE
MR TH

REmERRERERIE
(BEEERYLERBAL
R ERR) - WK

mBERBEHEER
BERFEERREBNE
BMEE



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Simplified approach

For trade receivables without significant financing component,
the Group applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs.
Under the simplified approach, the Group does not track
changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on its historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

For collective assessment, the Group takes into consideration
the following characteristics when formulating the grouping:

° Past-due status;
o Nature, size and industry of debtors; and
° External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure
the constituents of each group continue to share similar credit
risk characteristics.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

nv'.R
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including trade and bills payables, other
payables and accruals, dividend payables, interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings, borrowings from the ultimate
holding company and lease liabilities) are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Except for changes in the basis for determining the contractual
cash flows as a result of interest rate benchmark reform in
which the Group applies the practical expedient, when the
contractual terms of a financial liability are modified, the Group
assess whether the revised terms result in a substantial
modification from original terms taking into account all relevant
facts and circumstances including qualitative factors. If
qualitative assessment is not conclusive, the Group considers
that the terms are substantially different if the discounted
present value of the cash flows under the new terms, including
any fees paid net of any fees received, and discounted using
the original effective interest rate, is at least 10 per cent
different from the discounted present value of the remaining
cash flows of the original financial liability. Accordingly, such
modification of terms is accounted for as an extinguishment,
any costs or fees incurred are recognised as part of the gain
or loss on the extinguishment. The exchange or modification is
considered as non-substantial modification when such
difference is less than 10 per cent.

For non-substantial modifications of financial liabilities that do
not result in derecognition, the carrying amount of the relevant
financial liabilities will be calculated at the present value of the
modified contractual cash flows discounted at the financial
liabilities’ original effective interest rate. Transaction costs or
fees incurred are adjusted to the carrying amount of the
modified financial liabilities and are amortised over the
remaining term. Any adjustment to the carrying amount of the
financial liability is recognised in profit or loss at the date of
modification.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

nv'.R

BRI ERaR M EE ()

2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from loss before tax because of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-use
assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to the
right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12
Income Taxes requirements to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities separately. Temporary differences on initial
recognition of the relevant right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities are not recognised due to application of the initial
recognition exemption. Temporary differences arising from
subsequent revision to the carrying amounts of right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities, resulting from remeasurement of
lease liabilities and lease modifications, that are not subject to
initial recognition exemption are recognised on the date of
remeasurement or modification.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied to the same taxable entity by the same taxation
authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income
on a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, which it
is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for
the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Group
with no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they become receivable. Such grants are
presented under “other income and gains/(losses), net”.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a
bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of the
following criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs;

° the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

nv'.R

BRI ERaR M EE ()

2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due)
from the customer.

Sale of industrial products

Revenue from the sale of steel products, trading of
commodities and sales of by-products is recognised at point
in time when control of the asset is transferred to the
customer, generally on delivery of the industrial products, the
customer has accepted the products, and there is no
unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customer’s
acceptance of the products. Delivery occurs when the
products have been shipped to the specified location, the
risks of obsolescence and loss have been transferred to the
customer, and either the customer has accepted the products
in accordance with the sales contract, the acceptance
provisions have lapsed, or the Group has objective evidence
that all criteria for acceptance have been satisfied.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Employees (including directors) of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments,
whereby employees render services as consideration for
equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is
measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which
they are granted. The fair value is determined by an external
valuer using a binomial model.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the performance
and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end of each
reporting period until the vesting date reflects the extent to
which the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. The charge or credit to profit or loss for a
period represents the movement in the cumulative expense
recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken
into account when determining the grant date fair value of
awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is
assessed as part of the Group’s best estimate of the number
of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market
performance conditions are reflected within the grant date fair
value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but without
an associated service requirement, are considered to be non-
vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the
fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of
an award unless there are also service and/or performance
conditions.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 23 FEEHBEHMEm

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met, no
expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or
non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether or not the market or non-vesting
condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance and/
or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In
addition, an expense is recognised for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payments, or
is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the
date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not
yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This
includes any award where non-vesting conditions within the
control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled
award, and is designated as a replacement award on the date
that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as
if they were a modification of the original award, as described
in the previous paragraph.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to share
capital.

When shares granted are vested, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to
retained profits.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Other employee benefits

Pension scheme

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
PRC are required to participate in a central pension scheme
operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute to the central pension
scheme which are based on a certain percentage of the total
salary of these employees. The contributions are charged to
the statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the central pension scheme.

Mandatory Provident Fund

The Company’s subsidiaries incorporated in Hong Kong
operate a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its
employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged
to the statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme except for the employer voluntary
contributions, which are refunded to the Company’s
subsidiaries which are incorporated in Hong Kong when an
employee leaves employment prior to the contributions vesting
fully, in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e B I RaR M EE ()

2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 23 FEEHBEHMEm

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing
costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing
costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs
in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed
final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at
the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s operations
are translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e.
RMB) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Income and expenses items are translated at
the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in which case
the exchange rates at the date of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of exchange fluctuation reserve (attributed to non-
controlling interests as appropriate).
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of
the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a joint
arrangement or an associate that includes a foreign operation
of which the retained interest becomes a financial asset), all of
the exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of
that operation attributable to the owners of the Company are
reclassified to profit or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that
does not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary,
the proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences
are re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are not
recognised in profit or loss.

Exchange differences relating to the retranslation of the
Group’s net assets in Hong Kong dollars to the Group’s
presentation currency (i.e. RMB) are recognised directly in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in exchange
fluctuation reserve. Such exchange differences accumulated in
the exchange fluctuation reserve are not reclassified to profit
or loss subsequently.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 2.3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
underlying assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

Write-down of inventories to net realisable value

A write-down of inventories to net realisable value is made
based on the estimated net realisable value of the inventories.
The assessment of the required write-down involves
management’s judgement and estimates on market
conditions. Where the actual outcome or expectation in future
is different from the original estimate, the differences will have
an impact on the carrying amounts of inventories and the
write-down/write-back of inventories in the period in which the
estimate has been changed.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Fair value of unlisted equity investments

The unlisted equity investments have been valued based on a
market-based valuation technique as detailed in note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements. The valuation requires the
Group to determine the comparable public companies (peers)
and select the price multiple. In addition, the Group makes
estimates about the discount for illiquidity and size differences.
The Group classifies the fair value of these investments
as Level 3. The fair value of the unlisted equity investments
at 31 December 2022 was RMB51,023,000 (2021:
RMB66,096,000). Further details are included in note 16 to
the financial statements.

Deferred tax assets

As at 31 December 2022, a deferred tax asset of
RMB363,292,000 (2021: RMB45,165,000) in relation to
unused tax losses for certain operating subsidiaries has been
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised on the tax losses
for non-operating subsidiaries due to the unpredictability of
future profit streams. The realisability of the deferred tax asset
mainly depends on whether sufficient future profits or taxable
temporary differences will be available in the future. In cases
where the actual future taxable profits generated are less or
more than expected, or change in facts and circumstances
which result in revision of future taxable profits estimation, a
material reversal or further recognition of deferred tax assets
may arise, which would be recognised in profit or loss for the
period in which such a reversal or further recognition takes
place.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Provision of ECL for trade receivable, deposits and other
receivables

The Group’s management determines the provision of ECL for
trade receivables based on the ECL which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables. For deposits
and other receivables, the provision of ECL is based on
12-month ECL (“12m ECL”), unless there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, in
which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The loss
allowances for financial assets are based on assumptions
about risk of default and expected loss rates. The Group uses
judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the
inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the Group’s
past history, existing market conditions as well as forward-
looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.
Management reassesses the provision at each reporting date.
The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. The
information about the ECL for trade receivables, deposits and
other receivables are disclosed in Note 37.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Estimated impairment of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets are
stated at costs less accumulated depreciation and impairment,
if any. In determining whether an asset is impaired, the Group
has to exercise judgement and make estimation, particularly in
assessing: (1) whether an event has occurred or any indicators
that may affect the asset value; (2) whether the carrying value
of an asset can be supported by the recoverable amount, in
the case of value in use, the net present value of future cash
flows which are estimated based upon the continued use of
the asset; and (3) the appropriate key assumptions to be
applied in estimating the recoverable amounts including cash
flow projections and an appropriate discount rate. When it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset (including right-of-use assets), the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit
to which the assets belongs, including allocation of corporate
assets when a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation
can be established, otherwise recoverable amount is
determined at the smallest group of cash-generating units, for
which the relevant corporate assets have been allocated.
Changing the assumptions and estimates, including the
discount rates or the growth rate in the cash flow projections,
could materially affect the recoverable amounts.

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amounts of the
property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and
intangible assets subject to impairment assessment were
RMB10,849,247,000, RMB117,971,000 and
RMB579,736,000 (2021: RMB11,218,379,000,
RMB87,834,000 and RMB477,917,000) respectively, no
impairment losses have been recognised during the year.
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T A R #87,834,0007T & A R #
477,917,0007T) * F AW R ERRE
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
maker (“CODM”). The CODM, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the board of Directors that
makes strategic decisions.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and has four reportable
operating segments as follows:

(@) the ordinary steel segment, which engages in the
production and sale of ordinary steel products;

(b) the special steel segment, which engages in the
production and sale of special steel products;

(c) the trading of commodities segment, which mainly
engages in the trading of commodities such as iron ore
dust, pellets, steel billets and coke; and

(d) the by-products segment, which includes the sale of by-
products such as steel slag, steam and electricity.

4.

e B ISR EE ()
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EE T

%%Bm W7 A H A E B ER
%%UIE%E&%%D&T%W%
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DEMRANETBLZERRECHER
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BRI Sk (N S ]
HMETER  BRIEXENHAFHE
PEBERTE  BEEmMMREMLE -
iémﬁi&g %T}E'E’J,@*HZ%EEIJ
DEREmBRERGABN T A LE
ERENEETEGEAL - ﬂﬂ?%
BRHK LD BT A RF0FLE
Alls e ETTHELR -

REEMS  AEERBEEEMED
HEBEL AIORNATOERRS

WEHE

(@) WoEE - At ELEERKE

i)
BMER

b1
=

stz
=

n

(o) M R EEEREESE
off] 22 5

) HmEZE  BEXERFEE
M BRERE - T REREE
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

nv'.R

BRI ERaR M EE ()

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

Segment reporting (Continued)

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions
about resource allocation and performance assessment.
Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable
segment profit/loss, which is a measure of adjusted profit/loss
before tax.

Segment (loss)/profit represents the (losses)/profit by each
segment without allocation of other income and other gains/
(losses), net, selling and distribution expenses, administrative
expenses, other operating expenses, reversal of/(impairment
loss) on financial assets, net, research and development costs
and finance costs. This is the measure reported to the CODM
for the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference
to the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the
then prevailing market prices.

The CODM makes decisions according to operating results of
each segment. No analysis of segment asset and segment
liability is presented as the CODM does not regularly review
such information for the purposes of resources allocation and
performance assessment. Therefore, only segment revenue
and segment results are presented.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e B ISR EE ()

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

4. BESFHER

Segment reporting (Continued) DR (|)
The segment results and other segment items included in WMEHIN - T AGTA(ERE) HA
(loss)/profit before tax for the reporting period are as follows: MO EEE N EMSLEB T

Ordinary Special Trading of
steel steel commodities By-products Consolidated
ERA 54 ERES BHER &8
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETn AR®Tn ARETn ARET:n
Year ended 31 December 2022 BE202F12A3N ALEE
Segment revenue: PEEEE
Sales to external customers HETINSBER 5,945,932 3,483,072 4,525,714 505,553 14,460,271
Intersegment sales DEEHEE 6,677,849 3,911,822 1,237,446 417,260 12,244,377
12,623,781 7,394,894 5,763,160 922,813 26,704,648
Cost of sales WERA (6193482  (3958,632)  (4,532,238)  (525918)  (15,210,270)
Gross loss EZ) (247,550) (475,560) (6,524) (20,365) (749,999)
Reconciliation: iR
Other income and other Hf A REAM,

(losses}/gains, net (B8B),/ s %48 (27,793)
Seling and distribution expenses HERDHEX (8,428)
Administrative expenses TBEX (128,229)
Other operating expenses HEf2ERY (148,980)
Reversal of impairment losses on SREERERERRTE

financial assets, net 3,802
Research and development costs R A (378,848)
Finance costs BERA (238,048)
Loss before tax BRHAEE (1,676,523)
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A BTSRRI RE (48

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. & 95HEH @
(Continued)
Segment reporting (Continued) o EIRE (@)
Ordinary Special Trading of
steel steel commodities  By-products  Consolidated
Limi S| AmES BlEm Fa
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBFT ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARETR
Year ended 31 December 2021 HE20201 51283 BILEE
Segment revenue: NEEER:
Sales to external customers HETINEEP 0,414,891 3,664,146 5,372,183 664,901 19,116,121
Intersegment sales NERIEE 8,486,909 2,846,689 2,005,311 1,439,148 14,778,057
17,901,800 6,510,835 7,377,494 2,104,049 33,894,178
Cost of sales HERAK (8,778,307)  (3,691,925)  (5,324,887) (637,046) (18,332,165)
Gross profit EF 636,584 72,221 47,296 27,855 783,956
Reconciliation: iR
Other income and gains/(losses), net ~ EH A R itzs /(E518) - %% 58,650
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEHST (13,123)
Administrative expenses Y (90,314)
Impairment loss on financial PREEREEETE
assets, net (5,373)
Research and development costs s (387,076)
Finance costs AR AR (289,473)
Profit before tax BRBATRR 57,247
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e B ISR EE ()

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION RESEER @)
(Continued)
Geographical information mEER
2022 2021
2022 F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T
PRC =8 14,460,271 19,116,121
The revenue information above is based on the locations of T EEEER AR PTE AR
the customers. SEEY o

The principal non-current assets and capital expenditure of
the Group were located and incurred in the PRC. Accordingly,
no further geographical information is presented.

Information about major customers

For the year ended 31 December 2022, revenue from
transactions with a single external customer amounted to
approximately 60.1% (2021: approximately 64.6%) of the
Group’s total revenue which was from sales of ordinary steel
and special steel products.

AEENEEFERPEENEARAY
HARRFBERRFREES - BAit - I
mE—SEMEER -

FEEXFWEHR

202212 A31H HEB — I H R
IR S A L AL B E T
8 2= i Y R IR A 49 60.1% (2021 4F & 49
64.6%) °
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e B I RaR M EE ()

5. REVENUE, OTHERINCOMEAND OTHER 5. & %%  Hi W A R Ik

(LOSSES)/GAINS, NET =/ (E518) - 38
Revenue from contracts with customers BEFEHNWE
() Disaggregated revenue information (i) #HMoEEHREH
For the year ended 31 December 2022 BZE2022F12A31 ALLFE
Sale of Sale of  Trading of Sale of
ordinary steel special steel commodities by-products Total
Segments g HELRHE HERE BmER HEIEM @i

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
ARBTR ARETR ARBIRT AR®TR ARWTR

Type of goods TmER
Sales of industrial products & T %£E R 5,945,932 3,483,072 4,525,714 505,553 14,460,271

Geographical markets B miiz

PRC H 5,945,932 3,483,072 4,525,714 505,553 14,460,271
Timing of revenue EEERIALHY

recognition
A point in time REERSZ 5,945,932 3,483,072 4,525,714 505,553 14,460,271

1 82 XIWANG SPECIAL STEEL COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND OTHER 5.
(LOSSES)/GAINS, NET (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers

(Continued)

(i) Disaggregated revenue information (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

BRI SRR EE ()

nv'.R

EEHE -HMWAREK
=(8518) BEw

EFEEHNE @

() HMoEEREEH(E)
HE2021FE12 A1 BILEE

Sale of Sale of Trading of Sale of
ordinary steel  special steel commodities  by-products Total
Segments A HEL B HERH HmEs HEIESD @ar
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETRT AREBTRT ARETRT ARETR
Type of goods AmER
Sales of industrial products $4& T£E S 9,414,891 3,664,146 5,372,183 664,901 19,116,121
Geographical markets B3 miz
PRC s 9,414,891 3,664,146 5,372,183 664,901 19,116,121
Timing of revenue EEERALHY
recognition
A point in time R (EEE 9,414,891 3,664,146 5,372,183 664,901 19,116,121
All revenue contracts are for a period of one year or less, BIEE B BHRELERE 1552

as permitted by practical expedient under HKFRS 15,
the transaction price allocated to these unsatisfied
contracts is not disclosed.

EREENE IBEREEHOH
RY—FFAT  PEEZFR

T RX ST

BERANZ X HERLAREE
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e B I RaR M EE ()

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND OTHER 5.

(LOSSES)/GAINS, NET (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

(ii) Other income and other (losses)/gains, net

EEE - HMWBAR(E
8/), WS BEE @

EFAERNWE @

(i) HeWARHEM(EER) W
HE

2022 2021

2022 F 2021

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ET T ARBET T

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE BB ARz K& - 9,165

Bank interest income |ITH B A 6,902 5,661
Interest income from Xiwang Group 2% 5 78 F &£ B 7

Finance Company Limited BRA 7

(“Xiwang Finance”) ([BEEHBE])

(ATEBEVBERAR) "I FEHA 3,653 2,932
Rental income el A 721 895
Government grants (note) B B (B 5E) 4,658 17,667
Guarantee fee from Xiwang KEATEBE QAN

Group Company ERE 3,306
Foreign exchange differences, net  SNE =585 48 (46,512) 30,060
Late charge for late payment of tax T F% 444 = (233)
Loss on disposal of property, LEME - BEX

plant and equipment BB EE (526) (2,353)
Loss on derecognition of financial 4R |FHERIR A FEEA

assets measured at fair value HEf2mElaEe

through other comprehensive TREEERE

income (750) -
Written-off of trade receivables Ut Z 5 ZRIE 8 = (1,618)
Others Hh 755 (3,526)

(27,793) 58,650

Note: During the year ended 31 December 2022, government grants
were mainly granted to the Group as (i) subsidies to support the
operations of the PRC subsidiaries and (ii) coronavirus disease
(“COVID-19")-related subsidies which is related to Employment
Support Scheme provided by the Hong Kong government. The
government grant had no conditions or contingencies attracted to
them and they were non-recurring in nature.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, government grants
were mainly granted to the Group as subsidies to support the
operations of the PRC subsidiaries.

184
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e B ISR EE ()

(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. BR¥LAT(E5E), EF
The Group’s (loss) / profit before tax is arrived at after AEBRBFERT(EER), % H T &4
charging/(crediting): B (GEA)AT&EEET
2022 2021
2022 2021 F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

B ARBTT ARETT

Cost of inventories sold DEFE/KA 14,302,219 17,687,861
Depreciation of property, Y - BERREITE
plant and equipment 13 566,401 561,226
Depreciation of right-of-use assets {FREZERE 14(a) 2,780 2,820
Amortisation of other H b\ & A i
intangible assets 15 59,949 35,592
Research and development costs B E£AK 2N 378,848 387,076
Expenses incurred during FEBEEEMNAS
suspension of production (Note (i))  (FI#E (i) 148,980 -
Lease payments not included in the FEfATREEEIE Y
measurement of lease liabilities HEMK 1,062 5,116
Auditor’s remuneration % SREM BN &
— audit service - EEHARTE 1,500 1,500
— non-audit service - JEFET AR TS 564 130
Employee benefit expense BERAMXZ
(including directors’ remuneration):  (EIEEZFEHB) :
Wages and salaries IE&ENH® 217,657 265,153
Pension scheme and RIREFTEI R
MPF Scheme contributions BEEETE
(Note (ii)) R 3R OB 3 (i) 36,983 20,973
Staff welfare expenses B TEAMAX 6,036 4,523
260,676 290,649

(Reversal of)/impairment losses of FEHEEEBERBE N2

financial assets under TRVEE (BE),RE
expected credit loss model: 518 -
Trade receivables JEWE 5B 18 414 (785)
Other receivables H b B IR 19 (4,216) 6,158
(3,802) 5,373
Notes: B 5

(i) Included in the other operating expenses. M ATARfEER -

PREHR - ANEEIW 8RR AT
HORAREZENRAK S B HBED S

K-

(if) As at the end of the reporting period, the Group had no forfeited (i)
contributions available to reduce its contributions to the pension scheme
or the MPF Scheme in future years.

AEREERAT —B_—FFH



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e B I RaR M EE ()

7. FINANCE COSTS 7. MEBRK
An analysis of finance costs from continuing operations is as SIERE R EKN AN DT T -
follows:
2022 2021
2022 F 2021 £
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARETT

Interest on bank and other borrowings #7717} £ fb & 5% 715 270,258 321,645
Finance costs on bills discounted ERIR R R E R A 24,282 41,540
Interest on borrowings from the ultimate &4 A B Z B F] 8
holding company (note 34(a)(ii)) (B 5E 34(a)(i) - 4
Interest on borrowings from T8 7%
Xiwang Finance ZBRFE
(note 34(a)iii)) (Bf 53 34 (a)(iii)) 2,166 2,067
Interest on lease liabilities (note 30(b)) @& E 72 (M EE30(b)) 26 40
Total interest expense on TWIEIE A EE ABES
financial liabilities not at FVTPL cRAEEMNERAXERE 296,732 365,296
Less: Interest capitalised (note) B BRI B () (58,684) (75,823)
238,048 280,473
Note: Where funds have been borrowed generally, and used for the purpose of MisE: MESB—RER TARBESERKE
obtaining qualifying assets, a capitalisation rate ranging between 7.0% E-AMAREENREZBANF7.0% K%
and 18.4% (2021: 7.8% and 10.37%) has been applied to the 13.4% (2021 4F : 7.8% 2= 10.37%) 9 kb &
expenditure on the individual assets. BIREATR -
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 8.

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the
Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies

R RRMEE (B

EEHM

EERNFANME IRE LRI
BB R AEDIZE 383(1)@) ~ (b) ~ () & (f)
AR AR (RBEEZEMmER) RO

(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) PH I EWENT -
Regulation, is as follows:
2022 2021
2022 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARETIT

Fees we 230 224
Other emoluments: EmEN< -
Salaries, allowances and benefits e EUMAEDNE
in kind 1,244 1,304
Pension scheme contributions IRIREET B 42 41
1,516 1,569

No directors (2021: Nil) were granted share options, in respect
of their services to the Group, under the share option scheme
of the Company, further details of which are set out in note 27
to the consolidated financial statements.

(a) Independent non-executive directors
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors

WEEER(20215F  B)RBRELLE
B A R RIE AN R B B HE AT &
ERERECE-—FFBIANGEAUH
HRMEE27) -

(@) BYFHTES
FERNE B IIRTEENR

during the year were as follows: BT -
2022 2021
2022 F 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARETTT

Mr. Leung Shu Sun Sunny DA FT A 128 124
Mr. Yu Kou FApse 4 51 50
Mr. Li Bangguang THERE 51 50

230 224
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR RRMEE (B

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued) 8. FEZE i (=)

(b) Executive directors and non-executive (b) BITESRIPITES
directors
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees in kind  contributions  remuneration
e BER e
He BEYFIE FHEIMER MemsE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT AR T ARETT ARETT

2022 2022 F

Executive director and ~ #I1TEE K&
chief executive officer:  {TE4EH, :

Mr. Zhang Jian RELAE - 465 15 480
Executive directors: HITES

Ms. Li Hai Xia TEELL - 244 12 256

Mr. Sun Xinhu BHELE - 535 15 550

= 779 27 806

Non-executive director:  FEEITE S :

Mr. Wang Di THREE = = = =

= 1,244 42 1,286

During the year ended 31 December 2022, no HE2022F12 A1 HIEFE

emolument have been paid by the Group to any of the AEEBERARNESEREET

directors and the chief executive officer as an BAEZHME  EANMARSE

inducement to join or upon joining the Group as B =8 h0 A AN 65 (] 12 i S ) ok B B
compensation for loss of office (2021: Nil). 18 (20214 : &) o
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued)

nv'B

AR IS SRR 5E (]

8. EEHM =

(b) Executive directors and non-executive b) BITESRFHITES
directors (Continued) (48)
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees in kind contributions remuneration
e 2R BRE
ok EWH= STEIE T B¢ 2%
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARETTT ARETIT ARETIT
2021 2021 F
Executive director and ~ #ITEE X
chief executive officer:  {TEN42%, :
Mr. Zhang Jian REEAE - 500 15 515
Executive directors: WITESE:
Ms. Li Hai Xia FTHERL - 248 11 259
Mr. Sun Xinhu B RE - 556 15 571
- 804 26 830
Non-executive director:  FEEHITE S :
Mr. Wang Di FREE - - - -
- 1,304 41 1,345

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, HE2022F K 2021F12 A31H

there were no amounts paid or payable by the Group to WEFE - RNEBELEZ A REN

the directors or any of the highest paid individuals set %%tﬁﬁt%ﬁ%ﬂﬂh—ﬁ#ﬁ%

out in note 9 as an inducement to join or upon joining ATEMEFIA - fERBMAREE

the Group or as compensation for loss of office. IXﬂHAZX%@ﬁ%E’J REV SR B
BRAHE -

AEABBEFTHERLRERRE
LRI BN 2 BE -

There was no arrangement under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the
year.
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FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year include two
directors (2021: two). Details of the remuneration of the three
(2021: three) highest paid employees which are not directors
are as follows:

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

hEGEHHES

FTARERRFNEERE _—_RES
(2021 : MB) e =& (20215 : =
) EERSFHEENBES BT
™

2022 2021

2022 2021

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AREF T

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind # & - ,$H£&,\¢%ﬂﬁ 1,410 1,458
Performance-related bonuses KB HEEIE 202 418
Pension scheme contributions 5‘&17&%%%”1#\?\/( 12 27
1,624 1,903

The number of highest paid employees which are not directors
whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as
follows:

N F AT B E 8 IFE = &= B
1E,E\A§MDT-

Number of employees

EEHAR
2022 2021
2022 £ 2021 £
Nil to HK$1,000,000 T Z 711,000,000 7T 3 3
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

10. INCOME TAX CREDIT

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2021: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in
Hong Kong during the year. Taxes on profits assessable in
PRC have been calculated at the prevailing tax rates, based
on existing legislation, interpretations and practices in respect
thereof.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law effective on
1 January 2008 (as amended from time to time), PRC
subsidiaries except for Xiwang Metal Science are subject to
corporate income tax (“CIT”) at a statutory rate of 25% on
their respective taxable income for the years ended 31
December 2022 and 2021. Xiwang Metal Science is subject to
CIT at a rate of 15% on its respective taxable income for the
years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 as a national-grade
high-tech enterprise.

R RRMEE (B

10. FiiSHiESR

BEENEHERFRANESRIANMG
AT B SR B s I LARH 3 16.5% (2021 4F
16.5%) FHIZ 5 o 1 B B SR B 4 A1) /Y
BBy P BIRTTI L - R R IEf
LABRITRRRETE -

RIER2008F 1 A1 8B &8 F BB
%ﬁﬁ TR (BETEERT) + R BT B

AR (BRATEBRIEIN BEEES
B # 220224 K2021F12 A31 H 1k
ifﬁ%ﬁﬁ%)\ﬁ’ﬂ%%ﬂ’]&mfﬂ %%ﬂz
MIEMGSH(EEMBH]) -
%Eﬂtﬁz{ﬁ%l%&ﬁm%‘ﬂ&ﬁi
ATLE = 2022F Kk 2021F 12 A31 H
1EF S B FE R TR A IR 15% Tt K B0 4R
RS -

2022 2021
2022 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT AREFIT

Current tax — PRC BOHARE TE — =
Charge for the year FANEHA - 28,559
Over-provision in respect of prior years 75 BB 15 F /& MRS (11,543) -
(11,543) 28,559

Deferred tax RIEF IR

Credit for the year (note 24) FAE R (BT 24) (336,188) (36,343)
Total tax credit for the year FAHBEERERE (347,731) (7,784)
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A BTSRRI RE (48

10. INCOME TAX CREDIT (Continued) 10. FIS MK R @
A reconciliation of the tax credit applicable to (loss)/profit o /NI e = My N N U =R/ TR S )
before tax at the applicable tax rate for the location in which ZHEABR R B AT (EBE) 8 MET
the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled B ERAMERKARIZEERENZRTE
to the tax credit at the effective tax rate are as follows: ZHIER R 2 HERNT

2022 2021

2022 2021

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT AR TIT

(Loss)/profit before tax BREAT (&518) e A (1,676,523) 57,247
Tax at the statutory tax rate ATEREFE 2 FE (408,132) 14,503
High and new technology enterprise SN ER

tax preferential treatment BHEEIE 75,357 (14,604)
Income not taxable for tax BARBULA (13,776) (10,280)
Expenses not deductible for tax AR X 19,741 13,561
Effect of withholding tax FEMT R EE 988 286
Effect of super deduction of IR L # st

research expenses ke (10,894) (11,677)
Over-provision in respect of prior years 87T & S EE R (11,543) -
Tax losses not recognised REERTIAE R 528 427
Tax credit HIEE % (347,731) (7,784)

11. DIVIDEND 1. Ig 2

No final dividend is proposed for the year ended 31 December TNEZMEZE2022F12A31 8 IEF
2022 (2021: Nil). EIRM RARRR B (2021 F : 48) o
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

12. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic (loss)/earnings per share is based
on the (loss)/profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the Company and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue during the year.

The calculations of basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share
are based on:

12.

AR IS SRR 5E (]

nv'.R

5k (BE) &F

BREAR(BR)/BFNEFARRD
AT BEER A ARG (BE), 8 F
RERBETERRMETOHE -

BB R (F1R) /R TR
AT BRI -

2022 2021
2022 F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARET T
(Loss)/profit attributable to RAREBRERE AESG
ordinary equity holders of (B8, a7
the Company (1,328,792) 65,031
2022 2021
2022 2021 F
Number of shares i grn- 4=
Weighted average number of ordinary &2 G AR £ 78 K 358
shares in issue during the year (B518)  BA B ERY
for the purpose of basic and diluted FAD BT LB INE
(loss)/earnings per share FHE(FRR)
(in thousands) 2,369,111 2,369,111

For the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, the basic
(loss)/earnings per share are the same as the diluted (loss)/
earnings per share. For the year ended 31 December 2022,
there were no potential dilutive ordinary shares outstanding
during the year. For the year ended 31 December 2021, the
computation of diluted (loss)/earnings per share does not
assume the exercise of the Company’s share options because
the exercise price of those share options was higher than the
average market price for the shares.

B ZE2002F {2021 E12 A31 A I
B BREXR(ER) B EGHRES
SE (BB, BFER - B E 2022412
AB1BLLEFE  HECEITAREARE
BEyE 7 ERR - HE2021F12 A
ELFE  SRES(BER) AT
M EP TREBAR AN EET
fF DHRZEBRENTFEESR
ZERDETFHHE -

AEREERAT —B_—FFH
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR RRMEE (B

13. 9% - RERRE

Machinery Office
and Motor equipment Construction
Buildings  equipment vehicles and fixtures in progress Total
WAERE
BF BERRE AE REE EEIR @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR¥Tn ARBTR AR¥TR AR®Tn ARBTR
At 31 December 2022 2022412318
At 1 January 2022: R2022%1 18
Cost AR 6,415,307 7,448,132 67,042 192,720 1,046,142 15,169,343
Accumulated depreciation EIE (1,266,721)  (2,533,805) (34,321) (116,117) - (3,950,964)
Net carrying amount REFE 5,148,586 4,914,327 32,721 76,603 1,046,142 11,218,379
At 1 January 2022, R2022F1 818
net of accumulated Nk RETE
depreciation 5,148,586 4,914,327 32,721 76,603 1,046,142 11,218,379
Additions NE = 7,538 15,761 4,627 170,549 198,475
Disposal & - (682) (55) (469) - (1,206)
Depreciation provided FNFTERE
during the year (note 6) (P7E6) (151,165) (389,094) (7,394) (18,748) - (566,401)
Transfers i 20,805 95,827 - - (116,632) -
At 31 December 2022, R2022%12 4318
net of accumulated MR REFTE
depreciation 5,018,226 4,627,916 41,033 62,013 1,100,059 10,849,247
At 31 December 2022: R2022%12 4318 :
Cost B A 6,436,112 7,547,445 82,460 196,455 1,100,059 15,362,531
Accumulated depreciation 2EHTE (1,417,886) (2,919,529) (41,427) (134,442) - (4,513,284)
Net carrying amount REFE 5,018,226 4,627,916 41,033 62,013 1,100,059 10,849,247
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

R RRMEE (B

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

13. Y% - RERRE @

(Continued)
Machinery Office
and Motor  equipment Construction
Buildings  equipment vehicles  and fixtures  in progress Total
PRERE
BF HEKRE AE REE ERIR @5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFL AREFT ARETT ARETT AREFT ARETT
At 31 December 2021 2021412 A31H
At 1 January 2021: R2021E1 818 :
Cost B A 6,403,380 7,425,476 53,042 184,404 750,198 14,816,500
Accumulated depreciation ZiE (1,116,519)  (2,202,491) (29,962) (105,795) - (3,454,767)
Net carrying amount REFE 5,286,861 5,222,985 23,080 78,609 750,198 11,361,733
At 1 January 2021, R2021F1A18 -
net of accumulated M REHTE
depreciation 5,286,861 5,222,985 23,080 78,609 750,198 11,361,733
Additions NE - 67,469 15,401 17,119 320,236 420,225
Disposal HE - (1,675) (77) (601) - (2,353)
Depreciation provided FRITERE
during the year (note 6) (MizEe) (150,202)  (386,134) (5,683) (19,207) - (561,226)
Transfers R 11,927 11,682 - 683 (24,292) -
At 31 December 2021, R2021F12 4318
net of accumulated Mk REHTE
depreciation 5,148,586 4,914,327 32,721 76,603 1,046,142 11,218,379
At 31 December 2021: R2021F12 4318 :
Cost B A 6,415,307 7,448,132 67,042 192,720 1,046,142 15,169,343
Accumulated depreciation 2 E (1,266,721)  (2,533,805) (34,321) (116,117) - (3,950,964)
Net carrying amount REFE 5,148,586 4,914,327 32,721 76,603 1,046,142 11,218,379
AEREFRAE —B-FFHK




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

nv'.R

13.

14.

BRI ERaR M EE ()

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has not yet obtained the
building ownership certificates in respect of certain buildings
with a net book value of RMB3,203,660,000 (2021:
RMBS3,275,827,000).

As at 31 December 2022, certain of the Group’s machinery
and equipment, motor vehicles and office equipment and
fixtures with net carrying amounts of approximately
RMB4,188,203,000 (2021: RMB3,336,594,000) were pledged
to secure other borrowings of the Group (note 23). As at 31
December 2022, certain of the Group’s buildings and
machinery and equipments with net carrying amounts of
approximately RMB860,717,000 (2021: RMB1,317,709,000)
and RMB323,611,000 (2021: RMB357,216,000), respectively,
were pledged to secure other borrowings of fellow subsidiaries
(note 34(b)(iv)).

LEASES

The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various items of building
used in its operations. Lump sum payments were made
upfront to acquire the leased land from the owners with lease
periods of 50 years, and no ongoing payments will be made
under the terms of these land leases. Leases of buildings
generally have lease terms between 21 months and 2 years.
Other equipment generally has lease terms of 12 months or
less and/or is individually of low value. Generally, the Group is
restricted from assigning and subleasing the leased assets
outside the Group.
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13.

14.

M=% - BERRE @

MR2022F 12 A31H » AN&EBE W &5t

BR E ¥ B A A R #3,203,660,000 7T

(2021 F . AR¥3,275,827,0007T) 8]
ETEFRESEEMBESR -

2022912 A31 H » AEBEREFE
#4975 N R ¥ 4,188,203,000 7T (2021 4F
AR 3,336,594,000 7T ) HY & THee &
B AHEUMRAETREREEDIR
HEAREEEMER (M FE23) K
g o R2022F 12 A31 B » KEEDR
mFED B4 A AR 860,717,000 7T
(20214 : AR¥1,317,709,00070) &
AR #323,611,0007T (2021 4F : AR
¥ 357,216,000 7T ) K& TEF K45

FECEAERR ZMB AR EME
K (BHFE34(b)(v) RYHEIR G ©

HE

REBEREBEA
AEEBERANELETEANZER
FZHEHEAK - CRAEH —RMER
RIAMETWEEE T - HER50
FoMREZFLHWEENGERR - &
TEEENEMFE - BF 2
—NF1EAE2F - AREZ
HE—RA12ME AR EE R AE 5
BEREK - —RM5 ~A5ETEE
AEBEIERLEHECHEEE -



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

R RRMEE (B

14. LEASES (Continued) 14. *HE(.‘E)
The Group as a lessee (Continued) AEEEAEREA @
(@) Right-of-use assets (@ FEAREE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets FRANAREEFTRAEEERABER
and the movements during the year are as follows: ZET ¢
Leasehold
lands Buildings Total
HE L B wst
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARET T ARETTT

At 1 January 2021 K2021%F1H1H 89,620 1,048 90,668
Depreciation provided FRMITERE

during the year (2,221) (599) (2,820)
Foreign exchange translation SME# & - (14) (14)
At 31 December 2021 7H2021F12 A31 H 87,399 435 87,834
Additions (Note) NE (MI5E) 32,903 - 32,903
Depreciation provided FRMITERE

during the year (2,331) (449) (2,780)
Foreign exchange translation »MNEi#E - 14 14
At 31 December 2022 R2022F12 A31H 117,971 - 117,971
Note: Addition includes right-of-use assets resulting from new leases Mz AEREHETUHEESRHNE

entered. FREBE -
At 31 December 2022, certain of the Group’s leasehold R2022F 12 A31H » NEBEKR
land with a carrying amount of approximately HE#H A AR 84,404,000 T
RMB84,404,000 (2021: RMB86,605,000) were pledged (20214 : AR¥86,605,0007T)
to secure other borrowings of fellow subsidiaries (note METHELHEEKFERRZR
34b(iv)). B 88 2 ) ELAth 5 3R (BT 5 34b(iv))
FHE R o

AEREERAT —B_—FFH



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e B I RaR M EE ()

14. LEASES (Continued) 14. *HE(‘E)
The Group as a lessee (Continued) AEBEARAREA @
(b) Lease liabilities (b) HEAEF
Lease liabilities payable: ERHEERE
Present value of Total minimum
minimum lease payment lease payment
BREHETRNERE BEEEMRERE
2022 2021 2022 2021
2022 F 2021 4F 2022 F 2021 4F

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETIT ARBTR ARETT

Within one year —F R - 479 - 505
Less: Future finance & : KRG E &
charges = (26)
Present value of HEREMNRE
lease liabilities = 479
The weighted average incremental borrowing rates ERRESaGHINEREYiEs
applied to lease liabilities is 7.39% (2021: 7.39%). # = F R B7.39% (2021 4 :
7.39%) °
(c) The total cash outflow for leases are disclosed in note () MEZHSRPHABEHEBENGES
30(b) to the consolidated financial statements. B % R 2% M3 30(b) ©
The Group as a lessor AEEBEASHBA
The Group leases parts of its land and one industrial building AREFRELLHASELHEAENSD
in PRC under operating lease arrangements. Rental income BEE D g — T HBTE o AE
recognised by the Group during the year was RMB721,000 RNERNEZHHAL WA S AR
(2021: RMB895,000). 721,000 7T (2021 4 : A & % 895,000
7T) o
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

R RRMEE (B

15. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

15. HitnB\HEE

Intellectual
properties Software Total
HIEERE B4t wet
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR% T AR¥T
(Note)
(P 3E)
Cost at 1 January 2022, net of 7202241 A1 H BIEA -
accumulated amortisation M 2tE8 453,920 23,997 477,917
Additions during the year FARE 159,921 - 159,921
Amortisation provided N S
during the year (55,775) (4,174) (59,949)
Exchange realignment PE 5 & 1,847 — 1,847
At 31 December 2022 M20224 12 431 H 559,913 19,823 579,736
At 31 December 2022: R20229F 12 A31H :
Cost 24N 694,560 41,736 736,296
Accumulated amortisation EEg F (134,647) (21,913) (156,560)
Net carrying amount FREFE 559,913 19,823 579,736
HAEREARLE —FT-_FFH




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR RRMEE (B

15. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 15. Hitt B EE )

Intellectual
properties Software Total
R 5k E ;1 B
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREF T AREF T AREFIT
(Note)
(P 3E)
Cost at 1 January 2021, net of 202141 51 B KA -
accumulated amortisation R Rty 228,997 28,171 257,168
Additions during the year FRARE 253,818 - 253,818
Amortisation provided A
during the year (31,418) (4,174) (35,592)
Exchange realignment PE 5 & 2,523 - 2,623
At 31 December 2021 7R2021F12 A31 H 453,920 23,997 477,917
At 31 December 2021: R20214F12A381H :
Cost AR 534,639 41,736 576,375
Accumulated amortisation Sty (80,719) (17,739) (98,458)
Net carrying amount FREFE 453,920 23,997 477,917
Note: EE -
Pursuant to the Technology License and Cooperation Agreement (the RiIEE B ([hRIRESBEAT) 5T A
“Agreement”) with the Institute of Metal Research (the “IMR”), the IMR agreed A REEGZE(HE]) PR SEMEZH®
to license certain steel production technologies (the “Licensed Technologies”) ETHEEERTRAREEE LA (AR
to the Group for a period of 10 years commencing on the date of the Agreement fiil) BB MR ARTF  WRAERFTA
as well as to provide technological services and support to the Group in relation M ) FE A 1A AR SR B IR R R AT AR S R S8k o B
to the application of the Licensed Technologies. The consideration had been BEBM 20194 12 A il # [ #17 100,000,000 A&
satisfied by allotting and issuing 100,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company in ANEEBRZAT -
December 2019.
Included in addition is an amount of RMB159,921,000 (2021: RMB253,818,000) SHOFARSTH AWM E ARG BEBARK
representing the capitalisation of the RST license. The license entitles the Group 159,921,000 7t (2021 4F : AR # 253,818,000 7T)
to manufacture products using the RST Technology for 10 years from the date K2 EE - B 2021 F I E AL RST 77 7] A8k
of capitalisation. The net carrying amount will therefore be amortised over the H{E - Sl P ASE(FEBRSTHRIMREESR -
remaining useful lives. Bt AB e BT AB10F - Bt - BREFE

% B S T A 68 P A B g o
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R RRMEE (B

16. EQUITY INVESTMENT DESIGNATED AT 16. Il E5R D FEAH it
FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER PHIREHERIRE
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

2022 2021
2022 & 2021 €
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT ARETT

Equity investment designated EEABEBRQAFEFTAREM
at FVTOCI EEHRENERRE
Unlisted equity investment, at fair value 3f F #5188 « i A FEEE
Xiwang Finance mE 51,023 66,096
As at 31 December 2022, the unlisted equity investment with MR20229F12A31H k @ BH A
a carrying amount of RMB51,023,000 (2021: RMB66,096,000) AR®51,023,0007T (2021 F : ARKE
represents a 5% equity interest in Xiwang Finance. The above 66,096,000 70 ) K FE E iR IR E /RN
equity investment was irrevocably designated at FVTOCI as PR v 5% At o LaliERIEET
the Group considers this investments to be strategic in nature. Al B H R TE A IR /\:F@E-I—)\Eﬁﬂi
The Group does not intend to dispose of the investment in the Hk#% REEASERAZIEER
near future. KEME AEEEELALHEEZ
BE o
17. INVENTORIES 17. 78
2022 2021
2022 % 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T AR¥ETTT
Raw materials R 192,451 773,723
Work in progress TG 65,642 361,655
Finished goods X 0B 90,169 252,166

348,262 1,387,544

AEREERAT —B_—FFH
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le'\

18.

BRI ERaR M EE ()

TRADE RECEIVABLES 18. FEWE 5 K18
2022 2021
2022 % 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREF T
Trade receivables B E 55 32,124 58,154
Less: loss allowance W EIE R (1,063) (649)
Trade receivables, net of loss allowance [EUWE 53018 » 1R B8 BHE 31,061 57,505

For sales under the ordinary steel and special steel segments,
the Group requires advance payments from its customers,
except for certain long term customers which are granted
credit terms by the Group. The credit period for these long
term customers is generally six months and every customer
has a maximum credit limit. For sales under the trading of
commodities and by-products segments, the Group’s trading
terms with its customers are mainly on credit, and the credit
period is generally within six months.

The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by
senior management. In view of the aforementioned and the
fact that the Group’s trade receivables relate to customers
with a good track record, there is no significant concentration
of credit risk. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.

Included in the Group’s trade receivables are amounts due
from the Group’s fellow subsidiaries of RMB911,000 (2021:
RMB7,138,000), which are repayable on credit terms similar
to those offered to the other customers of the Group.

202 XIWANG SPECIAL STEEL COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022

PEBH LSS HBIB N 2EEMS
REBERARFERMNKIE - TE%F
BEAEER T EERNRIEPRIN
RHEFPHNEERAETAEA M
BUNREPHYEBEE=EERE -HEM
LREBIEMRZOHBET2HEHEMS -
$Eliﬁiﬁ ﬁﬁ’\]ﬁ&%{%?ﬁlixﬁh
MEEREEANEAR -

AEBB N EREERBFRMER
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T MR R B A RIFUR - % F K
IEJ?E’&ZKEIWEJ(@%}EMAMQM

EEHREER -
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R RRMEE (B

18. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 18. FEUN & 5 FXI1E (m)
An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of RBERR AEEEBRHAEEER
the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of loss THKkEBEREENEWE S FIER
allowance, is as follows: AT
2022 2021
2022 F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARETIT

Within 3 months SEAM 16,292 46,589
3 to 6 months 3Z61EA 6,441 7,936
6 months to 1 year 6lEAZE1F 5,241 2,257
Over 1 year BiE1F 3,087 723
Trade receivables, net of loss allowance [EWE 5 IE - F1k E BB & 31,061 57,505
The Group generally allows a credit period with a range of 6 AEB —BEFEEENT6EAE
months to 1 year to its customers. FEREEE -
The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade EWE SZERE ERRESFHnm
receivables are as follows: T
2022 2021
2022 % 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARETIT

At beginning of year REY] 649 1,434
Impairment losses, net (note 6) BEEE - FFE(M5Ee) 414 (785)
At end of year NEXR 1,063 649

AEREERAT —B_—FFH
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le'\

18.

BRI ERaR M EE ()

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

In addition, the Group uses practical expedient in estimating
ECL on trade receivables which are not assessed individually
using a provision matrix. The provision rates are based on
aging of debtors as groupings of various debtors taking into
consideration the Group’s historical default rates and forward-
looking information that is reasonable and supportable
available without undue costs or effort. At every reporting
date, the historical observed default rates are reassessed and
changes in the forward-looking information are considered.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are six months past due. However, in
certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset
to be in default when internal or external information indicates
that the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding
contractual amounts in full before taking into account any
credit enhancements held by the Group.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure
on the Group’s trade receivables using a provision matrix:

As at 31 December 2022

18. FEURE 5 718 (@|)

goh - AREERERERAG L
FEBERARBEETENERKES
RENRHBEEBE - BEHEXR @
TREB AR BB ARRER L EZ EAR
SEBTERNXRBALEETVENX
ARBHARSGHAEBBBEFF
MATEMEERMETE - NEEKRSH
B AEEesHFHAEERREY
KW EERIEMEERNES -

AEESEE AN FBHNEA R
—HeMEELBREN - A &R
TEAT  EABIIIBEHETR
I &G RAEERENEIAEER
THERIERE - AEB T AREER
WEIREEAXNRE  BIAKETRA
BEMEERIRED -

TREJIEABEEERTEFFLAE
EEWEZFAEEERRMROER

M2022%12H831H

Past due
[SEcp:
Less than 1t06 Over 6

Current 1 month months months Total

BNEl DR1MEA 1Z6{8A HiB6{EA #at

ECL rate TBEEEEEX 1.19% - 8.66% 3.31%

Gross carrying amount  BEEI{E 44%8

(RMB’000) (AR#%TT) 23,007 - 9,117 32,124
ECLs (RMB’000) EHEEEE

(AE%TT) 274 - 789 1,063
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e B ISR EE ()

18. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 18. BN & 5 FX 18 (=)
As at 31 December 2021 2021412 A31H
B HA
Less than 1to 6 Over 6
Current 1 month months months Total
BNER LM @A 1Z6M@A fHiB6MEA HEET
ECL rate TEHEEEEX 0.01% - - 5.56% 1.12%
Gross carrying amount  BREI{E 4258
(RMB’000) (ARETIT) 46,595 - - 11,559 58,154
ECLs (RMB’000) JEHEE &R
(AR®EFIT) 6 - - 643 649

BERMAARAR —B-_FFH
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e B I RaR M EE ()

19. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES  19. J&{J 218 - H{h fE Wg =18

AND OTHER ASSETS REMEE
2022 2021
2022 5 2021 &
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T T ARET T

Non-current FEmED

Prepayments for long term assets RAEFEE 2B RIA 172,248 198,361

Current D

Prepayments for raw materials R B IE R FRIE 1,877,559 1,727,208

Deposits and other receivables & Rk H b FEUGRIA 93,610 150,196

Bank interest receivables FEYERTTR B 316 4,225
1,971,485 1,881,629

Less: loss allowance B R (158) (6,318)
1,971,327 1,875,311
2,143,575 2,073,672

Details of impairment assessment are set out in note 37. B E R B IEE Mz 37 -
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

19. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES

AND OTHER ASSETS (continued)

At 31 December 2022, included in the prepayment, other
receivables and other assets are prepayments of
RMB158,332,000 (2021: RMB80,216,000) due from fellow
subsidiaries.

The balance of prepayments which are non-interest-bearing
and repayable on demand. Included in due from fellow
subsidiaries of Nil (2021: Nil) were due from a fellow subsidiary
through which the Group purchased electricity (note 34(a)).

The credit quality of the financial assets included in deposits
and other receivables is considered to be “normal” when they
are not past due and there is no information indicating that the
financial assets had a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial
assets is considered to be “doubtful”. Set out below is the
information about the credit risk exposure on the Group’s
financial assets included in deposits and other receivables:

As at 31 December 2022

AR IS SRR 5E (]

nv'.R

19. FE{T FRIE - HAuE R FR 18
REMEE @

R2022F 12 A31H AN FHE - H
it & U 3K IE&/\ﬁﬂéiF( &
AR # 158,332,000 7T (20214 : AR
80,216,000 7T ) H & U [F] Z B |88 A 7]
TERTRA -

ERRB(ABTHEREREXRER) R
R E ZHT B AR FIBEE (2021 F -
) ARBASEESBEBEE NN
[ Z B A R FIE (M52 34(a)) ©

AAREREBERFENEREE
ZEEEENERY  BYBERE
TRETMEECEERRB VS
RIARAKIRIZN - BERRBIEFE]
BRI eRMEENGEELERBAR R
e TREIAKEF ARE REAM
EURENEREE ZEERARNKR
HE R

M2022%F12H31 H

Normal Doubtful Total

EE 7] 5% #Et

ECL rate BHEEEEX 1.4% - 1.4%
Gross carrying amount  BR [E {E 4258

(RMB’000) (AR®ETFIT) 93,610 - 93,610

ECLs (RMB’000) BHEEBE(ARETT) 158 - 158

As at 31 December 2021 R2021F12 A31 H

Normal Doubtful Total

Es AJ &t BET

ECL rate BHEEEEX 4.2% - 4.2%
Gross carrying amount BRI 4258

(RMB’000) (ANRETFIT) 150,196 - 150,196

ECLs (RMB’000) TEHEEEE(ARETIIT) 6,318 - 6,318

HAEREARLE —FT-_FFH




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR RRMEE (B

19. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES  19. J&{J 218 - H{h fE Wg =18

AND OTHER ASSETS (cContinued) REMEE @
The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of other HEmEWZEREBEEGNZESH N
receivables are as follows: T
2022 2021
2022 % 2021 4
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT AR TIT

At beginning of year REH] 6,318 160
Write-offs i 85 (1,944) -
Impairment losses, net (note 6) B AR FE (KisEe) (4,216) 6,158
At end of year RE 158 6,318
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

20. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND

PLEDGED DEPOSITS

20.

e B ISR EE ()

BERREFEYRER
HEM

2022 2021
2022 F 2021 4
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
M 5 AR¥T T AR®ETFTT
Pledged deposits and time deposits =& 1Z 7 & F BFE R 537,365 543,288
Cash and bank balances Re RIRITHH 43,700 208,166
581,065 751,454
Less: Pledged deposits: B BRI
Guarantee deposits for A THRITERK
certain bank borrowings H At (& 5
and other borrowings ERFR 23 (250,000) (250,000)
Guarantee deposits for BTN RED
issuance of bills payable ERFR 21 (16,558) (156,558)
Frozen deposits BRI (2,908) (12,714)
Pledged deposits [REEEPER Y (269,466) (419,272)
Cash and cash equivalents HERBRESEED 311,599 332,182

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances
and time deposits balances of the Group denominated in RMB
amounted to RMB42,903,000 (2021: RMB207,351,000) and
RMB268,700,000 (2021: RMB121,700,000). The RMB is not
freely convertible into other currencies, however, under PRC
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for
other currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for
varying periods of between one month and six months
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group,
and earn interest at the respective time deposit rates.

RMEBHKR AEBUAREED
Re MRITEBURTEBHERAEAR
#542 903,0007C (20214 A R ¥
207,351,0007t) X AR ¥ 268,700,000
JC(20214F + AR#¥121,700,0007T) °
ARBEIATERABRAEMER  H
RIBEF BB INE B BRI REE - &
ERMAESERT  ASBEEETB
BEREETINEEBMRITLBA
R ABHMEH -

RITEREEBBTERAESE
TEF KR - BT HERNER
BN —EABATE  BARERDY
BB S BRME - LS AT
FRRIEE A -

AEREERAT —B_—FFH




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A BTSRRI RE (48

20. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
PLEDGED DEPOSITS (continued)

Included in the Group’s cash and bank balances are deposits
of RMB39,745,000 (2021: RMB207,210,000) and time
deposits of RMB268,700,000 (2021: RMB121,700,000)
placed with Xiwang Finance, which is a financial institution
approved by the People’s Bank of China (“PBOC”). The
effective interest rate of these deposits ranges from 0.35% to
2.05% (2021: 0.30% to 2.10%) per annum, which allows
banks to refer to the savings interest rate provided by the
PBOC and float on the basis of the PBOC’s benchmark
interest rate.

21. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

20 RERBFEZEYRER
REMR @

REERIR S MRITASBEERENRTT
B (AFREARBITITHEAARET)
o 2 S RERE) 2 TR AR 39,745,000
Je(20214F + AR #207,2100007T) K 7E
B3 17 3 A R # 268,700,000 7T (2021 4F

AR#121,700,00070) - ZEHFRZE
BRAEF RN T 0.35% = 2.05% (2021 4F
0.30% £2.10%) * AEFRIRITLEFEH
ARBITRE2HEEMNELAFEAR
IRITEEF RERE F)ZH) o

21. ERESRERENRE

2022 2021

2022 2021 £

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®ET AREF T

Trade payables TERN B H5T8 2,077,053 1,724,142
Bills payables BN EE 158,116 529,981
2,235,169 2,254,123

An ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as
follows:

RBEMR UBRRAM/EENE
NE 5 HIARENZENRE DTN

- =

2022 2021

2022 £ 2021 4

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ T ARBEFIT

Within 1 month 1{EA R 220,073 949,008
1 to 3 months 1&E31EA 1,191,779 556,542
3 to 6 months 3E61EA 222,790 187,092
6 to 12 months 6E121E A 108,514 157,789
Over 12 months HBi@121E A 492,013 403,692
2,235,169 2,254,123
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

21. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES (continued)

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s bills payable amounting
to RMB33,116,000 (2021: RMB313,116,000) were secured by
the pledged deposits of RMB16,558,000 (2021:
RMB156,558,000) (note 20).

At 31 December 2022, included in the trade and bills payables
are trade payables of RMB410,000 (2021: RMB6,684,000)
due to fellow subsidiaries which are non-interest-bearing and
repayable on demand.

The Group’s certain bills payable are guaranteed by certain
related parties, as further detailed in note 34(b)(i) to the
consolidated financial statements.

The trade and bills payables are non-interest-bearing and are
settled with a range from six months to 1 year.

R RRMEE (B

1. BRESREREARE

(%)

N2022F12A31H KEBENE
B A R 33,116,000 7T (2021 4F = A
R 313,116,000t ) WX A R ¥
16,558,000 (20214 : A R #&
156,558,000 7T ) K B 1K 10 15 5K {E K 38
(MF5E20) »

R2022F 12 AT HWE & 58
FENERPIERNRRMER AN
FETE 5 3IA AR % 410,000 7T (2021
£ ARM6,684,0007T) F % H A
W B B 5 EREER -

AEEETENREDAE THES
BER SRENGAM BRI
34(b)(i) °

ENEZRERENRERTEE
YR F6EAE1FHEHE -

BERMAARAR —B-_FFH




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR RRMEE (B

22. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS/ 2 HitEN B REE

CONTRACT LIABILITIES B/ a#haE
Other payables and accruals HithEARIERETEH
2022 2021
2022 F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT ARETT

Construction and equipment payables Bt ESE N R 0H 291,692 479,095
Other tax payables Hip it FiiE 53,833 8,900
Other payables H b FET SR8 227,454 137,678
Salaries and welfare payables e e 27,850 26,808
Deferred revenue (Note) JRIE & HEFE (MIFE) 8,965 8,308
609,794 660,789
Analysed for reporting purpose as: EWDHT -
Non-current FEED 77,828 -
Current b 531,966 660,789
609,794 660,789
Note: Assets related governments grants on the project on research and fisk - EEMAMFIEE OBTHBIEH -
development.
As at 31 December 2022, other payables mainly comprised of MR2022F 12 A31H - Efth BT FRIE
approximately (a) RMB28,807,000 (2021: RMB10,487,000) FTEBEN@QENREMNBATAR
due to fellow subsidiaries, which are non-interest-bearing and 128,807,000 L (2021 F : A R ¥
repayable on demand and (b) RMB183,752,000 (2021: 10,487,0007T) * BEEARBER T ER
RMB83,710,000) interest payable for bank and other ERBREE RO RITREMERK
borrowings. w1 R B A R #183,752,000 7T

(20214 : ARR#83,710,0007T) ©
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

R RRMEE (B

22. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS/ 2 HitEMNRIERESE

CONTRACT LIABILITIES (continued) B/ &#haEuw
Contract liabilities EHEE
Details of contract liabilities are as follows: AEHaEFBOT
2022 2021
2022 2021 €
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT ARETT

Sales of goods HEEm

2,811,334 3,389,324

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of
contract liabilities recognised are as follows:

Sales of industrial products

When the Group receives a deposit before the production
activity commences, this will give rise to contract liabilities at
the start of a contract, until the revenue recognised on the
relevant contract.

FTECDEREGNABSEN —RNAR
R T

WETXER
EAREMPNEETDRAARIRES -
LA B BN A KRR R A M B E -
HEREWAOEREERARL -

Movements in contract liabilities EHEBET
2022 2021
2022 % 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT ARBETIT

As at 1 January m1A1H 3,389,324 2,256,367
Revenue recognised that was included R EFEFAS LA BLEHH

in the contract liabilities balance B RERU

at the beginning of the year (3,389,324) (2,256,367)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—HWNEBRR - (38,384)
Deposits received in respect of FLEITRAEEEFTNEMNIZ S

production activity in progress 2,811,334 3,427,708
As at 31 December w12 A31H 2,811,334 3,389,324

AEREERAT —B_—FFH



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A BTSRRI RE (48

23. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 23. i+ B8R{TR Hi{E& =

BORROWINGS
31 December 2022 31 December 2021
2022 12H 318 202112 A31H
Effective Effective
interest interest
Notes rate (%) Maturity  RMB’000 rate (%) Maturity ~ RMB’000
L YIRS BRME
fzE (%) A AR¥TR (%) J#A ARETRL
Current e
Interest-bearing bank HERTER
borrowings - secured -FHER (&(&(v) 2.29-13.40 2023-2025 2,761,573 4.35-15.40 2022 1,052,669
Interest-bearing other SEHMER (i) &(if)&(iii)
borrowings - secured -FHER &(iv)&(v) 7.5-10.00 2023-2028 639,925 2.90-11.80 2022 2,307,042
Borrowings from Xiwang AIHBER
Finance - unsecured o Fin (v) 5.97 2023 36,912 - - -
Guaranteed secured bonds BRI EH 10.00 2022-2023 134,135 10.00 2022 181,157
3,572,545 3,540,868
Non-current ERE
Long term interest-bearing  ®Hizt B H LR
other borrowings —mw (i) & ()& (iv)
- secured (il B i) B (v) 7.00 2025 904,813 - - -
Long term borrowing from KERTHBER
Xiwang Finance —mIER
- unsecured - - - 5.97 2023 33,791
904,813 33,791
4,477,358 3,574,659
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

n'l'B

BRI SRR EE ()

23. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 23. it BT R Hit {2k (@)
BORROWINGS (Continued)

Notes:

(i)

(i

(iii)

(iv)

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s Interest-bearing borrowings of
RMB488,140,000 (2021: RMB482,590,000) were secured by pledged
deposits of RMB250,000,000 (2021: RMB260,000,000) (note 20).

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s Interest-bearing borrowings of
RMB4,440,446,000 (2021: RMB3,359,712,000) were guaranteed by
certain related parties, as further detailed in note 34(b)(ii) to the
consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s other borrowings of
RMB381,000,000 (2021: RMB382,000,000) were secured by 100%
equity interests of the subsidiary, Shandong Xiwang Recycling Resources
Company Limited.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s other borrowings of
RMB2,773,813,000 (2021: RMB1,617,749,000) were secured by a net
carrying amount of approximately RMB4,188,203,000 (2021:
RMB3,336,594,000) of the Group’s machinery and equipment, motor
vehicles and office equipment and fixtures (note 13).

As at 31 December 2022, interest-bearing bank and other borrowings of
approximately RMB669,793,000 (2021: RMB729,996,000) were
advances from the Discounted Bills (note 29).

The carrying amounts of the Group’s interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings approximate to their fair values.

f it

(i)

(i)

()

(vi)

M2022F 12 A31 8 REBEM BEX
A R % 488,140,000 7T (2021 5« A R %
482,590,0007T ) LA A K ¥ 250,000,000 75
(20214 : A R ¥ 260,000,000 7T ) &4 #f
TR (M5 20) »

M2022F 12 A31 8 REBEM BEX
AR 4,440,446,000 7T (2021 F : AR
3,359,712,0007T ) fA & T Bl B 75 12 L 1B
1R - FERERE IS TRE M5 34(0)(i) ©

HR2022F 12 A31H  AEEHEMERA
K #381,000,0007T (20214 : A K ¥
382,000,000 7T.) LA & A Al LU R 8 F A4
BIRAR DT 100% RAE IR o

MR2022F 12 A31H  AEEHEMERA
R #2,773,813,0007T (2021 4F : A R &
1,617,749,000 7T ) bAZ 5 B 4 28 35 4 - 14
HEMIBARERETEE (HE13)H
SRR E L AR 4,188,203,000 7t (2021
0 AR 3,336,594,000 7T ) I

H2022F 12 A31H  ;F BRI R EME
TN R #669,793,0007C (20214 : A
R#6729,996,000 7T ) 485 E5 5= 4% &9 24 5K (B
£129) ©

AEBE B RITERREMEROEERE
ERAEAFERL

BERMAARAR —B-_FFH




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR RRMEE (B

23. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 23. it BT R Hit {2k (@)

BORROWINGS (continued)

2022 2021
2022 F 2021 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR AR®ETTT
Analysed into: R
The carrying amounts of the borrowings EROEmMERRIUAT
are repayable: HifE & -
Within one year (note) —Fm (KEE) 3,572,545 3,640,868
With a period of more than one year BE—FETBBRER
but not exceeding two years HAFE - 33,791
With a period of more than two years — FBBMEETBBRFD
but not exceeding five years HA 904,813 -
4,477,358 3,574,659
Less: Amounts due within one year B IRRBEE TR
shown under current liabilities —FRNE| e (8,572,545) (3,540,868)
Amounts shown under non-current TIRIERB BB TSR
liabilities 904,813 33,791
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e B ISR EE ()

23. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 23. it B $R 1T H & =X ()

BORROWINGS (continued)
2022 2021
2022 F 2021 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFIT
Analysed into: "Tﬁ?% :
The carrying amounts of the above 1ﬁ*”E’JHEﬁTEFEEALATH;ﬁFEJ
borrowings are repayable*: 1;&
Within one year —F R 2,084,545 3,540,868
With a period of more than one year BiR—FETBERF
but not exceeding two years A HA - 33,791
With a period of more than two years BB F
but not exceeding five years BABRATF 904,813 -
The carrying amounts of bank BERERERGEREER
borrowings that contain a repayment LA HARE 8 2 IRITIE R
on demand clause (shown under GIRREBE)BREE
current liabilities) but repayable:
Within one year —FR = -
With a period of more than one year Bl —F AN EEMRFE
but not exceeding two years Y HA = -
With a period of more than two years ~ #BiBM BB
but not exceeding five years HEF 1,488,000 -
4,477,358 3,574,659
Less: Amounts due within one year B IRREEE TR —FR
shown under current liabilities Ealp=iElE i (3,572,545) -
Amounts shown under non-current FIRERBEET
liabilities K& RE 904,813 3,574,659
The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set out in * MDD AER GRS NREERA

the loan agreements.

HREE -

BEEREAFRAT

“ECCEFR




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e B I RaR M EE ()

23. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 23. it BT R Hit {2k (@)

BORROWINGS (Continued)

Note:

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group has defaulted in
repayment of principals and interests of guaranteed secured bonds amounting
to approximately RMB99,521,000 and RMB12,895,000, respectively, which
were matured on 30 September 2022.

On discovery of the default, the Directors informed the bondholder and
commenced a renegotiation of the terms of the bonds with the relevant
bondholder. As at 31 December 2022, those negotiations had not been
concluded. Up to the date of approval for issuance of the consolidated financial
statements, the negotiations are still in progress. The Directors are confident
that their negotiations with the bondholder will ultimately reach a successful
conclusion.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group had also defaulted in
repayment of principals and interests of other borrowings amounting to
approximately RMB9,605,000 and RMB4,732,000, respectively, according to
scheduled repayment date. Due to the existence of default clauses relating to
the other borrowings of the Group, this payment default had triggered
repayment clause of other borrowings with principal amounts totaling
approximately RMB381,000,000. As a result, other borrowings with a principal
amount of approximately RMB339,348,000 with original contractual repayment
dates between year 2024 to 2028, were reclassified as current liabilities from
non-current liabilities as at 31 December 2022 as these amounts shall become
immediately repayable upon demand. In addition, the Group had a loan in
principal amount of approximately RMB41,652,000 which was scheduled to be
repayable within one year from 31 December 2022 and classified under current
liabilities. Due to the abovementioned payment default according to scheduled
repayment date, it also became default and the amount become immediately
repayable upon demand. Accordingly, the total defaulted other borrowings as at
31 December 2022 were approximately RMB381,000,000.

On discovery of the default, the Directors informed the lender and commenced
a renegotiation of the terms of the other borrowings with the relevant lender. As
at 31 December 2022, those negotiations had not been concluded. Since the
lender had not agreed to waive its right to demand immediate payment as at the
end of the reporting period, the loan was classified as a current liability as at 31
December 2022. Up to the date of approval for issuance of the consolidated
financial statements for the Year, the negotiations are still in progress. The
Group offered a revised repayment proposal to the relevant lender and such
proposal had been reviewed by them. The Directors are confident that their
negotiations with the lender will ultimately reach a successful conclusion. In any
event, should the lender call for immediate repayment of the loan, the Directors
believe that adequate alternative sources of finance from Xiwang Group are
available to ensure that there is no threat to the continuing operations of the
Group.
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HZE2022F 1231 HILFE  AEEHEXER
20229 AS0 A E MM B IHRIBMEF A& KA
BBl 4 A ARK9S521,000T & A R #
12,895,000 7T °

BRENR EFBNEFHA ALK LA
BEHFFHBEAEH G EES ER - B E2022512
A31R  ZEHRHAMKTRK - EXRGETHRE
BHOETIRZ B RHADELETH - EFHER
FHEFFHE AR A S GG ERKT]

HZE2022F 12 A31 BHILFE  AEBEIRKEELIE
BrEXBHEEEMERRSRIE - 534
A AR 9,605,000t & A K 4,732,0007T © B8
AR B H A RIFEENOGER  LXEFRED
BT AL RIELH A ARKE381,000,000 T HEH
b fE R IB AR EK o Bt - 720226128318 -
K& # A R 339,348,000 7T 80 H & 3% (A 4
HMEMERA B A2024 FE2028F )W IEFB A
BEQEARDERE BAZSHBAEIRENR
VEMEE N AEEBE —FEAXASHARE
41,652,000 7T K1 B 3%+ 5T &30 20226 12 A 31 H
B—FNEE UYHOBEARBEME - ANKKHE
FEEFABREE LAE ARTRBEL - %
SREAREREER - Bt - R2022F 12 A
31 B /R E A8 5B FE 4 B A R 381,000,000
5o

BHENR  EFBHNERALHBEEEER
N BB 10 7 E A A R AT IR AR o 102022 45 12 A 31
B ZERHEARTK - ARERARFAERR
EHARMEHLZRAKAROER  ZEZR
2022F 12 ABIBAEARDEE - HBEAKE
ISR ERETIZ 2B RHDEETR - &
SEREBERARDEEINERES 2
FOEESHEN - EFHEHRTEERANK
BEEEBEMAL - EEMMBRT - MEXA
ZRVAEERER  EFHEEAEIEETRER
RHERESHR  UHETESHALENEE
LB BE -




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

R RRMEE (B

24. DEFERRED TAX 24, IRIEFIF

BEREMEEERABRFANES D

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the

year are as follows: T
Deferred tax assets EEHRIEESE
Provision
for ECL
Financial on trade
assets Tax Unrealised and other
at FVTOCI losses profits  receivables Total
BEAYE gaRt
TAEM EWHE
2EMEH BHEE
SREE HEEE  REREN ERRE o
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT AR®TR
At 1 January 2021 202151818 2,973 11,007 2,288 385 16,653
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 38) & —EMEL A (Fiz38) - (3,358) - - (3,358)
Credited/(charged) to profit or loss ~ AAEEERER
during the year (note 10) B,/ (%) MELHE
(M3E10) - 37,516 (2,288) 1,356 36,584
Charged to other comprehensive ~ MAFEEEMZEMER
income during the year HBEHEERE (1,410) - - - (1,410)
At 31 December 2021 7202112 A31H 1,563 45,165 - 1,741 48,469
Credited/(charged) to profitorloss ~ RAEFEEHE
during the year (note 10) e/ (N8 WELEHE
(ftz10) - 318,127 - (629) 317,498
Credited to other comprehensive ~ RAEEERMEZERER
income during the year BEMETHIA 2,261 - - - 2,261
At 31 December 2022 #2022 12 B 318 3,824 363,292 = 1,112 368,228
HAEREARLE —FT-_FFH




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e B I RaR M EE ()

24. DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 24, IEIEFIE (@)

Deferred tax liabilities EEBIEAR
2022 2021
2022 F 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AR®ETFTT
At 1 January w1 A1H 33,569 33,328
Deferred tax in respect of withholding ~ RAEE (K e) %
tax on the distributable profits Al 9K s Al 2 IR AE 7 I8
(credited)/charged during the year TEFEL (FzE10)
(note 10) (18,690) 241
At 31 December w12 A31H 14,879 33,569

Pursuant to the CIT Law effective on 1 January 2008, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in PRC. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is
a tax treaty between PRC and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 5%. The Group
is therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividend distributed
by those subsidiaries established in PRC in respect of earnings
generated from after 31 December 2017.

At 31 December 2022, the aggregate amount of temporary
differences associated with undistributed earnings of
subsidiaries for which deferred tax liabilities have not been
recognised was RMB785,187,000 (2021: RMB671,784,000).
No liability has been recognised in respect of these differences
because the Group is in a position to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that
such differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The Group had unused tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
approximately RMB70,821,000 as at 31 December 2022
(2021: RMB67,621,000), that are available for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the Company in which the
losses arose. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised
as at the end of the reporting period in respect of the tax
losses as the directors of the Company consider that it is
uncertain whether future profits will be available against which
tax losses can be utilised in the foreseeable future.
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RIER2008F 1 A1 HEMWHDER
BEE MEPERIAIFGERED
EMHEEFEEESTIRNKRBAKK
10% TEFNHL o fin R B £ 5B 4% & 35 7
EHER BRI L BBIRLS - RIEMNTE
MR eEA - AEEMEARE
B5% ALt - REBEEAR RHENA
B HZ SN B AR 2017 F 12 A
31 BEEEMNRBFFT D IR KRB
TEFOFL o

R2022F 12 A31H - EKE AR K
PEBANEHATERDECKREE
ENERFREZELAEAEARE
785,187,000 T (2021 : A R #&
671,784,0007T) - BB ERZE =
HEER YRR AEE R D EH
BOEREZENRERZEEZENT
B R ge TSRO -

MR2022FE 12 A31 B » REBREBE
AREARIIAEE L AR 70,821,000
Tt (20214 - A R #67,621,0007T )
AR EE B EHARA B R R ER
TRFHE - iR EEEmS - BEHIEE
ERREPREAER  BAEARGE

RAE RUBARRELETHAREK
SR TEES 1B B R 2R FE M T HETE ©
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

OTHER LONG TERM PAYABLE

On 23 December 2015, the Company, Xiwang Metal Science
and Zouping Finance Bureau entered into an investment
agreement with China Development Fund Company Limited (“CD
Fund’) (B REEEERAF]). Pursuant to the investment
agreement, CD Fund invested RMB161,000,000 in Xiwang Metal
Science. Based on the terms of the investment agreement, CD
Fund has the right to request Zouping Finance Bureau to
purchase the equity interest of the Company owned by CD Fund
within 15 years. The Company shall pay CD Fund quarterly
dividends at an annual rate of return amounting to 1.2% of the
capital investment. Based on the terms of the investment
agreement, Xiwang Metal Science, which is a subsidiary of the
Company, has a contractual obligation to CD Fund in the event
of uncertain future events such as liquidation, dissolution or
termination of the Company that are beyond the control of the
Group. As Xiwang Metal Science does not have the unconditional
right to avoid delivering cash, the capital investment of
RMB161,000,000 made by CD Fund to the Company was
recorded as a financial liability. During the year ended 31
December 2020, capital investment of RMB31,000,000 was
repaid by the Group.

R RRMEE (B

25. Hitt REAE RIE

R2015F12 A28 "2 &)~ i £
CBREESFIFmYRBEEFAER
EeBRAFR(EHBESDFTYRE
Wi RIBZIEEwE  BRESRA
AT&ERBEE AR 161,000,000
JL o RIBZIEEHEM G - BIRE
SHEISFABEE KT BEK
BRAEZESNAQRZIE - AAQF
FEIZ1.2% B E B F O HEIRZE W EH
AESIANRE BEZEEHZEDN
BE EBARRIMNBARMNALS
BRIEERAGEEBE  HHNE
EEXREEEZEHHTEERRSE
HREEFAEASEANER - ARA

Be BRHESARAQAEEZ AR
# 161,000,000 LA X B WL A S A
B{E - #HZE2020F 12 A31HILFE -
REB D EE ARKS1,000,000 7T H

SHARE CAPITAL 26. g7
2022 2021
2022 & 2021 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET AREFIT

Issued and fully paid: BETRER
2,369,110,999 (2021: 2,369,110,999)  2,369,110,999 f% (2021 £ :

ordinary shares 2,369,110,999 %) & @ % 1,369,681 1,369,681
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27.

BRI ERaR M EE ()

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Eligible participants of the Scheme include any
employees of the Group, any non-executive directors
(including independent non-executive directors) and any
suppliers and customers of the Group, as absolutely
determined by the directors. The Scheme became effective on
3 September 2014 and, unless otherwise cancelled or
amended, will remain in force for 10 years from the date.

The maximum number of shares to be issued upon the
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Scheme and any other schemes of the
Company must not exceed 30% of the shares of the Company
in issue from time to time. The maximum number of shares
issuable under share options to each eligible participant in the
Scheme within any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any further grant
of share options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
associates, are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors. In addition, any share
options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or to any
of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time and with an aggregate value
(based on the price of the Company’s shares at the date of
grant) in excess of HKD5 million, within any 12-month period,
are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general
meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
28 days from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HKD1 in total by the grantee. The exercise
period of the share options granted is determinable by the
directors, and may commence on the date of grant of the
share options and end on a date which is not later than ten
years from the date of grant of the share options.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

27. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the
directors, but may not be less than the highest of (i) the stock
exchange closing price of the Company’s shares on the date
of grant of the share options; (ii) the average stock exchange
closing price of the Company’s shares for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal
value of the shares.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends
or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted was
estimated as at the date of grant using the binomial model,
taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the
options were granted. The following table lists the inputs to
the model used:

Options granted on 12 April 2017:

Dividend yield (%) -
Expected volatility (%) 46
Risk-fee interest rate (%) 1.18
Expected life of options (years) 1.00 - 5.00

e B ISR EE ()

27. BRRET S @)

BRENTEERESET  B1E
BERAUTEEZ&ZESE () RA KM%
PREERRAETR H B BRI B S AT Ay Uk T (8
(i A2 &) By R B R B 8T B E
RS BEBRITHFEHRTE - i)
e EE -

BN B T A AR MEUR S
SIRBRAG LIRE -

AEBRHZERE A FEIRE
A BER AR BRI
st Wit RERER LR Z R

i o NREIIZBEAAEAZE

A2017F4 512 B EHRBRE

% B 2 (%) -
TEHK 18 (%) 46
42 3 fx T K (%) 1.18
fElE s TERHFHA(F) 1.00-5.00
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27. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 27. BBIREEETE )
As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the following share R2022%F 202112 A31H &R
options were outstanding under the Scheme of the Company AKRNBZeFE TEARITERNBREN
during the year: TP

Number of share options

BREHE

As at Granted Exercised Lapsed As at Exercise

1 January during during during 31 December price per

Date of grant BRHERH 2022 the year the year the year 2022 share
R2022F R2022%

1A18H EREH ER{TRE FRALM  12B31H BROEE

HKD

BT

12 April 2017 20174 A12H 200,000 - - (200,000) - 1.380
Total @it 200,000 - - (200,000) -

Number of share options
BRRES A

As at Granted Exercised Lapsed As at Exercise

1 January during during during 31 December price per

Date of grant =g 2021 the year the year the year 2021 share
72021 & 12021

1A1H ERRE FRITE FRLXH 12A318  BROFE

HKD

BT

25 August 2016 2016F 8 A25H 3,766,667 - - (3,766,667) - 0.730

12 April 2017 20174 A12H 200,000 - - - 200,000 1.380
Total @it 3,966,667 - - (3,766,667 200,000
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27. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

28.

No share options were exercised during the year (2021: Nil).

No share option was granted during the years ended 31
December 2022 and 2021.

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the
Company had no (2021: 200,000) share option outstanding
under the Scheme, which represented approximately 0%
(2021: 0.01%) of the Company’s shares in issue as at that

date.

RESERVES

(@)

In accordance with PRC Company Law and the
respective articles of association of the subsidiaries
registered in PRC (the “PRC Subsidiaries”), each of
PRC Subsidiaries is required to appropriate 10% of its
annual statutory net profit after tax (after offsetting any
prior years’ losses) to the statutory surplus reserve.
When the balance of such reserve fund reaches 50% of
each entity’s capital, any further appropriation is
optional. The statutory surplus reserve can be utilised to
offset prior years’ losses or to increase the capital.
However, such balance of the statutory surplus reserve
must be maintained at a minimum of 25% of the capital
after such usages.

In accordance with the regulation regarding safety
production expenditures jointly issued by the Ministry of
Finance and the State Administration of Work Safety on
14 February 2012, the subsidiaries of the Group
engaging in the covered industries were required to
accrue the safety production expenditures according to
their sales of the previous year in a progressive way. The
special reserve should be used to improve the
production safety of these subsidiaries.

The Group’s other reserve includes the deemed
contribution from the Company’s ultimate holding
company’s borrowings.

27.

28.

BRI SRR EE ()

nv'.R

BRETSwm

%)

HE2022F 202112 AB1 H IEF
B ER PR AR o

RAEL ST HRERER - XAEE
Z&F 8118 T )% A (2021 4 : 200,000)
MARITERERE  BHERZBAR

A B 1Tl H K T%(20214F :

0.01%) °

#&

(@) IR¥E2021 REIRENERAF BT
Mo BAR(HPEKBAR )
LEMMEBSRME - &R EH
BAREBFEEATHRTIEDT
LA FE R TR EIBE L
10% BASKE R HE - ZHE

EHEBREINZTERELRHS0%
B AREERESER AZRE

o ATERBEH T AEREN
TFEEHNBEIIEMER - A
m: BETRGBHREERR LR
BENBRE KEREAERFT
EARE25% ©

) REVFBIERERZEZEEEE
EIBA B N2012F2 A14 H Bt
ERMNETEEELEEE N
o AEBREMBEEITENN
BARARELL—EAFENHEE
LAET#E S Rt IR T2 A ES E -
BRI EHERRREZEN
BRARMLZREE -

© AEENEMFEEEERIERA
RRRREER R RERO TR
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29.

BRI ERaR M EE ()

TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

Transferred financial assets that are not
derecognised in their entirety

Bills discounted

As at 31 December 2022, certain bills receivable within the
Group were discounted by two banks and certain companies
in PRC (the “Discounted Bills”) with carrying amounts of
RMB683,700,000 (2021: RMB752,000,000). In the opinion of
the directors, the Group had retained the substantial risks and
rewards, which include default risks relating to the Discounted
Bills, and accordingly, advances from the discounting of the
Group’s Discounted Bills had been accounted for as interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings in the consolidated
statement of financial position. The aggregate carrying amount
of the Discounted Bills as at 31 December 2022 was
RMB683,700,000 (2021: RMB752,000,000) and the carrying
amount of bank advances on the Discounted Bills as at 31
December 2022 was RMB669,793,000 (2021:
RMB729,996,000).

Financial assets that are derecognised in
their entirety

Bills discounted

As at 31 December 2022, certain bills receivable were
discounted by two banks in PRC with a carrying amount of
RMB31,600,000 (2021: RMB281,506,000). In the opinion of
the directors, the Group had transferred substantially all risks
and rewards relating to the Discounted Bills. Accordingly, it
had derecognised the full carrying amount of the Discounted
Bills. The maximum exposure to loss from the Group’s
continuing involvement in the Discounted Bills and the
undiscounted cash flows to repurchase these Discounted Bills
was equal to their carrying amounts. In the opinion of the
directors, the fair values of the Group’s continuing involvement
in the Discounted Bills were not significant.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, losses were
recognised in “finance costs” on the date of transfer of the
Discounted Bills of RMB30,157,000 (2021: RMB51,210,000).
No gains or losses were recognised from the continuing
involvement, both during the year or cumulatively.
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e B ISR EE ()

30. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

30. FEREFERME

(@) Changes in liabilities arising from (a) METHEE2EH
financing activities
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities TRHEMSAAEBERETE
arising from financing activities, including both cash and ELXEEZEE  BERSNIE
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing IREEH o mﬁé,ﬁ@)ﬁﬁ%igﬁ
activities are those for which cash flows were, or future ERAEBEGAERSREEREAD

cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated
statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing

activities.

ﬁaﬁ%ﬂﬁ/ﬁiﬁﬁﬁéizfﬁimi
FARREREZBIE -

Amount due to

the ultimate
Bank and holding
other loans Lease liabilities company Total
RITR ER&ER
HibE X HERE ERAARE #st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
(note 23) (note 14(b)) (note 34(d)(ii))
(M5t 23) (FrzE140)  (BEE34(d)i)
At 1 January 2021 R2021F1A18 4,229,291 1,075 447 4,230,813
Changes from financing HEReRER
cash flows (868,906) (621) 4) (869,531)
Exchange realignment [ 5 3% (26,857) (15) - (26,872)
Accrual interest JEEH IS (48,298) - - (48,298)
Interest expense FIEHX 289,429 40 4 289,473
At 31 December 2021 R2021F12 A31H 3,574,659 479 447 3,575,585
Changes from financing BERLTEED
cash flows 761,299 (497) - 760,802
Exchange realignment EREIEE 34,981 ) - 34,973
Accrual interest JERTH 2 (131,609 - - (131,603)
Interest expense MEFY 238,022 26 - 238,048
At 31 December 2022 RW2022F12A31H 4,477,358 - 447 4,477,805
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e B I RaR M EE ()

30. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 30. IFARERERMET W@
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
(b) Total cash outflow for leases (b) HEZHERLAE
The total cash outflow for leases included in the HAGEHERERIHEZR
consolidated statement of cash flows is as follows: ERMBTNT ¢
2022 2021
2022 % 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT ARET T

Within operating activities RS & BN A 1,062 5,116
Within financing activities RREEEFR 497 621
1,559 5,737
31. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 31. HARAR

On 4 January 2016, the Company entered into a guarantee R2016F1 A48 AAFEAEE
agreement with Xiwang Group Company with a term of three B AR H2016F1 48 #£ AH
years commencing from 4 January 2016, pursuant to which ZENERGE B ARAEMA
the Company will provide Xiwang Group Company and its AETEERRARAEME AR (REEBR
subsidiaries other than the Group (the “Relevant SN (THEBHME LR D R ERRE
Subsidiaries”) with guarantee services (the “Guarantee ([ERHZE]) - R2021F1 H19H -
Agreement”). On 19 January 2021, the Company entered into AN BB T & B2 Al 5] 34 7T R
a supplementary guarantee agreement with Xiwang Group g BMERTIRER B AR -

Company to revise the terms and conditions.
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31. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

Pursuant to the Guarantee Agreement, the Company shall
undertake to guarantee and bear any obligations and liabilities
of Xiwang Group Company and the Relevant Subsidiaries
provided under the loan agreement to be entered into between
the lenders and Xiwang Group Company and/or the Relevant
Subsidiaries subject to the terms of the specific guarantee
agreements to be entered into between the lenders and the
Company. The guarantee amount to be provided by the
Company to Xiwang Group Company and the Relevant
Subsidiaries under the Guarantee Agreement (the “Guarantee
Amount”) shall not exceed the aggregate amount due from
the Group to Xiwang Group Company and the Relevant
Subsidiaries (including but not limited to the borrowings
provided by Xiwang Group to the Group) and the aggregate
amount of the Group’s borrowings which is guaranteed and/or
secured by Xiwang Group Company and the Relevant
Subsidiaries, less the aggregate amount due from Xiwang
Group Company and the Relevant Subsidiaries to the Group
(including but not limited to the deposits placed by the Group
with Xiwang Finance) (the “Outstanding Amount”) and shall
be subject to the maximum cap of RMB5 billion. For all the
guarantee amount provided by the Group to the lenders,
Xiwang Group would have provided a counter guarantee to
the Group.

Any borrowings to be repaid by the Company for and on
behalf of Xiwang Group Company (and the Relevant
Subsidiaries) pursuant to the Guarantee Agreement shall be
offset by the borrowings payable by the Company to Xiwang
Group, or as other amounts payable by the Company to
Xiwang Group Company or the Relevant Subsidiaries.

R RRMEE (B

31. HIAREEm@®
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31.

32.

33.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, contingent liabilities not
provided for in the financial statements in respect of the
Guarantee Amount were as follows:

31.

ARBE @

R2022F K 2021 F12 A31H » B 7%
MEANRERSERETEE 2SR
BEWT

2022 2021

2022 F 2021 £

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T AR®ET T

Guarantees given to banks in BTIRITHBERE 2R

connection with facilities:

Granted to Xiwang Group Company RYATEBERT 1,400,000 1,400,000

Granted to the Relevant Subsidiaries T HBEMNE QR 2,768,500 2,790,000

4,168,500 4,190,000

As at 31 December 2022, the Outstanding Amount was Nil
(2021: RMB3,489,130,000). The Guarantee Amount exceeded
the Outstanding Amount by RMB384,800,000 as at the
reporting date.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Details of the Group’s assets pledged for the bills payable,
interest-bearing and other borrowings of the Group, ultimate
holding company and fellow subsidiaries, and the counter
guarantee are included in notes 13, 14(a) and 20 to the
consolidated financial statements.

COMMITMENTS

The Group had the following capital commitments at the end
of the reporting period:

32.

33.

MR2022%F12A31H REESLHEA
T (20214 : A R #3,489,130,000
L) e BEREGHE  BREFHBIER
EiE o5 AR 384,800,0007T °

BERH

BEEMASRE SERERATAERAR
MEBARNENRE TR REME
FARRRERBANASEEEZ
FRENEAMBHRRMEZ - 14(9)
K20 -

IR

AEBRHREMREG AT EAASE

2022 2021
2022 £ 2021 %
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARBFIT
Contracted, but not provided for: DETAVB R B -
Property, plant and equipment NS 557,413 577,209
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e B ISR EE ()

34. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

34. EXEAB ARSI RéEH

(a) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in (@) MZSHBRE M H REN
these financial statements, the Group had the following T HEIEI - ANEB R E RN
transactions with related parties during the year: BHETRR ST ¢

2022 2021
2022 2021 F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
i AR¥TR ARETTT
Rental expenses to HFAEEERAN
Xiwang Group Company Hemk 34(a)(i) 107 183
Rental expenses to a fellow ¥ —ER RN BRI
subsidiary AeMx 34(a)(i)
— Lease of land —tiHEE 720 720
Guarantee fee received AFE T EE A AR
from Xiwang Group Company BERE 34(a)(vii) 3,306 -
Delivery service fees to FF-—HRREER RN
a fellow subsidiary BERKE 34(a)(i)
— Delivery of steel — BRI 1,399 3,133
— Delivery of ore-powder —ERED 884 5,571
Interest expenses on borrowings R &7 T £ E A Al HE
from Xiwang Group Company FERL 34(a)(ii) - 4
Interest expenses on borrowings & & 7 T B 15 & &Y
from Xiwang Finance FMEHL 34(a)(ii) 2,166 2,067
Interest on discounted bills paid B {7 F B &AL R ZER
to Xiwang Finance B 34(al(iii) - 43
Interest income from REETHBEFEHA
Xiwang Finance 34(ay(iii) 3,653 2,932
Sale of steam to a fellow m)— [ A & B B 2 &
subsidiary HEEA 34(a)(iv) 27,671 22,672
Sale of heat energy to EEIEIEELIENE
two fellow subsidiaries & 2 e 34(a)(iv) 1,291 1,439
28,962 24,111
Sale of water to fellow subsidiaries [A[F Z Ki B A 7] H & 7K 34(a)(iv) 8,636 8,368
Purchase of diesel oil from [ — R R R B A A
a fellow subsidiary A= i 34(a)(v) 16,138 13,019
Purchase of water from m)— & A & Fff B 2 7
a fellow subsidiary EEK 34(a)(v) 1,098 1,415
Purchase of scrap from fellow BRIEEIGEAG =830
subsidiaries 34(a)(v) 953 1,100
Purchase of electricity through FER-HRRNEAF
a fellow subsidiary BEE 34(a)(vi) 872,874 969,158
Bills acceptance service from REARTHBHERER
Xiwang Finance RTE 34(a)(vii) 659,100 578,800
HAEREARLE —FT-_FFH
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34. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

(Continued)

(a) (Continued)

(0

(i

(i)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viil)

The rental expenses to Xiwang Group Company and the rental
expenses and delivery service fees to a fellow subsidiary were
charged at rates based on mutual agreements between both
parties.

The interest expenses to Xiwang Group Company for the year
amounted to Nil (2021: RMB4,000) (note 7).

Details of deposits and the interest-bearing borrowings from
Xiwang Finance are disclosed in notes 20 and 23 to the
consolidated financial statements. The interest expenses to
Xiwang Finance for the year amounted to RMB2,166,000 (2021:
RMB2,067,000) (note 7).

The selling prices of steam, steel, heat energy and water offered
to fellow subsidiaries were mutually agreed between both parties.

The purchase prices of diesel oil, water and scrap from fellow
subsidiaries were mutually agreed between both parties.

The electricity was purchased through a fellow subsidiary as an
agent of the local power bureau. The purchase prices of electricity
were mutually agreed between both parties. The Group paid the
fellow subsidiary with a total amount of RMB872,874,000 (2021:
RMB969,158,000) for electricity consumption. The Group entered
into the new agreement during the year ended 31 December
2022.

The bills discounting and bills acceptance services from Xiwang
Finance for the year amounted to RMBNil and RMB659,100,000
(2021: Nil and RMB578,800,000) respectively.

The guarantee fee from Xiwang Group Company was charged on
0.5% per annum of the Outstanding Amount payable by Xiwang
Group to the Group for the amount exceeding the aggregate
outstanding amount due from the Group to Xiwang Group.
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34. EXEAB AR I REETHR @

(a)

(i

(i)

()

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

NFAEEEE QR NHES RS R
F-HBRHBARNESRA X
BRARBERESHERE 2B
FRUZEN

FRANFEIEEQANFEME
AE(20214F : AR#4,0007T) (M
FE7) e

ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁyﬁéﬁfﬁﬁ%mf%x&mé
EEMBO B BRZFEREE
I RMRMFE20 %23 E - TR
HFEATHBEHF AT ABARE
2,166,0007C (20214 : A R ¥
2,067,0007T) (FI3E7) °

ETRAMBRBNET MM
HBE SR 2 BIRTHEEIHEERE

17 [7) 25 Y B8 X RIS B S0 - K R R
2 BRIEETHERE

BANER—RZRNE AR (E
Bt HhENRHREBE)BE -8
BEEAREIHE AKERE
HEARRMBRAZMEEA

% 872,874,0007C (2021 F + A E
#069,158,0007T) * ALENEHZE
202212 A1 B It FE BRI
ik °

FAREATHBEHNERUBRRE
BALREDNABAREZITRA
R #659,100,0007T (2021 4F : &
& AR 578,800,0007T) ©
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34. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 34. EXEB AR S Rt @
TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

(Continued)

(b) Other related party transactions (b) HMRAER X Z
()  Certain bills payable are guaranteed by certain () EHTENZEBEAUTETHA
related parties as follows: BT R BRI -
2022 2021
2022 F 2021 F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B s ARBTR ARBFT
Xiwang Group Company, AEEERA
Mr. Wang Yong, PR AR
a controlling shareholder of the FE&AERTE
Company and Mr. Wang Di, ITREERFRLR
the Chairman during the year,  F1%&-5)
jointly and severally 21 33,116 313,116

BERMAFRAT =




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR RRMEE (B

34. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 34. EXEB AR S REEF @
TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

(Continued)

(b) Other related party transactions (b) EMEEAERSZ @)
(Continued)
(i)  Certain interest-bearing borrowings are guaranteed iy BTFFEEREAATETH
by certain related parties as follows: Bt EH R ¢
2022 2021
2022 2021 F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B s ARET R ARBFT
Mr. Wang Yong TELE 23 258,925 241,192
Certain ordinary shares of —FHRRENBARZ
a fellow subsidiary ETEERn

Certain convertible preference —BRZMBRF Y
shares of a fellow subsidiary & T A& E &%

Xiwang Group Company MEEE AT 23 601,790 649,790
Mr. Wang Di and Ms. Su Xin ~ FH#se 4 Rerma+

(spouse of Mr. Wang Di) (EREEZERBE)

jointly and severally £RFEZ R
Mr. Wang Yong and Ms. Zhang F B %4 RiR#E £+

Shufang (spouse of (EBLENRBE)

Mr. Wang Yong) jointly HREFME R

and severally
Certain land and buildings RERZRWBARZ

from fellow subsidiaries ETTEEF
Certain machinery and *E—RRZRWB AR

equipment from a fellow 2B THEREE

subsidiary
Certain shares of fellow REWNB AR ZET’KH

subsidiaries
Xiwang Group Company AEEBERA 23 488,140 1,068,550
Xiwang Group Company and AT EBE AT R —HREZE

a fellow subsidiary NG 23 303,023 304,064
Xiwang Group Company, BXIEERQR]

Mr. Wang Yong ITBEEAER

and Mr. Wang Di jointly and TREEHRBMER

severally 23 2,444,480 714,116
Mr. Wang Yong and Mr. Wang FE4%&4 R FHELE

Di jointly and severally HERME R 23 381,000 382,000

4,477,358 3,359,712
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e B ISR EE ()

34. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

(Continued)

34. EXEAB AR I REETHR @

(b) Other related party transactions

(b) HAtBEES RS (@)

(Continued)

(i)

(iv)

The Group provided guarantee services to Xiwang
Group Company and the Relevant Subsidiaries
during the years ended 31 December 2022 and
2021, details of which are included in note 31 to
the consolidated financial statements.

At 31 December 2022, as part of the guarantee
services provided by the Group to Xiwang Group
Company and the Relevant Subsidiaries as
disclosed in note 34(b)(iii) above, certain of the
Group’s buildings, leaseholds land and machinery
and equipment with net carrying amounts of
approximately RMB860,717,000 (2021:
RMB1,317,709,000) (note 13), RMB84,404,000
(2021: RMB86,605,000) (note 14) and 323,611,000
(2021: RMB357,216,000) (note 13) were pledged
to secure other borrowings of RMB956,500,000
(2021: RMB978,000,000) of fellow subsidiaries.

At 31 December 2022, as part of the guarantee
services provided by the Group to Xiwang Group
Company and the Relevant Subsidiaries as
disclosed in note 34(b)(iii) above, 95.6% (2021:
99.10%) equity interests of the subsidiary, Xiwang
Special Steel Company Limited, the PRC
subsidiary, have been pledged for other borrowings
of fellow subsidiaries of RMB804,000,000 (2021:
RMB804,000,000) (note 1).

)

(iv)

BERMAARAR —B-_FFH

REZE 2022 FF K 2021 F 12
AB1HLEFE  A&EBEM
AITEE A REERBEA
AR ERRES - FBEER
RE IS mARMFEST -

R2022F12 A318 ' 1EA
AEEPATEE QR KRIE
B b8 2 B R IR AR TS

7 — 885 (40 3T EE 34(p)
(i FTikee) » NEBEETE
FHE I R HEESA KRR
BEEBFELNAARE
860,717,000 7t (2021 4F = A
R #1,317,709,000 7T ) ( Kt
FE13) « AR 84,404,000
(20214 : AR¥86,605,000
L) (K 3E14) B A R #
323,611,000 7T (2021 4
AR #357,216,0007T) (Bt
F13)) EEMIEAR KM
B QAR AHARE
956,500,000 7t (2021 4 :
A R #978,000,0007C ) #]
HA B2 MR o

R2022F 12 A31H » 1k A
AEBMATER QR LA
B M B A R AR IR AR TS
2 — 8B (40 = B EE 34(o)i
i) - PEMEARAE
1530 & IR A 5]95.6% (2021
F:09.10%) WIRED1EA
BREWB QRN EMERKA
R 804,000,000 7T (2021
& AR #804,000,0007T )
FOHEIR (BFE) o




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e B I RaR M EE ()

34. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

(Continued)

(b) Other related party transactions

(Continued)

(vij At 31 December 2022, as part of the guarantee
services provided by the Group to Xiwang Group
Company and the Relevant Subsidiaries as
disclosed in note 34(b)(iii) above, 100% (2021:
100%) equity interests of the subsidiary, Xiwang
Metal Science, have been pledged for other
borrowings of the ultimate holding company of
RMB1,400,000,000 (2021: RMB1,400,000,000)
(note 1).

(c) Commitments with related parties
The Group leases certain land from Xiwang Group
Company and leases certain land and vehicles from a
fellow subsidiary under short-term leases. The total
amounts of lease of land from a fellow subsidiary for the
year are disclosed in note 34(a)(i) to the consolidated
financial statements.
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34. EXEAB AR I REETHR @

(b) EMEEAERSZ @)

(vi)

R2022F12 A318 ' 1EA
AEBRATEERNTME
B M B A R M R AR TS
7 885 (40 3T EE 34(p)
(i) FTiEER) BB ARAEE
% B R $100% (2021 4F :
100%) KB HE B 1E AR AR IE
AR EAMERARE
1,400,000,000 7T (2021 4F :
AR ¥ 1,400,000,000 7T ) K]
IR (FRE1) ©

(c) FAEg AR
AEEREEHEERNATEE
ABHEEFT LI A—HRE
MEBARMESE T REH-
FRAM—ERRENBARTHEE L
HE LS RBRERE BTSRRI T
34(a)() FIEEE ©



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

R RRMEE (B

34. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

(Continued)

(d) Outstanding balances with related
parties

(M

(i)

(iv)

The Group had long term interest-bearing
borrowings from Xiwang Finance, a fellow
subsidiary, as at 31 December 2022 and 2021.
Details of the interest-bearing borrowings from
Xiwang Finance are disclosed in note 23 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group had certain deposits placed with
Xiwang Finance as at 31 December 2022 and
2021. Details of the deposits in Xiwang Finance are
disclosed in note 20 to the consolidated financial
statement.

The balance of the Group’s borrowings of
approximately RMB447,000 (2021: RMB447,000)
from its ultimate holding company on 31 December
2022 and 2021 is unsecured and repayable on
demand.

Details of the Group’s outstanding balances due
from its fellow subsidiaries are included in note 18
and note 19 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Details of the Group’s outstanding balances due to
its fellow subsidiaries are included in note 21 and
note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

34. EXEAB AR I REETHR @

(d) EEEEERTS M REELER

0)

(i)

(iv)

BEEREAFRAT

20224 22021412 A 31
H - REEFERER KM
BAr IR E
B - BAKREAEIHEE
BERZFBRERE TR
KM FE 23R E -

MR 20224 2021412 A
31H  AEBBETHEX
WMERTAETH - BENE
KA TR FREFBRER
A IRERMI 20 HEE o

7N B 7 2022 4F [z 2021 4F
12A3THEBAEZEKRERA
BAIEBMMERNARE
44700070 (202145 @+ AR
#5447,000 70 ) K B8R 58 A&
PR RIREKERER -

7R 5 (8 YW L [R) 2 Y/ 1 )
REEEHRZABHNEGRE
B 7% ¥R MY SR8 & MY A
19-°

AR B 5 B[R] 2 Y S 1 )
REEBHRZHBTEHNERE
B % R MY AE21 &MY A
22 °

“ECCEFR




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e B I RaR M EE ()

34. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 34. EXEB AR S REEF @

TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

(Continued)

() Compensation of key management ) XREBFTEEEAEMN
personnel of the Group: HEMOT -
2022 2021
2022 F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT ARET T

Employee benefit expenses EEEMFEXZ 5,676 6,842
Pension scheme contributions RIRSET B 181 189
Total compensation paid to SNFEEERAEBR

key management personnel e Es 5,857 7,031

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in
note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

The related party transactions in respect of note (a)

above also constitute continuing connected transactions
as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

R RRMEE (B

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 35. MRS SR THE
CATEGORY
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial ZHEeMTERREHARANEREES
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as T
follows:
Financial assets ETHMEE
2022 2022 F
Equity Financial
investments assets at
at FVTOCI amortised cost Total
BRAFEETA RS
Hit 2wl 251 B 19
ZHERRE cRMEE et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT ARBT ARET T

Equity investments at FVTOCI % A F{EF A E M2 E

Was 2 emiR & 51,023 - 51,023
Trade receivables U E 5718 - 31,061 31,061
Financial assets included in 5+ AT EUE -~ H i

prepayments, other FEWRIB R B E

receivables and other assets )& R E& & - 93,768 93,768

Pledged deposits B ER - 269,466 269,466

Cash and cash equivalents BHERBELEED - 311,599 311,599

51,023 705,894 756,917

AEREERAT —B_—FFH



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR RRMEE (B

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 35. IREREI P HNEMITEm
CATEGORY (continued)
Financial assets EMEE
2021 2021 F
Equity Financial
investments assets at
at FVTOCI amortised cost Total
BEAFERA bire i
Hip2mkzs B A1 BR /Y
2RI E TRVEE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARET T ARETT

Equity investments at FVTOCI % A F{EF A E M2 E

Wz Rk E 66,096 - 66,096
Trade and bills receivables TEWE 5 F8 & e E - 57,505 57,505
Financial assets included in sFAFERFIE « Ef

prepayments, other JE W R TE 2 B A B A

receivables and other assets H& @& E - 148,103 148,103

Pledged deposits [REEYER=N - 419,272 419,272

Cash and cash equivalents R4 RKIREZEY - 332,182 332,182

66,096 957,062 1,023,158
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e B ISR EE ()

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 35. IRFEBEPHNERM T A m

CATEGORY (continued)
Financial liabilities o= =N
2022 2021
2022 fF 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR®ET T
Trade and bills payables (note 21) FERHE S RIE K ENEE
(MizE21) 2,235,169 2,254,123
Financial liabilities included in other ST AE A BN FRIE R BT BN
payables and accruals SRBE 519,146 616,773
Borrowings from ultimate holding A REIERARMER
company (note 34(d)(ii)) (K5 34(d)(i)) 447 447
Interest-bearing bank and other FHERIT R EAME R (M5 23)
borrowings (note 23) 4,477,358 3,574,659
Other long term payable (note 25) & BB 510E (M sE 25) 130,000 130,000
Dividend payables FERTRR B 290,369 290,369
Lease liabilities (note 14(b)) HE&E (MFE14(0)) = 479
Total Bzt 7,652,489 6,866,850

BERMAARAR —B-_FFH




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e B I RaR M EE ()

36. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE 36. EMITANAFERLF

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company’s
financial instruments approximate to their fair values.

Management has assessed that the fair values of bank
balances, pledged deposits, trade and bills receivables, other
receivables and other assets, trade and bills payables, other
payables and accruals, dividend payables, borrowings from
the ultimate holding company and the current portion of
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings approximate to
their respective carrying amounts largely due to the short term
maturities of these instruments.

The Group’s finance department headed by the finance
manager is responsible for determining the policies and
procedures for the fair value measurement of financial
instruments. The finance department reports directly to the
executive vice president and the audit committee. At each
reporting date, the finance department analyses the
movements in the values of financial instruments and
determines the major inputs applied in the valuation. The
valuation is reviewed and approved by the executive vice
president. The valuation process and results are discussed
with the audit committee twice a year for interim and annual
financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in
a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a
forced or liquidation sale. The following methods and
assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

The fair values of the non-current portion of borrowings of
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings and other long
term payable have been calculated by discounting the
expected future cash flows using rates currently available for
instruments with similar terms, credit risk and remaining
maturities. The changes in fair value as a result of the Group’s
own non-performance risk for borrowings from the ultimate
holding company, interest-bearing bank and other borrowings
and other long term payable as at 31 December 2022 and
2021 were assessed to be insignificant.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

36. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the unlisted equity
investment designated at FVTOCI has been estimated using a
market-based valuation technique on assumptions that are
not supported by observable market prices or rates. The
valuation requires the directors to determine comparable
public companies (peers) based on industry, size, leverage
and strategy, and to calculate an appropriate price multiple,
such as price-to-book (“P/B”) ratio (excluding goodwill)
multiple, for each comparable company identified. The
directors believe that the estimated fair values resulting from
the valuation technique, which are recorded in the
consolidated statement of financial position, and the related
changes in fair values, which are recorded in other
comprehensive income, are reasonable, and that they were
the most appropriate values at the end of the reporting period.

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the mark-to-market value
of the derivative asset position is net of a credit valuation
adjustment attributable to derivative counterparty default risk.
The changes in counterparty credit risk had no material effect
on financial instruments recognised at fair value.

For the fair value of the unlisted equity investments at FVTOCI,
management has estimated the potential effect of using
reasonably possible alternatives as inputs to the valuation
model.

e B ISR EE ()

36. @M I ANAFERAT

EES)

R2022%F K2021%F 12 A31H ' I E
BEAFEFAERMEZEAKRENR L
MHRSIEEFEAER TSN G ER
VERET A FEAABEEMEXLET
NFERAmMETEE - HEERESR
BITE BB BEEARKRBET
ALBEARAR(RE) RS —#
RIE A LR A RlRT EEE MEREE
MR E((MER]) (TEERE)E
B -BERAE THESKATBRR
ROBHERMEENGERFEM
R AEEMEEmRENAFEMRRES
FEAE UTRAZZEEAERS
HREABEZMEE -

R2022F K 2021F 12 A31H {74
BEBETHMERIRITEREFA
EHRBNEEMEAR - WFHH
FERBRELCHIEZEATFTEERSRT
BWEmERNTE -

MEAFEFARE ARG ZIFE
MEaREZAFEMNS  BEEMR
FHERAEAIREE KA ERAEER
M ABIBNEETZE -

BERMAARAR —B-_FFH




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR RRMEE (B

36. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE 36. M ITAENQAFERAF
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL HEFRu@m
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to AT AR 2022 4F k2021412 A31 H
valuation of financial instruments together with a quantitative HemT EHEEZEATAIERE A
sensitivity analysis as at 31 December 2022 and 2021: YIRBRTERXESMHEE -
Valuation Significant
technique unobservable input Range Sensitivity of fair value to the input
EXFABE
fRER M BABE gE AFEHRABBEZHRE
Unlisted equity Valuation Average P/B ratio 2022: 0.52% 5% (2021: 5%) increase/decrease
investment multiples multiple of peers (2021: 0.66%) in multiple would result
(Or Average P/E in increase/decrease
multiple of peers) in fair value by RMB2,551,000
(2021: RMB3,058,000)
FETRRRE HERH REFHMEREH 20225 : 0.52% EEUE I,/ 5% (2021 F : 5%)
(FREFHTMERE (20214 : 0.66%) SEHBRTELM/HD
&80 AR#2,551,0007T

(20214 : AR¥3,058,0007T)

Discount for lack of 2022: 15.80% 5% (2021: 5%) increase/decrease
marketability (2021: 15.80%) in discount would result

in decrease/increase

in fair value by RMB479,000

(2021: RMB620,000)

BRETSRBIENE 20224 1 15.80% ra®sg i,/ m 5% (20214 : 5%)
(20214 : 15.80%) SBPNFERD, /M

AR 479,0007T

(20214 : AR#620,0007T)

The discount for lack of marketability represents the amounts BRZmEnRtERRNEEEED
of premiums and discounts determined by the Group that B2EETARETEREEEN
market participants would take into account when pricing the ERITEDTE -

investments.
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36. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value
measurements

BRI SRR EE ()

nv'B

36. EMITANATFERAF
BEEFHum

B=RMAVEFTENHREK

Unlisted equity

investment

FETREERE

RMB’000

ARBFT

At 1 January 2021 M2021F1H1H 75,498
Changes in fair value N EEE -

— in other comprehensive income — REMEERZE (9,402)

At 31 December 2021 R2021F12 A31 H 66,096
Changes in fair value NEBEEE)

— in other comprehensive income — REMEERE (15,073)

At 31 December 2022 MR 2022412 431 H 51,023

Included in other comprehensive income is an amount of
RMB15,073,000 (2021: RMB9,402,000) relating to unlisted
equity investment held at the end of the current reporting
period and is reported as changes of fair value reserve.

AR EE WS AARE15,073, ooo
JL (20214 + AR #9,402,007T) -
RAREHABRFENIE LT ES tx
BHR WHAEAFEFTAEMS
RS -
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e B I RaR M EE ()

36. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE 36. M TANQAFERAF
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL EEH @
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy NEEER

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement TRERAEBRSM T AN FE
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments: BER

As at 31 December 2022 A2022F12H31H

Fair value measurement using

AT EHERA

Quoted
prices  Significant  Significant
in active  observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
BEX

ERTE  EATEER TR

HE BARE BWARE
(E—&) (E=&) (B=4) aat
RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB’000
ARBTRE ARMTR AR®TR ARETR

Equity investments designated 87 A1z A F A AEAD
at FVTOCI FPERENERRE - = 51,023 51,023
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e B ISR EE ()

36. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE 36. EMITANAFERLF
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL EZFR @)
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued) ANEEER @
As at 31 December 2021 2021512 A31H

Fair value measurement using
AT ERA
Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
BX

mETS EATEE TAEER

HRIE & AU 8 ABUR
(B—4) (B=H) (B=4) et
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTL  ARBTT ARETT AREBTET

Equity investments designated 85 AR A FEH A E A

at FVTOCI PENENEZRE - - 66,096 66,096
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value FAN B REF_FoBAEAF
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers BEFENEER  TEICHEERSD
into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and financial EEEE ARENE = -
liabilities.
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e B I RaR M EE ()

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

37. 2MEREREHERBER

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise trade
and bills receivable, other receivables and other assets,
pledged deposits, bank balances, trade and bill payables,
other payables and accruals, dividend payables, lease
liabilities, interest-bearing bank and other borrowings,
borrowings from the ultimate holding company and other long
term payable. The main purpose of these financial instruments
is to raise finance for the Group’s operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, other price risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews and
agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the fair value interest rate risk in
relation to fixed-rate interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings, bills receivable and lease liabilities. The Group is
also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to
variable-rate bank balances.

The Group’s policy is to obtain the most favourable interest
rate available. The effective interest rates and terms of
repayment of the interest-bearing bank and other borrowings
of the Group are set out in note 23 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The Group has not used any interest swaps to hedge its
exposure to interest rate risk. At the end of the reporting
period, all of the Group’s interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings bore interest at fixed rates and the Group
considered interest rate risk is insignificant and thus no
sensitivity analysis is presented.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

R RRMEE (B

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 7. cMEMEEBERBKE
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) (1)
Foreign currency risk S [ B
Most of the operating income of the Group’s business is in AEBEBEBEHRLSLERAUAR
RMB and the Group’s assets held and all of the committed BiE AAEEEBEEEREAER
borrowings of the Group are mainly denominated in RMB, FTEEABETHEEUAARESE -
except for certain bank borrowings denominated in Hong MAREBHEUNBTLETLITENS
Kong dollars and United States dollars held by the Group. FIRITEFRERIN
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of TRIWRAREHRRNEFBRT % (&
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the B),/ #HRAEEESEETERA
United States dollar exchange rates, with all other variables EEAIEMBEENEHNEERE (HTAE
held constant, of the Group’s (loss)/profit after tax and the Hih B2 RENE) -

Group’s equity.

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in  (decrease) in
foreign post-tax
exchange rate profit

ExEH BRBL & A
(FF&) i/ OR4)

RMB’000
AR®ETFTT
2022 2022 F

If the United States weakens WMETHARBEE
against the RMB (5%) 6,250

If the United States strengthens HETHAREHE
against the RMB 5% (6,250)

If the Hong Kong dollar weakens AT AREEE
against the RMB (5%) 10,988

If the Hong Kong dollar strengthens HMBETHAREHE
against the RMB 5% (10,988)

2021 20214

If the United States weakens WMETHARBEE
against the RMB 5%) 6,134

If the United States strengthens WETHE AREE
against the RMB 5% (6,134)

If the Hong Kong dollar weakens WAL AREEE
against the RMB (5%) 10,028

If the Hong Kong dollar strengthens BT AREAHE
against the RMB 5% (10,028)
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37.

BRI ERaR M EE ()

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
investments in equity investment measured at FVTOCI. The
Group invested in 5% equity interest in finance industry sector
for long term strategic purposes which had been designated
as FVTOCI. The Group has appointed a special team to
monitor the price risk and will consider hedging the risk
exposure should the need arise.

Details of the sensitivity analysis of equity investment with fair
value measurement categorised within Level 3 are set out in
note 36.

Credit risk

The carrying amount of the trade receivables represents the
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its
financial assets. The Group minimises its exposure to credit
risk by only dealing with counterparties with acceptable credit
ratings.

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to
trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is
not significant. For transactions that are not denominated in
the functional currency of the relevant operating unit, the
Group does not offer credit terms without the specific approval
of the General Manager.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Other receivables and other assets

In relation to other receivables and other assets, the Group
has assessed that the ECL for these receivables under the
general approach. Reversal of Impairment loss of
approximately RMB4,216,000 (2021: impairment loss of
RMB6,158,000) was made. The Group performs impairment
assessment on the balances on a periodic basis. In
determining the ECL of other receivables and other assets, the
Group has taken into account the financial position of the
counterparties, the industries they operate, their latest
operating result where available as well as forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort.

Pledged bank deposits and bank balances

Credit risk on pledged bank deposits, bills receivable, bank
interest receivable and bank balances is limited because the
counterparties are reputable banks with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit agencies. The Group assessed
12m ECL for pledged bank deposits, bills receivable and bank
balances by reference to information relating to probability of
default and loss given default of the respective credit rating
grades published by external credit rating agencies. The credit
risk is insignificant and no loss allowance is recognised.

Liquidity risk

The Group is exposed to minimal liquidity risk as a substantial
portion of its financial assets and financial liabilities are due
within one year and it can finance its operations from existing
shareholders’ funds and internally generated cash flows.

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of bank balances and cash deemed
adequate by the directors of the Company to finance the
Group’s operations and mitigate the effect of fluctuations in
cash flows. The directors of the Company monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements on a regular basis.

e B ISR EE ()

7.2 REEHEERBE

(%)

EERE @
HithEWERR R EMEE
MEMEREFRREMEEmMS © &
EEEE—RA AT HZERBERR
ZEHEEEE Wi ERE R
EFEHARE4,216,0007T(2021 4 -
JBE BT IR A R #6,158,0007T) © A&
ErEHEZSEBETRESRS - »
ETHEMmEWRER R HEMMEE 2B
TEEER AEECHERSHF
2SN - KB E FEEFTIEITE -
Hen a2 E(WER) URE
BB % P AR S 0 B R BVS 2 AT

SEARITERRBITHER
BHEFRTER  BRER - BKIR
TMBRBITEANEERRABR
ARSI RBERIBEBREER
AARRB AREEMRMRT - K
KSEER2EZMINBEENREBEH
N EASEREFEARR A E OB X
RENBRENEN  FHEEEAR
THEH - BREBERRITEHRI12ME
AEHEEER - FERRILTEX -
B AR B R R

REBE EER

MR EBEABIMBAEREHE
ER—FNHATAEBTARER
RESRABELRERRIFALE
A% HARBEGORYE AR
BT EM -

REERDESAR  AEBERK
MBARREFTRARENENALEE
EEMBNRITEHRLRS > AR
ReRnEBRBFE - ARAESEH
ERBAILERNRBHESHR
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

37.

The following tables detail the Group’s contractual maturity for
its financial liabilities. The tables have been drawn up based
on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest dates on which the Group can be required to pay.

The tables include both interest and principal cash flows.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the contractual

undiscounted payments, is as follows:

eREMEEEBRRBER

(%)

FEELEME @

THEENAEELREENA DI
BN TERENEBTLAN RS
PAMHENSRMABRBEES R
EMREY - TRABENERASES

==
JILEE °

AEBERKERRBREAORTEN
RO TR A ENRHIAORESI T

31 December 2022
20225127318

Weighted On Total
average demand or contractual
interest less than 1t02 2t05 Over  undiscounted Carrying
rate 1 year years years 5 years cash flow amount
LR
it 337 RER RenE
Gk g-FR -EmE ESE Fipohiks Eh BEf
% RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
% AEETR AEETR ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETR
Interest-bearing bankand ~ sFERAREMER
other borrowings 2.9-134 3,838,035 327,967 1,059,301 - 5,225,303 4,477,358
Trade and bills payables ENBSTERERER - 2235169 - - - 0235169 2,285,169
Borrowings from the utimate ~ KEZXERAAER
holding company 0.8 447 = = = 447 447
Financial liabilties included in £t AEHER B R
other payables and accruals  [E:FERRSRER - 441,318 77,828 - - 519,146 519,146
Qther long term payable At REREATE 1.2 1,560 1,560 55,199 82,859 141,178 130,000
Dividend payable Efika - 290,369 - - - 290,369 290,369
6,806,898 407,355 1,114,500 82,859 8,411,612 7,652,489
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e B ISR EE ()

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 7. 2REAMEEEERBR
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) (48)
Liquidity risk (Continued) REBESRE @
31 December 2021
0215127318
Weighted On Total
average demand or contractual
interest less than 1102 2105 Over  undiscounted Carrying
rate 1 year years years 5 years cash flow amount
ANKAE
T RER Beng
= g—FR —ERE S BBLF 5t FEE

% RVBOO  RWBOO0  RWBI000 RMB'000 RMBO00  RMB'00
% ARETT  ARETR  ARRTR  ARETR  ARETn  ARETR

Lease liabities BEBE 739 505 - - - 505 479
Interest-bearing bankand 3t ERTREMER

other borrowings 2.84-154 3,667,504 34,390 - - 3,691,894 3,674,659
Trade and bills payables ERESHERENESR - 2,264,123 - - - 2,254,123 2,264,123
Borrowings from the uttimate K B REERA AER

holding company 08 447 - - - 447 447
Financial liabilties included i~ 3+ AE 4 ERTFUER

other payables and accruals B ERMERERE - 331,577 285,196 - - 616,773 616,773
Other long term payable EhRBEMTE 12 1560 1560 54,069 83,819 141,008 130,000
Dividend payable EffiRE - 290,369 - - - 290,369 290,369

6,536,085 321,146 54,069 83,819 6,995,119 6,866,850

Capital management EXRER
The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are AEBEAEENTZERABRARN
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going SEHRBELERERFBRENER
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to b U BEEBREERERARRE
support its business and maximise shareholders’ value. BE -
The Group manages its capital structure and makes AEBRBELERNESHERERSE
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions. AR B /E TR - REE ] A\
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may BABERRIRATHRE - ARRIR
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to BERSETTRORFBIAEER
shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made in BB o REBENEE 2022 F K 2021 F
the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital 12A3HIEFEWELREEREER
during the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021. B BREEF -

BERMAARAR —B-_FFH
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37.

38.

BRI R EE (]

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management (Continued)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is total
debts divided by total assets. Total debts include interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings, borrowings from the
ultimate holding company, lease liabilities and other long term
payable. The Group’s policy is to maintain the gearing ratio at
a relatively healthy level. The gearing ratios as at the end of
the reporting periods were as follows:

37.

SREREEAR

(%)

BEXREE @)
AEBFERAEERBLREREAN -
R R DR A ESEERNEEE
%”oﬂﬁ%@%%ﬁﬁ”&ﬁMF

CRERRERAFER HESR
AM&E@E%%HmE B
hEEESEERBLREBRAY
REMKT RBEMRNEESRE
tERFH AT

RBUR

2022 2021
2022 F 20214
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
M ARET AREF T
Interest-bearing bank and FTEIRTT R EME K
other borrowings 23 4,477,358 3,574,659
Other long term payable Hfh K HAE A oE 25 130,000 130,000
Borrowings from the ultimate B HEIERARIER
holding company 34(d)(ii) 447 447
Lease Liabilities HEa®E 14(b) - 479
Total debts BIETE 4,607,805 3,705,585
Total assets EEE 15,070,168 16,168,870
Gearing ratio BEABGBHLE 30.6% 22.9%
DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY 38. HE—RMB AT
On 9 October 2021, the Group entered into a sale agreement R2021FE10 A9 » KEEEFVIHE

to dispose of Xiwang Special Steel International Trade
(Binzhou) Company Limited. The disposal was completed on 9
October 2021, on which date control of Xiwang Special Steel
International Trade (Binzhou) Company Limited passed to the
acquirer. Details of the assets and liabilities disposed of, and
the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal, are disclosed
as follows:

XIWANG SPECIAL STEEL COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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BRI SRR EE ()

38. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY (continued)

nv'.R

38. H&— MK E 28 @

The net liabilities of Xiwang Special Steel International Trade ATHMHBEERES AN AR AFRN
(Binzhou) Company Limited at the date of disposal were as HEBBZFAENT
follows:
RMB’000

ARBFIT
Deferred tax assets EETIBE E 3,358
Inventories FE 21,871
Trade and bills receivables FEWE 5 RIE R W EIR 18,685
Prepayment and other receivables TR FRIE R B A U FR A 14,254
Cash and cash equivalents ReLkReEEY 6
Trade and bills payables JEE 5 FUA M EN R (10,779)
Other payables and accruals HmENFIBERESER (18,176)
Contract liabilities EHEE (38,384)
Net liabilities disposed of s FaE (9,165)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HEKBQAEENKE
Consideration RE -
Net liabilities disposed of Frit & FaE 9,165
Gain on disposal HEEEME 9,165
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HEEENRSREFEHE
cash and cash equivalents disposed of FHERESMBESEEYD (6)

BEEREAFRAT
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39. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(i)

(i

Merlion Macro Firm Ltd. (formerly known as Merlion
Marco Fund), one of the subscribers of the Bonds, on 17
February 2023 filed a winding up petition (the “Petition”)
(Case Number: HCCW 80 of 2023) with the Court of
First Instance of the High Court of Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region (the “Court”) against the
Company. The Petition was filed against the Company in
respect of an indebtedness allegedly due and payable by
the Company in the amount of US$5,000,000 and
default interest accrued thereon arising from the Bonds.
The Court has set the first hearing date for the Petition
on 3 May 2023.

The Company received a letter from the Official
Receiver’s Office of Hong Kong which states that, inter
alia, a winding-up order was made on 20 March 2023
against Xiwang Investment, which, as at the date of this
announcement, directly holds a total of 868,093,000
ordinary Shares of the Company, representing
approximately 36.64% of the Company’s total issued
share capital. The Company is requested to remit a sum
of RMB9,957,000 to them as a sum allegedly due by the
Company to Xiwang Investment as at 30 June 2021
within the next 21 days from the date of the letter.

For further details, please refer to the Company’s
announcement dated 30 March 2023 in relation to the
abovementioned matters.
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Merlion Macro Firm Ltd.( B f&
Merlion Marco Fund) &f&% 873
BAZ— BER2023F2H17
BmEBRENTHRESEERR
VAR ([FER D IRRE AR AR
BEREBTERD (RERR -
2023 F HCCW80) ° 3% 2 & Jh &t
HAQRIRE  BEABEHFELE
KRN B B B PR N B BOE
5,000,000 7T & H fE 51 & 49 7
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HEj - B12023F5H3H
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o B e R20234F 3 A 20
HEHMNEATRENSTES -
RAREBE  AXTREHEER
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R RRMEE (B

40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 40. AR BB R

OF THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the

RBEMRARBFHARRROER

Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows: &y
2022 2021
2022 £ 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AREEFTT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FIRBEE
Other intangible assets HEmmpEE 17,437 23,939
Investments in subsidiaries PN & 1,368,316 1,368,316
Right-of-use assets TREAE - 435
Total non-current assets FRMBEERE 1,385,753 1,392,690
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepayments and other receivables FE A TR K E A e MR IE 1,010,877 1,033,228
Cash and cash equivalents Be MRS EEY 204 294
Total current assets mBEERE 1,011,081 1,033,522
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Other payables and accruals Hitv eI sIB R ERT B A 291,488 220,187
Dividend payables FEAT AR B 290,369 290,369
Lease liabilities HEBE = 479
Interest-bearing bank and FHEERIT R E MK
other borrowings 393,061 417,772
Total current liabilities MEBERT 974,918 928,757
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 36,163 104,765
Total assets less current liabilities REERRBAEE 1,421,916 1,497,455
Net assets BEFE 1,421,916 1,497,455
CAPITAL AND RESERVES ERE #H
Share capital A% 1,369,681 1,369,681
Reserves (note) R () 52,235 127,774
Total equity WIS AEER 1,421,916 1,497,455

The Company’s statement of financial position was approved
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 3 April

2023 and are signed on its behalf by:

ZHANG Jian Sun Xinhu
REE BRI R
Director Director
E E2

KRB Z B AKRE R 2023F 4 A3
AREEedEREERZ AT

JEBFERERRE

BEEREAFRAT

“ECCEFR




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR RRMEE (B

40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 40. A2 B EF AR R R ()
OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Note: FfzE -
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: AARREREET :
Share
Exchange option Retained Total
reserve reserve profits reserves
E XA BRERE R T REE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR#ETT ARBFIT ARBFT ARBTT

At 1 January 2021 202141 A1H (14,428) 1,051 139,951 126,574
Profit for the year F AT - - 599 599
Exchange differences on translation 2 &GN £ E A

of foreign operations &N =% 601 - - 601
Transfer of share option reserve A B AR AR 2K R B B B R e

upon the lapse of share options Gt - (759) 759 -
At 31 December 2021 H2021F 12 A31H (18,827) 292 141,309 127,774
Loss for the year FREE - = (78,464) (78,464)
Exchange differences on translation 2 &GN £ E A H

of foreign operations [ H =78 2,925 - - 2,925
Transfer of share option reserve A B AR A 2K R B R i R e

upon the lapse of share options Gt - (292) 292 -
At 31 December 2022 20229 12 A31H (10,902) - 63,137 52,235

~,
41. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL 41. HEEM TR

STATEMENTS
The financial statements were approved and authorised for MR BESFN2023F4 A3
issue by the board of directors on 3 April 2023. A R T35 o
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
LFEMBHE

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
2022 £ 20214 20204 20194 20184
For the year RMB milion) ~ AEE(AREEETT)
Revenue ¥R 14,460 19,116 15,288 11,170 11,917
Gross (loss)/profit E(8)/F (750) 784 469 705 1,967
EBITDA" Fle #ETER
BERIRF0 (809) 946 705 801 1,959
Net (loss)/profit (FER), /A (1,329) 65 18 20 962
As at 31 December W12A31H
(RMB million) (AR&EBET)
Current assets TEEE 2,932 4,072 3,249 2,973 3,717
Non-current assets FRBEE 12,138 12,097 12,121 10,472 10,680
Total assets BE®E 15,070 16,169 15,370 13,445 14,397
Current liabilities mEBE 9,481 10,187 8,287 7,110 7,717
Non-current liabilities ERHEE 1,128 197 1,352 614 683
Total liabilities aERE 10,609 10,384 9,639 7,724 8,400
Total equity e 4,462 5,785 5,731 5,721 5,997
Total liabilities and equity BERERASE 15,071 16,169 15,370 13,445 14,397
Per share SR
(Loss)/earnings per share Sk(BE)/ BH
(RMB cent) (ANRER)
Basic E- 9N (0.5609) 0.0274 0.0078 0.0087 0.427
Diluted e n/a T &R n/aRiE A nfa N H nfa N iEH 0.392
Dividends per share RMB) BRI E(ARET) - - - - 0.128
Note: et -

(FIB - BiE - EREHAERE) A8 5iE-
FEREEARAERTA (B1R), 2R nEE
B B RIAN LR E TR B (R RAEE
BTSRRI E 1698 RT) REAMBELEE -

(1) (LBITDA)/EBITDA refers to (loss)/profit before tax plus finance cost, depreciation (1)
and amortisation of prepaid land lease payments (prior to the adoption of
HKFRS 16) and other intangible assets.
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GLOSSARY
FARE

Articles
Al

Audit Committee
EZELEg

Auditors
1% ELAM

Board
E=a

CAS
R

CG Code
EEAFA

China or PRC
AR 3k

Companies Ordinance
NSILESH|

Company
ZiN/N]

COVID-19
COVID-19

Director(s)

=

ESG
ESG

ESG Report

ESG &

the articles of association of the Company currently in force
RARREE R ESE R MA

audit committee of the Company

RRPBEZERZES

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited, the independent auditors of the
Company
BEEtMEBMERAR - ANRGF 2B AXBED

Board of directors of the Company
KAREEE

the Chinese Academy of Sciences
B R B

The Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules
AR AIMT SR+ AT E 2 (R R E VRSP A

the People’s Republic of China excluding, for the purpose of this
report, Hong Kong, the Macau Special Administrative Region of the
PRC and Taiwan

REARKNE  RAREZEH  TEEFE  RPIFHIITHREMN
the Companies Ordinance of Hong Kong (Chapter 622 of the Laws of
Hong Kong)

EB RGN (FBEDIE622F)

Xiwang Special Steel Company Limited
AERMERA A

coronavirus disease
AR SR

director(s) of the Company

RRBESE

environmental, social and governance
RE g kEb

the environmental, social and governance report of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2022
RRRBZE2022F 12 A HIEFENRE - £ REA/RME
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Group
A

Haitong International Finance

75 388 B R 7

Haitong International Holdings
/8 B PR R AR

Haitong International Investment Solutions
BBBERRRERE

Haitong International Securities
8B ER 5

Haitong Securities
BIRE S

HKICPA
BAAEEAE

HK$ or HKD
BT

IMR
R & B AT

Latest Practicable Date

RIRERRATTAH

Listing Rules
AR A
Model Code

SR

Glossary (gontinued)
sk (48)

Company and its subsidiaries
RARREWE AR

Haitong International Finance Company Limited

BB AR AR

Haitong International Holdings Limited
B EEIERER QA

Haitong International Investment Solutions Limited

AR REREBR AR

Haitong International Securities Group Limited
EBBREEEFEEAR AR

Haitong Securities Co., Ltd.
FRESFRMNDAERA T

The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
BEGFEIAE

Hong Kong Dollars
BT

The Institute of Metal Research, CAS
IR B S B It

24 April 2023, being the latest practicable date prior to the printing of
this report for ascertaining certain information in this report

2023F4 H24 R - BIRNHMENEAIEE A RETNE TERNRIE
BEREAT1T A H

The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited
ERBMERXIMBRARES LHHRA

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of the Listed
issuers

EHBETAEFETESRZNEETA

BERMAARAR —B-_FFH




Glossary (Continued)

=== ==

r sk (48)

MPF Scheme the mandatory provident fund scheme registered with the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Authority under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance of Hong Kong (Chapter 485 of the Laws of
Hong Kong)

BEEEE RIBEBEDE 485 ERHERBIM A BRETENEAI LRI RERE
SEERELHREIEAESHEESFTE

New Code Provision the code provisions set out in Part 2 of Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules

#1<r RIS AR AR R P05 = E AT S Y ST BIME X

Nomination Committee the nomination committee of the Board

REZEEE EEgERLEE

Previous Year year ended 31 December 2021

=F HZE2021F12 A1 HIEFE

Remuneration Committee The remuneration committee of the Board

¥FEEs EFEgFMEES

RMB Renminbi

AR AR

SFO Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong)

FH REAE 5 BREEMEST1 ER S KB KM

Shandong Xiwang Sugar Shandong Xiwang Sugar Industry Company Limited

INER TR IR EEERR A A

Shandong Xiwang Sugar Group Shandong Xiwang Sugar and its subsidiaries

IR EEXEE IR EREE AN E AR

Share Option Scheme the share option scheme of the Company adopted on 3 September
2014

EAR s 3 ARARIR2014F 9 A 3 HETERA 2 BE N5+ 2

Shareholder(s) the shareholder(s) of the Company

fig R RATZ’E
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Special Steel Company

SE i UNC]

Stock Exchange
Bt 22 AT

USA
ESed

US$ or USD
ETT

VAT
BER

Xiwang Finance

AEM

Xiwang Foodstuffs
ATREM

Xiwang Group
AT&E

Xiwang Group Company
GER S PNy

Xiwang Holdings
AEER

Xiwang Hong Kong
mEEB

Xiwang Investment
AERE

Xiwang Logistics
mEEDR

Xiwang Metal Science
ATEBRIR

Glossary (gontinued)
SLERC

Xiwang Special Steel Company Limited, an indirectly non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company incorporated in the PRC
BATHHEERAT  —RKEFBEKUH - KRR ZEEIFZEF QT

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
FEBMARPBR AT

United States of America
EFREFEH

United States Dollar
ETT

Value-added tax
HIEF

Xiwang Group Finance Company Limited
AT EEMBERAR

Xiwang Foodstuffs Company Limited
BATRERDERAF

Xiwang Group Company and its subsidiaries
ATSRERARRENBAF

Xiwang Group Company Limited
AEEERRAA

Xiwang Holdings Limited
AEERARAF]

Xiwang Hong Kong Company Limited
BEEEERAA

Xiwang Investment Company Limited (in liquidation)
ATREARAT (FEF)

Shandong Xiwang Logistics Company Limited
WERBEEMRBER AR

Xiwang Metal Science & Technology Company Ltd.
AT EREARAF

BEEREAFRAT

“ECCEFR
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9Iossary (Continued)
SEENC

Xiwang Property
AEEX

Xiwang Recycling Resources

AEBLEER

Year

REE

Zhongke Xiwang
hRIEE

Zouping Power Branch
BFEHHDRAA]

%
%

Note: the English names of the PRC laws, regulations, government authorities,
institutions, companies or entities established in the PRC included in this report

Xiwang Property Holdings Company Limited
AEEXERER QA

Shandong Xiwang Recycling Resources Company Limited

WRAETBLEERARAF

year ended 31 December 2022
HZE2022F 12 A1 BILFE

Zhongke Xiwang Special Steel Company Limited
PRI EEHAER A A

Xiwang Group Company Limited Zouping Power Branch
AEEEERAREFEBHHAA]

per cent

B

Kret - ABEACEHFEDEE OXE - BTERE - %
W RAIHAEFEK I ERAEXEEY BE

are translations of their Chinese names and are included for identification
purposes only. In the event of inconsistency, the Chinese versions shall prevail.
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PXREFAEFZE EHBFZH WET—HZ
B B KRR -
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